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Vision

To be a leading engineering and project management
consultancy organization.

Mission

To create and deliver integrated techno-commercial
solution optimum in cost, quality and time to all
customers.

To pursue relentlessly world class quality in
engineering consultancy and project management by
imbibing best practices.

To develop, upgrade and improve the manufacturing
process of Catalyst and other products in line with the
ever evolving need of customers.

Objectives

Profitability: To leverage the human resources,
technology and physical assets of the company, in
most effective and efficient manner, to generate an
optimum return on investment, with adequate safety
and liquidity.

Growth: To achieve reasonable, consistent and
diversified growth across fertilizer, oil & gas and other

sectors in India and abroad.

Developing organizational capabilities: To create
environment and conditions in the organization
conducive for developing and maintaining its
knowledge, human and physical resources and make
the company a ‘Learning Organization.

Quality: To ensure that quality of our products and
services fully meets the requirement of customers.

Value for all stakeholders: To be guided in all its
actions by the consideration of creating value for all
its stakeholders, viz., shareholders, employees, clients,
business partners and society to become a responsible
Corporate Citizen.
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is a premier Engineering and Project Management
Consultancy organization. PDIL also provides Inspection
& Quality Assurance Services & other specialized
services include HAZOP study, Energy Audits, Revamp
/ Retrofitting / Debottlenecking studies, EIA studies,
preparation of TEFR DFR 1 DPRs and Manufactures
Catalysts for Ammonia & Sulphuric Acid Plants.

We aim to provide Products & Services that best satisfies

the customers by

e Compliance to requirements (Functional, Safety,

Customer and Legal requirements);

® Implementing Quality Management Systems in
accordance with latest National & International

standards; and
¢ Training and Motivation of employees & suppliers.

PDIL is further committed to adopt innovative &
improved process methodologies and continually improve

the effectiveness of the management system.

PDIL understands the importance of impartiality in
carryingout its activities, shall identify & resolve all conflict
of interest situations and shall ensure the objectivity of its

inspection activities.

Sd/-

D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah
Chairman & Managing Director
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Projects & Development India Limited
(A Govt. of India Undertaking) - A Mini Ratna-1 Company
PDIL Bhawan, A-14, Sector-1, Noida - 201 301
Distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, (UP), India
CIN : U74140UP1978G01028629

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth (40" Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders of PROJECTS &
DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED will be held on,
Monday, the 24™ day of September, 2018 at 12.15 PM
at Board Room, PDIL Bhawan, Noida, U.P-201301 at
the Registered Office of the Company to transact the

following business:-
ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31* March
2018, and Directors Report and Independent
Auditors ‘Report thereon, and also the Comments of

the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

2. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the
financial year 2018-19 and, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification(s), the following resolution

as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 139(5) and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
M/s M.D.Gujrati & Co, Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi, appointed to audit the accounts of
the Company for the financial year 2018-19, in
terms of the order received from the office of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C &AG),
New Delhi vide letter no./ CA.V/ COY/CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT, PDIL (1)/674 dated 16.08.2018 at
the remuneration of Rs.3.00 lakh plus applicable tax
and travelling & other out of pocket expenses, upto
the ceiling of Rs 1.50 lakh for the year 2018-19 ,be
and is hereby approved AND THAT above Statutory

@ -4
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Auditors shall hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next

Annual General Meeting”
By order of the Board

Sd/-
(B.K. Sahoo)
Company Secretary
Place: Noida
Date: 19.09.2018
Note:-

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
is entitled to appoint proxy to attend & vote instead of
himself/herself. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

To : All Shareholders,
All Directors,

M/s M.D.Gujrati & Co, Statutory Auditor
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Chairman’s Speech

At the 40™ Annual General Meeting (AGM)
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Dear Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen,

A very warm welcome to you to the 40" Annual
General Meeting of your Company for the Financial
Year 2017-18 being held here today. Your Company has
completed 40 years since its formation as an independent
entity in 1978 and it is indeed a privilege and honour for
me to present the Annual Performance of your Company
at this moment. The year under review has witnessed not
only record breaking Order booking since inception of
the Company, but also turnaround in terms of profitability
of the Company.

The Director’s Report and Audited Annual Accounts
for the year ended 31st March 2018, together with
Statutory Auditor’s Report and comments of CAG thereon
have already been circulated. With your permission, I
take them as read. I thank all of you for your esteemed
presence and continued trust reposed in the Company
over the years.

Financial Performance :

It gives me immense pleasure to inform that Financial
Year 2017-18 has augured well for your Company. Your
Company added many feathers into its cap in Financial
performance and Order booking during 2017-18. During
the Year ended 31% March, 2018, your Company has
TURNED AROUND with Profit after Tax (PAT) of Rs.

OB



@&
T & o ™
PDIL

SR 3MIBT B BT BRI ¥ 2.69 HRIS ®IY
BT | faT 99 2017—18 & SR 3D HHAT BT SHINAR
77.86 RIS WUV Y&T Sl fb 2016—17 & ool fad a¥ &
5774 IRIS BT B <HNAR W 34.85% IOH B &9
JMYBT =T T4 & A1 Ig 9T a8d & fob fo<T a9
2017—18 & SRTF VABTRIG U I MYPT HFI gIRT T4
3Mfde Mrex g fby Y| 9 fa<d 99 4 smuas] wFl
ERT 207.18 TRIS T e & e} & by MY Sdfd
SHA gd 99 200910 H HEH AMTH 113.80 TS HIRI
B AR g BT Y | IdRST & &3 H 14657 RIS
¥ BT BRIAR HAT AT Tafh T U8l 8248 RIS
IR BT T AP BRIER I 2009—10 F fHar 11
o7 | 39 fod 94 & ERF IR—SdR® &5 H 60.61 RIS
ST BT BRIAR [HAT AT Sa(dh A Yd 58.95 RIS
IR BT G Ifd HRIER a9 2016—17 § fbar a1
T | IS TUNAT 2 fb 3MUdT HH gRT IR—SIRB &1 |
A U pRE H A=A oE TE 2

9y @& SR fsurgs @1 gaen

YD HHT & HHANRAT UG Yo gRT fhy 7Y
S JURT 3R el Hed | faxT a9 2017—18 & QR
9 dad Refd § GuR 837 © 3MMUg 207.18 HRIS SUY Bl
SeeH BRI (T W1 TG &1 UTS & |

YIS 9¥ & R Sakd & &F H§ U U
AMeR Wl Hamsil & o Sl — 494 g™ Sk
Ue A oo (TagaRuel) & TREYR, =l 3iiR
R Rerd SdREG IRERT @I Ga—aRATSHT ITfIAerRT;
TIYIMRUAD TRAR AR {=d H 2200 AU
SMIFT UG 3850 THCIUIS] IRAT FAFT AT I
TR Sffhase vd SUAfar dareh & forw drus.
1. WAl #H daeR Bicased oo (SLum.ye.),
ToraR (3NfSem) & dret ARAMhdeE SmenRa Sdve FI=
gRISHT & for oRmel amel; d I hfaded
Ud BiEASOR (IRIITB) §RT S B gRATSTH
SEIf-V & JRIER =g fawgd sonfraRkeT Jamwi;
I AYHd Bicasod folo (THUHUA) & afdsT
IR Uud widaEed w5 & foy 9v gRa g
fOferT Sfer GLua AL (—uRe) Tauacia ars Jamlf
D ATUAT & T H; HA FCad Sataronsd folo &
gRTEY, Nfeer Red gRER # 1000 ST & ddb-tan
IR Agge (UUA) WEE @ R & foy
d Tg @gerar RUE & IR 7, SIRUG.HLETH

Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001 : 2015 Company

2.69 crore after three years of consecutive losses. During
Financial Year 2017-18, your Company achieved a turnover
of Rs. 77.86 crore which is 34.85% higher as compared to
the turnover of Rs. 57.74 crore during previous Financial
Year 2016-17. With great pride, we wish to inform you
that the financial year 2017-18 has been historic in terms
of all time high Order Booking of your Company. Your
Company was able to secure orders worth Rs. 207.18
crore during the financial year as against earlier highest
Order Booking of Rs. 113.80 crore in 2009-10. In the
Fertilizer Sector, business worth Rs. 146.57 crore has been
secured as against earlier highest of Rs. 82.48 crore in the
year 2009-10. In the Non-Fertilizer Sector, business worth
Rs. 60.61 crore has been secured during the financial year
as against earlier highest of Rs. 58.95 crore in the year
2016-17. This indicates that your Company has diversified
its portfolio in the Non-Fertilizer Sector.

Review of Performance during the Year :

Through concerted efforts and hard work of the
Employees and the Management, your Company not only
turned around during the Financial Year 2017-18 but
also managed to get the highest ever order booking of Rs.
207.18 crore.

During the year under review, the major orders
received in Fertiliser sector are Consultancy Services
for pre-project activities of Fertiliser Complex of
M/s. Hindustan Urvarak and Rasayan Ltd. (HURL)
at Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni; PMC services for
2200 MTPD Ammonia & 3850 MTPD Urea Plants and
associated Offsites & Utilities at Gorakhpur and Sindri for
HURL; Consultancy Services for Coal Gasification Based
Fertilizer Plant Project of M/s. Talcher Fertiliser Ltd.
(TFL) at Talcher (Odisha); Detailed Engineering Services
for Ammonia-V Revamp Project at Trombay for M/s.
Rashtriya Chemicals & Fertilizers (RCF); PMC (Pre-Post)
LSTK Award Services for Installation of new Natural Draft
Prilling Tower at M/s. National Fertilizers Ltd. (NFL),
Bathinda and Panipat Fertiliser Plants; Preparation of
Bankable Feasibility Report (BFR) for setting up of 1000
TPD Technical Ammonium Nitrate (TAN) Complex
at Paradip, Odisha for M/s Smartchem Technologies
Ltd; Preparation of Techno Economic Feasibility Report
(TEFR ) for revamping of Ammonium Nitrate (AN) Melt
Section of Ammonium Nitro Phosphate (ANP) Plant at
RCE, Trombay; Valuation of assets of Durgapur unit of
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M/s. Hindustan Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd. (HFCL);
Sale of Unusable Assets of Haldia Unit of HFCL and
Sindri unit of M/s. Fertilizer Corporation of India Ltd.
(FCIL); Supply of High Temperature Shift (HTS) and
Low Temperature Shift (LTS) Catalyst to NFL, Vijaipur;
Environmental Monitoring for New Ammonia & Urea
Plants at Gorakhpur, Barauni etc.

In the Non-fertiliser sector, the major orders received
are - Consultancy Services for Techno-Commercial
Feasibility Study for Petcoke Gasification based Ammonia
Project at Paradip; Pre-feasibility Report (PFR) for setting
up of Coal to Methanol Project through Coal Gasification
route at Dankuni Coal Complex (DCC), West Bengal for
M/s. Coal India Ltd (CIL); Engineering Procurement and
Construction Management (EPCM) Services for Petroleum
Storage Terminals at Atchutapuram & Malkapur for M/s.
Indian Oil Corporation Ltd. (IOCL); Detailed Feasibility
Report (DFR) Preparation & EPCM Services for Catalyst
Plant at Panipat Refinery for IOCL; Consultancy Services
for Transmix Separator Plant at Mohanpura, Jaipur of
IOCL; Consultancy Services for EPCM and other allied
services for Grass-root Petroleum Storage Terminal at
Motihari, Bihar of IOCL; Consultancy Services for LPG
Augmentation Project at Aurangabad and Kondapalli of
M/s. HPCL; Consultancy Services for NG/RLNG Pipeline
from Petronet LNG Ltd. (PLL) to Opal of M/s OPAL,
Vadodara; Detailed Engineering Consultancy (DEC) for
LSTK Project of “Supply, Installation & Commissioning
of MP Gas Compressor at Gas Gathering Station (GGS),
Demulgoan, Assam Asset” of M/s. Oil & Natural Gas
Corporation (ONGC), Nazira; EPCM services at HPCL,
Sagar and Gwalior, etc.

In overseas projects, your Company bagged the job
of providing Engineering Procurement and Construction
Management (EPCM) Services for setting up of 1,75,000
MTPA Single Super Phosphate (SSP) Plant at Kokand,
Uzbekistan from M/s. Indorama Kokand Fertilizers LLC,
Republic of Uzbekistan.

In the area of Inspection & NDT services, orders
have been bagged from several new clients/areas like
M/s. Rajasthan Urban Drinking Water, Sewerage and
Infrastructure Corporation (RUDISCO), Jaipur; M/s.
Dakshinanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited (DVVPL),
Agra; M/s. Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board
Limited (HPSEBL), Shimla; M/s. Jaipur Vidyut Vitran
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Nigam Limited (JVVNL), Jaipur. In addition, orders have
also been secured from traditional clients like IOCL,
BPCL, HPCL, GAIL, IFFCO etc for inspection & NDT
services.

Your Company maintained its ISO 9001:2015
(Quality Management System), OHSAS 18001:2007
(Occupational Health and Safety Management System)
and ISO/IEC 17020:2012 (NABCB Accreditation criteria
for Inspection bodies).

Your Company is making all out efforts for execution
of Projects & assignments awarded in earlier years by the
Clients in Fertiliser and Non-Fertiliser sector like NFL,
RCE, IFFCO, IOCL, BPCL, HPCL, etc.

Compliance of Corporate Governance :

Your Company has been continuously making efforts
towards raising standard of Corporate Governance. PDIL
is expected to get “Excellent” grading for the year 2017-18.
A Report on the Corporate Governance is annexed to the
Director’s Report.

Future Outlook :

The future outlook for Fertiliser industry and
for PDIL looks encouraging owing to various Policy
announcements and revival of closed fertiliser units.

A detailed analysis of future outlook is presented in
the Chapter “Management Discussion & Analysis Report”
annexed as Annexure -5.

The Government of India’s initiative of revival of
the closed Fertiliser units of M/s. Fertiliser Corporation
of India Ltd. (FCIL) and M/s.
Corporation Ltd. (HFCL) have started materialising.
Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Ltd. (HURL), a joint
venture Company of M/s. Indian Oil Corporation Ltd.
(IOCL), M/s. National Thermal Power Corporation Ltd.
(NTPC), M/s. Coal India Ltd. (CIL) and M/s. Fertiliser
Corporation of India Ltd. (FCIL)/M/s.
Fertiliser Corporation Ltd. (HFCL) was incorporated for
setting up of Gas Based 2200 MTPD Ammonia and 3850
MTPD Urea Plants with associated Offsites & Utilities
at Gorakhpur, Sindri and Barauni. PDIL has received
orders for providing Consultancy Services for pre-project
activities and also for providing Project Management

Hindustan Fertiliser

Hindustan
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Consultancy (PMC) Services for 2200 MTPD Ammonia
and 3850 MTPD Urea plants and associated Offsites &
Utilities at Gorakhpur and Sindri Projects of HURL. PDIL
has also been awarded in 2018-19, the job of rendering
PMC Services for 2200 MTPD Ammonia and 3850 MTPD
Urea Plants and associated Offsites & Utilities at Barauni.
PDIL has received order for providing Consultancy
Services for Coal Gasification Based Fertilizer Plant
Project of M/s. Talcher Fertiliser Ltd. (TFL) at Talcher
(Odisha). It is a Coal based Fertiliser Complex which
will consist of Coal Gasification Plant, Ammonia & Urea
Plants, Captive Power Plant and associated Offsites &
Utilities. PDIL is also looking forward to get the job of
providing PMC Services for this Project. PDIL is also
exploring more opportunities in rendering Engineering
Consultancy Services for Energy Saving Projects being
undertaken by various Fertilizer Companies like NFL,
KRIBHCO etc. PDIL is looking forward to receive foreign
assignments from various clients like JIFCO, OMIFCO,
Indorama, etc.

Your Company has successfully established its
credentials in execution of projects & assignments in
diversified sectors like Oil & Gas, Refinery, City Gas
Distribution etc. Majority of the business secured during
the Financial Year 2017-18 by our Vadodara Office is from
such diversified sectors in Non-fertiliser area. Noida Office
too have secured some prestigious jobs in these diversified
sectors during 2017-18.

Most of these jobs and jobs of Inspection &
Expediting have been secured in stiff competition. PDIL
shall continue to secure more jobs in these areas in future
as well.

With improvement in investment scenario in the
country in Public and Private Sectors and robust growth of
the economy, projects are likely to come up in Fertiliser as
well Non-Fertiliser Sectors. Your Company will make all
out efforts to capture the opportunity and looks forward
to receive Orders both in Fertiliser as well Non-Fertiliser
Sectors in coming years.

Status of Disinvestment of PDIL :

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs, in its
meeting held on 27" October, 2016 has given “in principle
approval” for Strategic Disinvestment of PDIL.
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In this regard, a letter No. 19021/05/2016-FCA dated
27" December, 2016 was received from Department
of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers,
Government of India for the process of Disinvestment of
PDIL. The Transaction Advisor (TA), Legal Advisor (LA)
and Asset Valuer (AV) were appointed by Department
of Investment and Public Asset Management (DIPAM),
Ministry of Finance, Government of India/Department
of Fertilizers (DoF), Government of India for the
disinvestment purpose. The required data/information
of PDIL were furnished to TA, LA & AV. An Expression
of Interest (EOI) inviting bids only from Central Public
Sector Enterprises (CPSE) and Preliminary Information
Memorandum (PIM) has been published on 13.10.2017
with due date of 09.11.2017 for receipt of EOI. Name of
bidders have not been disclosed by TA. Further action is
being taken by DIPAM/DoF/ TA.

Pursuant to the Strategic Disinvestment of your
Company, an MOU has been entered into with FCIL on
06.09.2017 as per directive of DoF wherein PDIL shall
hand over the Sindri Land alongwith the Catalyst Plant
and all other infrastructure appurtenant thereto to FCIL,
if not disposed off, without consideration.

Looking Ahead :

I assumed the Office of Director (Finance) on
6™ October, 2016 and was given additional charge of
Chairman & Managing Director (CMD) on 8" November
2016. Thus, 2017-18 was my first complete Financial Year
in the Company. At the time of assumption of the Office,
your Company was facing many challenges. One of the
major challenge of turning around the Company has
been accomplished during the Financial Year 2017-18 i.e.
earning profit after three years of consecutive losses. With
the highest ever Order booking of Rs. 207.18 crore during
2017-18, my endeavour would be to improve the bottom
line position of the Company. I am also quite optimistic
to overcome the other major challenges to the Company
in respect of Quality & timely execution of the Projects
& assignments, future order booking and manpower
deployment through collective efforts of the Employees,
Management and the Stakeholders.
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
Ladies and Gentlemen,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40"
Annual Report of the Company together with Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

Financial Summary/Highlights, Operations, State

[*uw oRg H]  of Affairs:

faqeor 2017-18 | 2016-17 [Rs. in lakh]
SESIIISRICURISIR 6820.09 | 459547 | particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
SRR 965.69 | 1178.99 Income from services and products 6820.09 | 4595.47
Hl I 7785.98 | 577446 Other Income 965.69 | 1178.99
el AR eUEr & gd o 260.04 | (775.87) Total Income 7785.98 | 5774.46
W/gﬂ%[ & forg wraem 198.81 218.56 Profit Before Interest and Depreciation | 260.04 | (775.87)

Provision for Depreciation/ 198.81 218.56
R d @ 61.23 | (994.43) Impairment P
DX SEIA AT 268.78 | (1058.24) Profit Before Tax 61.23 | (994.43)
M o WY Y ST Bl 29 7786.49 | 884473 | I'profit After Tax 268.78 | (1058.24)
AR & fou Sucter 2w 8055.27 |  7786.49 Balance of Profit brought forward 7786.49 | 8844.73
3fFad) IR R ydTfad orier N N Balance available for appropriation 8055.27 | 7786.49
TR o TN PR I I Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares Nil Nil
AT SRR Iy & siawor = I Tax on proposed Dividend Nil Nil
SorTele § o ST T SRR 805527 | 7786.49 Transfer to General Reserve Nil Nil

Surplus carried to Balance sheet 8055.27 | 7786.49
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The Income for the year ended 2017-18 is Rs 7785.98
lakh as against the Income of Rs 5774.46 lakh during
previous year. The Profit Before Tax (PBT) for the year
under review is Rs 61.23 lakh as against loss of Rs (994.43)
lakh during previous year. The reasons for increase in
income in the year 2017-18 were due to income of Rs.
3.72 crore from Environmental Monitoring of Hindustan
Urvarak & Rasayan Limited (HURL) plants at Gorakhpur,
Sindri and Barauni, income of Rs. 2.79 crore from Catalyst
order at Sindri, income of Rs. 2.74 crore for Pre-project
activities, etc from HRUL projects, income of Rs. 1.89
crore from Pre-LSTK award of Consultancy services from
Talcher Fertilizers Ltd.( TFL), income of Rs. 1.66 crore
from Consultancy Services for Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd
(ZACL) Revamp Project, income of Rs. 1.32 crore from
disposal work of Hindustan Fertilizers Corporation Ltd.
(HFCL) and inome of Rs. 0.47 crore from disposal of
unusable assets at Sindri Unit of Fertilizers Corporation
of India Ltd. (FCIL). Major quantum of the order value
contributed by jobs which were in advance stage of award
in the financial year 2016-17, but have been awarded in
financial year 2017-18.




REVENUE GENERATION

Other Income
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m Other Income X 9.66 crore
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REVENUE UTILIZATION

Net Profit
after Tax 3%

Income
Tax(Net of

Other Deferred
Expenses Tax)
22% (3%)

Depreciation
3%

Services
3%

Employee
Benefit
70%

Materials
Consumed &
Acc/Dec

2%

m Employee Benefit ¥ 54.40 crore

= Materials Consumed & Acc/Dec X 1.27 crore

m Hiring of Services ¥ 2.72 crore

m Depreciation ¥ 1.99 crore

= Other Expenses ¥ 16.87 crore

= Income Tax(Net of Deferred Tax) X (2.08) crore
= Net Profit after Tax ¥ 2.69 crore

SECTORWISE
OPERATIONS:

ENGINEERING AND CONSULTANCY DIVISION
A. FERTILIZER SECTOR

DETAILS OF COMPANY’S

Duringthefinancial year, fertilizer sector has witnessed
major investment after several years as closed units of
FCIL & HFCL are being revived through Joint Venture
Companies viz. M/s Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Ltd.
(HURL) and M/s Talcher Fertilizers Limited (TFL). PDIL,
being a prime engineering consultant in fertilizer sector
having more than six decades of experience, has been
entrusted by HURL and TFL for providing consultancy
services for their projects at Gorakhpur (Uttar Pradesh),
Barauni (Bihar), Sindri (Jharkhand) and Talcher (Odisha).
In addition to above, PDIL secured several other jobs
including energy saving / revamp projects from various
clients.

Major Orders secured during the financial year 2017-18:

e  Consultancy services including PMC for setting up
gas based 2200 MTPD Ammonia and 3850 MTPD
Urea fertilizer Project at Gorakhpur & Sindri for
HURL, New Delhi

e  Consultancy services for Coal Gasification based
Ammonia-Urea fertilizer project at Talcher for TFL,
Noida

e  Environmental Monitoring for New Ammonia Urea
plants at Gorakhpur, Barauni & Sindri for HURL,
New Delhi
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Piling Work in Ammonia Pipe Rack
Area of HURL Barauni

Consultancy services for Pre-Project activities for gas
based 2200 MTPD Ammonia and 3850 MTPD Urea
fertilizer Project at Barauni for HURL, New Delhi

PMC (Pre & Post LSTK Award) Services for
installation of new natural draft Prilling Tower at
Bathinda and Panipat for National Fertilizers Ltd.
(NFL), Noida

Detailed Engineering  Services, Procurement
Assistance and Site Supervision Services for
Ammonia-V Revamp project at Trombay for
Rashtriya Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd. (RCEF),
Mumbai

Consultancy services for Ammonia-Urea revamp
project for ZACL, Goa

e EPCM Services for
setting up of Single Super
Phosphate (SSP ) plant in
Kokand Valley, Uzbekistan
for M/s Indorama Kokand
Fertilizers LLC, Republic of
Uzbekistan

° Sale of unusable assets of
Haldia unit of HFCL, Noida

° Sale of Unusable Assets
of Sindri unit of FCIL, Noida

Projects ongoing / completed
during the year (Domestic Projects) :

PMC (Pre & post LSTK Award) services for
implementation of Energy Reduction scheme at
Panipat, Bathinda & Nangal units of NFL (Under
Execution)

Preparation of DFR, PMC Services for LSTK Contract
(Post Award), Consultancy Services for Balance item
on EPCM basis for GT-PAC-HRSG Project at RCF-
Thal (Under Execution)

Preparation of DFR for the proposed NPK Project at
Krishnapatnam for KRIBHCO (Under Execution)

Preparation of DFR, PMC Services for LSTK Contract
(Post Award), Consultancy Services for Balance item
on EPCM basis for GT-HRSG Project at RCF-Thal &
Trombay (Under Execution)
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e  Ammonia Plant Feed Stock Changeover for Madras
Fertilizers Ltd. (MFL), Chennai (Under Execution)

e  Detailed Engineering Services for Trombay-V Urea
Revamp project for RCF (Under Execution)

e SSP plant at Chittorgarh, Rajasthan for FAGMIL
(Under Execution)

e  Sale of Unusable assets of Gorakhpur unit of FCIL
(Under Execution)

e  Sale of Unusable assets of Barauni unit of HFCL
(Under Execution)

e  Energy Saving Project (Phase-III) for Ammonia-
Urea plants at IFFCO Aonla-I&II, Phulpur - I & II
and Kalol (Completed)

Projects ongoing / completed during the year (Foreign
Projects) :

e EPCM Services for setting up an additional
Concentration Line for  Phosphoric  Acid
Concentration at JIFCO, Jordan (Under Execution)

e  Feasibility study for Ammonia/ TAN/ CAN project at
Algeria for M/s Asmidal Groupe Industriel Engrais et
Produits Phytosanitaires, Algeria (Under Execution)

e  Engineering Services for FCW System to prevent any
potential failures and for improving the reliability of
the FCW System (Under Execution)

B. REFINERY AND OIL & GAS SECTORS

During the financial year, PDIL showed its strong presence
in the non-fertilizer sector as well by way of securing
several orders for Refinery and Oil & Gas projects.

Major Orders secured during the financial year
2017-18:

e  Consultancy Services for Engineering, Procurement,
Construction Management (EPCM) & allied services
for the proposed Grassroot Petroleum Storage
Terminals at Atchutapuram, AP and Malkapur,
Telangana for IOCL, Mumbai

e  Consultancy services for DFR preparation (Phase-I)
and EPCM services (Phase-II) for setting up of
Catalyst Plant at Panipat Refinery for IOCL, New
Delhi
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Engineering Project Management
Services at Gwalior & Sagar Depot for HPCL,
Mumbai

Consultancy

Hiring of Services of DEC for LSTK Project
“Supply, Installation, & Commissioning of MP
Gas Compressors of Adequate Capacity” at GGS,
Demulgaon, Assam Asset for ONGC, Assam
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HURL Gorakhpur
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e Consultancy for LPG
Augmentation Projects at
Aurangabad and Kondapalli
for HPCL, Mumbai

e Appointment of
Basic
tender

consultant for

Engineering,
preparation & evaluation,
review of  contractor’s
documents & PMC services
for NG/RLNG pipeline from
PLL to OPaL for M/s ONGC
Petro additions Limited,
Vadodara (OPal)

Consultancy services for EPCM & allied services for
the proposed grassroot Petroleum Storage Terminal
at Motihari, Bihar for IOCL, Mumbai

Consultancy Services for Engineering, Procurement,
(EPCM) & allied
Services for the Conversion of Baitalpur Depot to
ToP (Petroleum Storage Terminal) at Patna Baitalpur
Pipeline at Baitalpur, Dist- Deoria under Uttar
Pradesh State Office-I for IOCL, Mumbai

Construction Management

Consultancy services for Transmix Separator Plant at
Mohanpura, Jaipur for IOCL, Noida

Projects ongoing / completed during the year :

Design & Engineering for various works at
installations of Ankleswar asset for ONGC (Under
Execution)

Crude Oil storage tanks at Gopavaram, Kesanapalli
& Malleswaram for ONGC (Under Execution)

Replacement of FEED/ effluent exchanger in
Catalytic Reformer Unit at Bongaigaon of IOCL
(Under Execution)
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e  PMC services for Mundra LPG terminal for Adani
(Under Execution)

e  EPMC services for LPG mounded bullet at Guwahati
Refinery (Under Execution)

e 6 Greenfield LPG bottling plants of IOCL (Under
Execution)

e POL storage terminal at Asanur Tamil Nadu for
IOCL (Under Execution)

e  Services for augmentation of facilities under project
Utkristh at various locations for HPCL (Under
Execution)

e  Cryogenic storage Tank Project at Haldia for Aegis
Logistics (Completed)

e LPG Bullets at ONGC-Hazira & Uran (Under
Execution)

e LPG Mounded Bullets at NRL-Assam (Under
Execution)

e  Ennore Coastal POL Terminal of BPCL (Under
Execution)

e LPG Bottling Plant at Bathinda for IOCL (Under
Execution)

e  Flue Gas Cooler in RFCCU unit at IOCL-Barauni
Refinery (Under Execution)

e  Augmentation of facilities at Devangonthi Terminal
for IOCL (Under Execution)

e  Consultancy services for augmentation of facilities at
Doimukh Depot of IOCL (Under Execution)

e OCTAMAX Project at IOCL-Mathura Refinery
(Completed)

e  Consultancy services for augmentation of facilities at
Kandla Import Terminal for IOCL (Completed)

C. INSPECTION & NDT

PDIL has firmly established its credentials as a
Third Party Inspection (TPI) and Non-Destructive
Testing (NDT) Agency. Statutory inspection, testing
and certification of LPG / Ammonia Horton Spheres,
Mounded LPG Bullets, Inspection & Recommissioning
of Ammonia Storage Tanks and Health Assessment of
Reformer Tubes by Automatic Ultrasonic Scanning (AUS)
continued to be the specialized activities of PDIL.
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Site Activities at Talcher Project

During the year, PDIL received a prestigious order
in the infrastructure sector from M/s Madhya Pradesh
Urban Development Company Limited, Bhopal, for
rendering Third Party Inspection Services to Madhya
Pradesh Urban Services Improvement Project (MPUSIP)
for three years.

Another major TPI job was awarded in the
infrastructure sector by M/s Rajasthan Urban
Infrastructure Finance & Development Corporation

Limited, Jaipur, for Third Party

Inspection Services for
Sewerage  projects  under
AMRUT.

After successfully entering
diversified field of power
sector and establishing our
credentials with SBPDCL,
PGCIL, OPTCL, PuVVNL etc.,
more TPI jobs in the power
sector were received during
the year from M/s South
Bihar
Company Limited, Patna;
North Bihar Power Distribution Company Limited,
Patna; Dakshinanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited,
Agra; Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited,
Shimla; and Jaipur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited, Jaipur,

Power Distribution

for TPI of materials being procured by them.

Various Oil & Gas companies such as IOCL, BPCL,
HPCL, ONGC, GAIL etc. continued to repose confidence
in PDIL by awarding inspection and NDT jobs to PDIL.

IOCL continued to be our major TPI client and major
jobs awarded by them include:

e Consultancy Services for design, detailed
engineering, tender document preparation, vendor
evaluation, Third Party Inspection Services, site
visits, development of automation logic for a
“turnkey project on procurement, installation and
commissioning of remote operated valves along with
auto operations, ROV & Integration with existing
automatic system” at IOCLs Cherlapalli Bottling

Plant under TAPSO.
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Electrical Consultancy services for revamping of
IOCLs Lube Oil Blending Plant at Asaoti.

Design approval and inspection of cryovessels at
IOCLs Cryogenics Plant at Nasik.

Inspection of CCTV surveillance system at IOCLs
Oil Terminals located at Bijwasan, Rewari, Ambala
and Tikrikalan under Delhi State Office.

Inspection of Flexible Intermediate Bulk Containers
(FIBC) Bags for supply to their PTA Plant at Panipat.

Inspection and testing of Desktop PCs ordered by
IOCL HO, Mumbai.

Third Party Inspection Services for construction
of Mounded Type Pressure Vessels and Fire Water
Tanks at IOCLs LPG Bottling Plants at Budge-Budge,
Una, Trishundi, Korba, Khurda, & Sitargan,;.

Third Party Inspection of indigenous Electrical items
ordered by M/s IOCL (Pipelines Division) across the
country.

Electrical Safety Audit of IOCLs LPG Bottling Plants
at Karnal, Gurugram, Loni, Jaipur, Shahjahanpur;
Oil Depots at Sagar, Gwalior, Jabalpur, Indore,
Jammu, Itarsi, Gonda; and Office Buildings at New
Delhi, Mumbai. Electrical Audit of office buildings
/ oil installations is a safety concept. It is an exercise
to foresee and predict the error prone zones in the
electrical system or equipment, which may creep
in during operations, maintenance of the electrical
system in the building. An Electrical Audit identifies
and analyses problems/deficiencies which may
creep in the equipment/system while running the
system for a long period. An audit report, thus made
taking care of all such factors and making specific
recommendations, serves as a check list for the
purpose of implementation of recommendation and
eradication of all susceptible short-comings to the
extent of improving safety in the Electrical System.
It has been observed that due to periodical Electrical
Safety Audit in oil sector, awareness towards
electrical hazard among working staff has improved
alot and this has improved electrical system of plants
and terminals and minimized breakdown due to
electrical faults.

@ 4



@&
T & o ™
PDIL

o S & fA= vel il defer wicy ik
T Tl R T By O I8 ek diaR @iy &1
forteror |

o  aEaNUd. & faf= oot feur sl efifFat w venfig
golfdgdel SUBRVI @I IR (Al BT Jeid |

o  IEandivud. @ A= do fIur &k effqal w arfehT
YUl DI IRITORIETT |

o WIHAETA I ISINATA 1 Reer f$hoq
ERT Us JgAIfad qarg vet FRleror voidl & &g d o
erag fovar T ¥

* TWWWWTA & da <fiFal, feul, vadish defom
el T HTER H U UIS oAt gfder &1 o
golfdedol TETIRET |

NIIMETA. P TASIE ARl Bl IR & &
AT I UG I 8T & Bg UEDI gRT U AT T
2| NIIAETA. Bl Ihhl P Bl $hls § Th 5000
THST 3R TH 15000 TAC! USHRDIR ST RS b B
e ok RepHraiT &1 &rf ye= fvar mr 21 fish
faeetl g1 feel ufade™ wyfert e Rerd diuw 203 <&
B TSI fAgeivor &7 B Y i T R

NIAMSTA. BT IH Ugrbfidd fafics, Tmwd &
Jotd—Il wiic § g Ui & fou =) e &
TEd HICTS AT FdeTT &)+ BT drd | we fdar
2 N AR foTue U dfecd SN, dlel gRT
Sd PIel BEss Wic § WUd IR Tiifeedd WiRexl &
foRIeTor 1 B fer T |

¥ v AU, gRT SEd Siedl (@nfsEm) ver o,
gIefoliT Wiic H 8fe ThAR BT UFSIC] 3R BTSST SR B
BT BRI AT TAT|
9 9P HITEAR Wie H golcd 3R BIET WId & D

fordteror 1 3meR feaT B

AR STTS AT, GRT ST HURT RGTEAL ¥ BIESIoM
golcd @ TARICT iR Qe yHTo @ Hrf dfar T4 |

RefR Tged & JifcHce SfegMNidG Whi+ &
WITATg s & ¥, NI SIeMe.ud. & 399 fore sfear fafics,
iRTTaTE; A SN ud, uriud ReEARy: st i
Wua, difca ReEN; 790 §ha], Hald se 9 T,
T, BRI U B H Aheldl U g |

P &

Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001 : 2015 Company

e Inspection of Solar Power Plants being installed
at IOCLs various LPG Bottling Plants and oil
installations.

e Residual Life Assessment of electrical equipments
installed at IOCLs various Oil Depots and Terminals.

e  Audit of earthing system at IOCLSs various Oil Depots
and Terminals.

e  PDIL have been empanelled by Refineries Division of
IOCL as an approved Third Party Inspection Agency.

e  Electrical Audit of HPCLs Oil Terminals, Depots,
LPG Bottling Plants and also LPG Import Facility at
Mangalore.

NDT Services of PDIL has been availed by many
clients in fertilizer industry as well as in Oil & Gas
sector. PDIL has been awarded the job of carrying out
inspection and recommissioning of 1 No. 5000 MT and
1 No. 15000 MT Atmospheric Ammonia Storage Tank at
Kandla Unit of IFFCO. PDIL was also entrusted with the
job of carrying out NDT analysis of Tank VF 203 at Delhi
Aviation Fuelling Station by Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility
Private Limited, New Delhi.

PDIL was also awarded with the job of carrying out
Thickness Measurement survey under NDT Inspection
for the Process Pipings in Methanol-II Plant of Assam
Petro-chemicals Limited, Namrup. M/s Shriram Vinyl &
Chemical Industries, Kota, awarded the job of Inspection
of 4 No. Acetylene Generators installed at their Kota
Carbide Plant.

M/s HPCL awarded the job for carrying out NDT and
Hydro Testing of Horton Sphere at their Jatni (Odisha)
LPG Bottling Plant.

M/s Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited,
Mangalore, placed the order for Statutory Inspection of
Bullets and Horton Spheres at their Mangalore plant.

M/s IOCL entrusted the job of NDT & Statutory
Certification of Hydrogen Bullets at their Mathura
Refinery.

In the specialized field of Automated Ultrasonic
Scanning of Reformer Tubes, PDIL was successful
in getting the AUS jobs from M/s Linde India Ltd.,
Aurangabad; M/s IOCL, Panipat Refinery; M/s BPCL,
Kochi Refinery; M/s IFFCO, Kalol etc.




. defele ydmr:

fa<i ¥ 2017—18 & SR, hefore BT AP 267.
72 ARG BUY &I, Sdfh fUBe a¥ I8 26,60 ARG HUT
ofl | TAUBTe, fISEqR & & <8R Rive (Tadivd)
I ITYfT BT 693.36 AT HUY BT MM 59 qY IcdTa
& gfspar 7 21

o fhy T R ey B fU Smuay HuH A
PefoRe BT IdIET BRAT NI G| IR § el
gfoRmel & Iod U BRI e YT del by T
D |

S. I a7
©® A

YEIRTSTA o HIAlel, BIgeioM, HaEd THIN,
Asge /AEee, M Agde 3R M dIgdhEe
S Al 85 # FE RSN 9T @ § | GISeIsyd o
TS BT Ulel H ey 9 SR # guR & forg aRmeierE
JATG, SHCAUHH, FeiaT &1 HoHfa W@ & forg fawgd
SO Targ, SiRE SURDY & forw wevdar Red dohe
WIS FIF B JHIIH Aehe AIF T ST S SYARIT
T & oy qer Rome goifray |ard e @1 | '
B H, TERmEva gRT A3Fd Bicargor ffice (TIUHTa)
Pl TG H Hohy JAciHIge AIA nfud #eRd @ forw
IRITSHT Y&e Ha U= @F T8 ¢ |

AEMR® TG
TERMEve o MIRP TEReAT & & H ff o

U 997 o § 3R & HAed B ard Aol & forg
Grogedt g /aer wrEei War] e @ © |
irwarge / gfefafe

TERMETA o bl /SURNTH MR TR BTHI AT hI
B B3 Sffpage R gefafe Yow funfed fey &1 4
Yol ® el € — SIUA ST 9393, 9ft9rd SueRe GaF
Bfted JHoll [IF, AFI IBRWE FIF, IRJHSARI ST
HERY 3R YEREd giau | NSemsyd 7 HAE §SRAT
s U feen fafics, AigoiRar @ o oid eRaIE,
AESIRAT # 3ifwdrse /gfeforfe uRaeHT & IR &g
faga SO Sard + ye @t € |
3ityer &g

gaE #, NIERmETd g 3wy & & fIU delvex
SITHE HRIGH & forv 3wy favmT, wRa WRaR & forg
YU |aTd e @) S &l 2 |

@
1 2 o ™
PDIL

Annual Report 2017-18

D. CATALYST DIVISION:

The sale of catalyst during the FY 2017-18 was Rs
267.72 lakh as compared to Rs 26.60 lakh in the previous
year. Order for supply of Low Temperature Shift (LTS)
Catalyst of Rs. 693.36 lakh from NFL, Vijaipur was under
production during the year.

Your company continues to produce catalysts against
the orders received. Sufficient orders could not be secured
due to tough competition in the market.

E. OTHER SECTORS

> Chemicals

PDIL has undertaken many projects in Chemical
Sector such as Methanol, Hydrogen, Methyl Amines,
Sulphuric Acid, Phosphoric Acid, Nitric Acid, Sodium
Nitrite/Nitrate, Ammonium Nitrate and Ammonium Bi-
Carbonate. PDIL has provided Consultancy Services to
GAIL for GSU & GPU modification job at Pata, Detailed
Engineering Services to GSFC, Vadodara for Methanol
Plant, Basic Design Engineering for Ammonium Sulphate
Plant & Ammonia Liquor Treatment Plant of Rourkela
Steel Plant at Rourkela for Shriram EPC. PDIL has recently
rendered Project Management Services for setting up a
Sulphur Bentonite Plant at NFL, Panipat.

Infrastructure

PDIL has established credentials in Infrastructure
Sector also and has provided PMC Services/ Review
Consultancy Services for Housing project of the Ministry
of Defence.

Offsite and Utilities

PDIL has executed many Offsites and Utilities packages
on Turnkey / EPCM basis for a number of clients. These
packages include DM Water Plants, Effluent Treatment
Plants, Captive Power Plants, Material handling Plants,
Atmospheric Ammonia Storage and Handling facilities.
PDIL has also rendered Detailed Engineering Services for
offsites / utilities of an Expansion Project at Port Harcourt,
Nigeria for M/s Indorama Eleme Petrochemicals Ltd,
Nigeria.

Pharma Sector

Presently, PDIL is rendering PMC Services to Deptt. of
Pharmaceuticals, Govt. of India, for Cluster Development
Programme for Pharma Sector.
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Heavy Water Plant

During the financial year PDIL secured an assignment
of providing Engineering Services Consultancy for Basic
Engineering and preparation of DBR and DPR for setting
up A) Single stream & B) Twin Stream Hybrid Technology
Based Heavy Water Plant (HWP) at existing / new location
for M/s Heavy Water Board, Mumbai

F. TECHNO - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY /
DETAILED PROJECT REPORT:

One of the major activities of PDIL continued to be
preparation of Pre-Feasibility Report (PFR)/ Techno-
Economic Feasibility Report (TEFR)/ Detailed Feasibility
Report (DFR)/ Detailed Project Report (DPR).

In the current Financial Year, PDIL has secured
following assignments:

e Consultancy Services for Techno-Commercial
Feasibility Study for Petcoke gasification based

Ammonia project at Paradip for IOCL, New Delhi

e  DFR preparation for setting up of Catalyst Plant at
Panipat Refinery for IOCL, New Delhi

e  Preparation of BFR for 1500 MTPD Ammonia
Plant at Taloja, Maharashtra for M/s Performance
Chemiserve Pvt Ltd, Pune

e  Preparation of PFR for setting up C2M project
through Coal Gasification route at Dankuni Coal
Complex (DCC), West Bengal, India for CIL, Kolkata

of Techno
Report for supply of Piped Cooking Gas to various

e  Preparation Economic Feasibility
Bhojanalaya / Refreshment units of Shrine Board
operational on the track leading to Holy Shrine of
Mata Vaishno Devi Ji for Shri Mata Vaishno Devi

Shrine Board, Katra

e  Preparation of Bankable Feasibility Report (BFR)
for setting up 1000 MTPD Technical Ammonium
Nitrate (TAN) complex at Paradeep, Odisha for M/s
Smartchem Technologies Ltd., Mumbai

e  Techno Economic Feasibility Study for revamping of
AN melt section of ANP plant for RCE Trombay
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G. TECHNICAL AUDIT- SSP PLANTS

PDIL continues its engagement by Department of
Fertilizers (DoF), Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers,
Government of India for providing services of Techno
Commercial Audit of Single Super Phosphate ( SSP)/ DAP
plants.

NEW ACTIVITIES

e PDIL is presently rendering Detailed Engineering
Services for “Transmix’ Project at IOCL Mohanpura,
Jaipur at terminal point of Koyali-Sanganer Pipeline
(KSPL). The technology has been developed by IOCL
for separation of various petroleum products mixed
during transmission.

e PDIL is empanelled with leading banks like State
Bank of India, UCO Bank, Canara Bank, Karnataka
Bank Ltd, Syndicate Bank, Tamilnad Mercantile Bank
Ltd., Bank of Maharashtra and Union Bank of India
as Lenders’ Independent Engineer (LIE) / Techno
Economic Viability Consultant. PDIL has been
appointed as LIE (Lender’s Independent Engineer) by
State Bank of India (SBI) for following projects:

e 5 MMTPA Greenfield land based RLNG terminal
project at Chhara Port, and

e RLNG Terminal project at Kamarajar Port, Ennore.

e AsanLIE, PDILis rendering Professional Engineering
& Consultancy services to Lender (SBI) by way of
providing following services:-

e Project review & assessment
e Construction Monitoring & performance testing

e Certification of Achievement of Project Commercial
Operation Date (COD) and Operations monitoring.

e PDIL has also rendered consultancy services at
New Mangalore Port. PDIL has provided Detailed
Engineering & Procurement Assistance Services
for upgradation of Fire Fighting system on Berth to
handle VLGCs as per the OISD guideline.

e PDIL has secured assignment for rendering Third
Party Inspection services for rural electrification at 10
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districts in Bihar under Deen Dayal Upadhayay Gram
Jyoti Yojna (DDUGJY) erstwhile RGGVY from South
Bihar Power Distribution Company Ltd. PDIL was
also awarded assignment for rendering Inspection
services for Rural electrification at 8 districts in Odisha
under DDUGJY by Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd.
PDIL has also secured the assignment of Inspection of
material procured under material management unit
of Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd., Varanasi.

e Asadiversification effort, PDIL has submitted various
proposals to Nuclear Power Corporation of India
Limited (NPCIL). PDIL is also in talks with Heavy
Water Board for its upcoming projects.

ERP

As part of the ERP implementation extensive in-
house training was imparted to employees at all locations
across all levels.

Presently, ERP SAP ECC 6.0 implementation is in
existence on various locations of PDIL on the following
SAP modules:

Project Management

Construction Management

Procurement Management

Inspection and Expediting

Materials Management including Stores Management

Plant Asset Maintenance

®

®

®

®

®

®

@ Financial & Accounts Management

® Quality Management

® Human Resource Management and Payroll
@ Costing/Budgeting & MIS

® Document Management through SAP ERP
® Reporting

IT INITIATIVES

All the locations of PDIL are using SAP ECC 6.0 for
accessing the central data and application repository by
use of various modules.

Various locations of PDIL are connected through
secured VPN to access data & application. The VPN and
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internet facility has been upgraded from RF Technology
to latest optical fiber technology with higher connectivity
speed which is more reliable and efficient.

The engineering departments are using latest
version of Software like Aspen plus, Synergee, PHA-Pro,
Primavera, AutoCAD, Micro-station, Staad-Pro, Caesar,
PV-Elite, MicroProtol, ETAP. SP3D software is being
used for modeling simulation. AFT Fathom and AFT
Fathom software have been added to Process Engineering
software list. PDIL has also procured RCDC software
for Civil engineering department. The hardware facility
has been augmented with addition of 1 large format (A0
size), multi Function plotter.PDIL intranet site has been
redesigned with new look and feel. The intranet site serves
as a central repository of information. The servers running
critical application and enterprise software for mail, Spam
and security management has already been upgraded.
The present server uses virtualization technology. The
file storage capacity is being increased to provide for
increasing data.

The upgrade of network backbone along with cabling
work toupgrade to CAT6A isunderway. PDIL is committed
to keep its manpower abreast with latest technology
and software through training and up-gradation. The
engineering team is equipped with availability of latest
technology and tools to ensure efficient handling of
business challenges.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT
CERTIFICATION STATUS

SYSTEM / 1ISO

a) The Quality Management System of PDIL was
approved by Vexil Business Process Services in
accordance with the requirements of ISO 9001:2015
and the certificate of compliance to ISO 9001:2015 has
been issued which is valid upto 25" September 2018.
The scope of PDILs Services certified for compliance
of the requirements laid down in ISO 9001:2015 is as

below:
e Project  Management and  Engineering
Consultancy  (including Project Feasibility

Studies & Market Research, Design, Engineering,
Procurement, Construction and Commissioning,
Third Party Design Review, Inspection, Non-
Destructive Testing, Life Expectancy Assessment
of Plants) and other allied services;
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e Environmental Engineering, Laboratory
Works for carrying out R&D Works, Testing
of Environmental Parameters and Analysis of

Samples of Rock Phosphate & Products SSP; and

e Manufacture & Supply of Catalysts and Providing
associated Technical Services.

b) OHSAS 18001:2007 certificate is valid upto 25%
September 2018.

Occupational Health & Safety Management System
which meets the requirements laid down in OHSAS
18001:2007, with the following scope:

e Environmental Laboratory Testing Services

c) PDIL complies with National Accreditation Board for
Certification Bodies (NABCB) Accreditation Criteria
for Inspection Bodies and is accredited in accordance
with International Standard ISO/IEC 17020:2012
as Type ‘C’ Inspection Body to provide Inspection
Services as per Approved Scope of Accreditation
described in Schedule I and from its Office(s)
described in Schedule II.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Your Company believes that Human Resources are
the main critical assets for any Company especially a
consultancy organization which has “knowledge” as
the major asset. With a view to preserve the knowledge
acquired by individuals and the Company over the last
many years of its existence, your Company encourages
sharing of knowledge between experienced manpower
and younger groups. In the ever increasing challenging
scenario, timely delivery of quality services with HUMAN
TOUCH will be the only key differentiator.

During the year under review, Company has also
taken steps to strengthen its manpower base mainly at
junior & middle levels, which time to time gets depleted
due to attrition / retirement. Online engagement on
contract basis has been done successfully. We were able to
recruit the personnel within a short span of 1-2 months.
Through this system, keeping transparency in the process,
declaration of results of the candidates shortlisted for
personal Interview and the final selection list is also being
made available on the PDIL website for information of all
concerned.
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PDIL has identified training as an integral tool for
skill and personality development for the officers &
employees of the company at all locations across all levels.
Training was also arranged on soft skills by inviting well
known professionals from leading management institutes
& business centers. In addition to in-house training,
employees were also nominated from time to time for
attending external Training/ Workshop and Seminar.

Due care is being taken to employ and facilitate women
employees. In PDIL, women employees are getting fair
chances in promotion, if eligible and presently holding
the positions also in E7 & E6 grades. Electrical, Planning
& MR and Computer Department of PDIL, Noida and
Mechanical Department of PDIL, Vadodara are being
headed by a female employee & in Vigilance department,
a female employee is next below to Chief Vigilance Officer.

FACILITIES TO SC/ST/OBC EMPLOYEES:

Facilities viz. applicable relaxation in age & percentage
of marks is being extended to SC/ST/OBC candidates
at the time of recruitment in line with Govt. Guidelines
issued from time to time.

MANPOWER

The category wise details of employees as on
31.03.2018 is as follows:-

31.03.2018 I HUN—dR HHANRAT BT AT A=l & EMPLOYEE STRENGTH AS ON 31.03.2018
T - (REGULAR INCLUDING MANAGEMENT TRAINEES)
31.03.2018 ®! HHATRAT FT G Category Total MIP SC ST OBC
(use= ufdieg wfea fFrafa sdam) A 324 47 17 66
foft ol THIMSW | 3o | 3rororm | Iifa B 22 4 1 5
® 324 47 17 66 c p 3 0 0
9 22 4 1 5 . . . .
- 6 3 0 0 D Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 I I I I Total 352 54 18 71
BRI 352 54 18 71
MOU PERFORMANCE
TH.3M.y, frsares

yeed ¥ fRmEe @ qras@, AUdl Ul T 2016—17 &
forg “sfiaa”” THeIR T U @l © <iR a¥ 2017—18 &
o aga sred ST A Smer 7|

In spite of decline in performance, your company was
able to secure “Fair” MOU rating for the year 2016-17. We
expect to secure MOU rating of “ Very Good” for the year
2017-18.
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Signing of MOU for the year 2018-19 by Smt. Bharathi S. Sihag,
Secretary Fertilizers and Shri D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah, D(F)
& CMD (Addl. Charge)

adadl

U ATDAT Pl GGG BRI BT Yeb Aeedqul AT A
2| BU H Adeal Gadl Tfafafdrn, gdada gear iR
YIRS & R BT Ferdl © | i $rafery, AeT 4
O IR FAdhdT ABRT HUH & Faddl YAl &

foru foder, grfesia s wideror ue ovd 2 |

AADdT & Y BT H W U B Addbdl Gadl FTall
P e H SMTHGAT Ha AR fFfl R /IR
@ e § gad / Rierad urd w2 |

VIGILANCE

The company considers vigilance to be an integral part
of the management function. Vigilance activities enhance
the level of managerial efficiency and effectiveness in
the organization. The Chief Vigilance Officer posted at
Corporate Office, Noida, provides direction, guidance and
supervision over the vigilance efforts of the company.

One of the primary functions of the vigilance is to
spread awareness with reference to vigilance issues and
solicit information / complaints regarding any malpractice
/ corruption.

Vigilance Awareness Week celebration at PDIL Noida

W drEfedl ¥ AfeE 918 oY Y E, R R srens
Td gy e, g aasdl AN, Sl ddaed
SN 3R TYl, AR, Wy IRgRI & A, Ud
R B R ey v 8, R yemR &1 Rrerd o
ST epall 2 |

p &

Vigilance Awareness Week celebration at PDIL Noida

Notice Boards have been installed in all offices
displaying the name, address and contact numbers of
Chairman & Managing Director, Chief Vigilance Officer,
Central Vigilance Commission and SP, CBI, Local branch
who can be contacted for complaints of corruption.




PUHT H Fabar BT & g, A= 9T 67 Srivomel
¥ 3rfdrs UG, srEear SR gEdr oM W ¥ 39
fafr=r wfafafdal W™ o Tor & St 21 addar
T goTeft § YR W g a1 B, MR TTE srufdrd g

2, 981 GRS HRATS Bl & |

AR/ SRTH /SISl gRT FHd—990 TR ST
feenfocer srgure™ & oY yde & =9 | @Y Wi € |
I8 gHRed fear Siar § b @ smesl & fdavor 3fiR
oATs s fAfder ufhar &1 devse R uef¥a fhar
WY &R fAfaem gaengdl & W didd W+ yefia
DI U | Galg, 2012 H Y& dI TS UMY YoITell
TR, 2012 W YA, ARA ARPR & AT arda
S AEH Y BRI DT S & 8 | Fbdl JgAfT AR
Hufr faarell w_e1 &1 vqedl & Aregd 9 wraifad faan
ST 8T 8 |

qY¥ 2017—18 & G, HI-T 7 30.10.2017 H 04.11.2017
TH AADAT STTRGA] ACE A9RT | 39 99 &7 favy
g faoq — @ W 3fear or| 39 @ @& <R,
qrSemsyd @ faft=r gfel #§ fdy gfoafan amn
o= TR T 3o fhar Tar| 39 SrRismH |
HHAIRAT = S AT § 9T o |

{1 dU®

JMUBHI HUI, J8aR oI GUdb g0 WG &b Hged Bl
I B 1 MINIMSTA. ¥ BicASoR TR 3ifh
A (UHURME), TS vFe BicalgoR  UAIRITeH
(CMEUBU), whiU, U dESdd o Uadluud,
DR, M B IR,/ AT H 9HIERT I
TAT 3 HHATRAT 3=
NERICI R G IPA RG]
P AERI /A e |
II—9 X ATRd/
gt fear| qrSrars.
Tl 7 I9—9Fg TR QI
P faf= uwarg uf3erei
H dedl o g Wor
IR AER /I e |
Th-bl U3 UG Bl
ST <@T © | 3MUd! Hu=l
T A a9, Torhs faas,

Sh D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah, D(F) & CMD (Addl.
Charge) addressing PDII family on Republic Day.
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The thrust of vigilance in the company is to bring
about greater transparency, integrity and efficiency in
the functioning of various departments. To achieve
this objective, careful watch is kept on various activities
through regular inspections, scrutiny of property returns
and other suitable measures. Vigilance department focuses
on system improvement and appropriate corrective
actions are taken wherever necessary.

Guidelines issued, from time to time, by CVC / DOF
/ DoPT are brought to the notice of the Management
for compliance. It is ensured that details of work orders
and tendering process adopted are posted on the
website and also tenders are posted on CPP portal of
NIC. E-procurement initiated since July 2012 is being
implemented through CPP Portal of NIC, GOI from
October 2012 onwards. Processing of Vigilance clearance
and Filling up of Property Returns are being implemented
through SAP.

During the year 2017-18 company observed Vigilance
Awareness Week from 30.10.2017 to 04.11.2017. The
theme of this year was “My Vision Corruption Free India.”
During this period, Essay Competition, Slogan writing
were organized in different units of PDIL. Employees in
large numbers participated in these programmes.

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Your Company recognizes the importance of
maintaining good Public relations. PDIL participated in
seminar/ conferences of Fertilizer Association of India
(FAI), International Fertilizer Association (IFA), SCOPE,
Process Licensors like HTAS, KBR etc and nominated /
sponsored its Employees at
the seminars/ Conferences
of other

institutions / Bodies from

technical

time to time. PDIL continues
to send technical articles
to  various  prestigious
journals of the Country and
present technical Papers in
seminars/ conferences from
time to time. Your Company
issued media briefs & news
on celebration of Yoga Day,

Republic Day, Independence
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ST & ATATST TAT 31T HeedqUl Jel Oi¥ aTfies giRorH,
Heayul ARERI, F™eHl salfe H ARIERT & SR
R NS IR TG FHER IR BT | Mt Hu+r o
III—THT R J99TSc Dl IfEdT fbar & o f& wrd
JTedl AR AN & [y & gebd o | dadlse W
AR AR, o @B MR /T @ gRATSTRI,
Feerd ded, & dRIGRI, Reh ual, Ffder g,
dE TSN, RIS, SAMNS & e H BN
U P ST FDhdl 8 | 3MUYD! HU=T = ATl HfSAT B
SN $1 9edl g UIRT & A1 1 A a8 © AR
31T ATHT T U Ugd G & fofg U1 BIAgD U
ft aReT fohar 21

TSTHTYT BT BIIT~ag-

JMIBH! HUAl, WRA ARBR P ISTATST i & fafd=
IUSE} & TR MR HRITIT & forv RO e+ yamT
P &I | AU HU, dIffih BrAhH AR PR g
RT ORI Y G f3&1 & Wil 9T & forg o= a1
feenfaden &1 dred &Rt 21 e 1 favr # 2D
@ TANT Bl dgEl o B
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Day, Rajbhasa Pakhwara etc and on other important
matters like Annual results, participation in important
seminars, conferences, etc. Your Company updated its
website from time to time, which is an interface with
prospective clients and public at large. The website
provides information on its activities, projects executed/
being executed, Board of Directors, Key Executives, job
vacancies, tenders notices, vendor registration, RTT etc.
Your Company also kept abreast with the increasing trend
of use of social media and launched its Facebook page to
widen its reach to common man.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Your Company continued its intensive efforts to
propagate and implement various provisions of Official
Language Policy of the Government of India. The Company
complies with annual programme and instructions and
all other directives issued by the Government regarding
progressive use of Hindi. For promoting the use of

Hindi in all the Departments,

forg & <aor o1 g
T & folw degexi H
Rl dffedaR Srel T
21 ufafes R gfer
IR ofafed & e
BTHBIST | TN BT dTed
IS T T IrdIa
PG S T HHATRAT
B SHA ERT WO o
BT 21 14 RideR, 2017

Hindi software has been
loaded to facilitate Hindi
typing. Every day a Hindi
Suvichar and a translation
of English word used in day
to day official work in Hindi
is being done and being sent
through e-mail to all the
employees. ‘Hindi Pakhwara
was organized during the
period from14th September

¥ 30 fAdaR, 2017 d® WMWTa}WWWWWWW

T gxgarer ST o

7| ey oRkee, dohial are gfaaifan, &£ fewor
SN fafT wrdeA JmNfra fhy Ty o | MRSy @
WSS Fodd & AawIsl & folu Q1 HRiHH JAqT 31y
TeARRI g oAl ¥ BEFl ofge U] 1 smarfora
DI IS | TEATS B IR b HIILTAT BT Ao fHar
IR Tl e gRT feT—ufdfed & srie o
H 31 SHUT/3Agare & A= o8 /3—<od & SUIM
@ IR ¥ fIRAdRYdd IR0 fQam T | AR aSIesT
P B B4 H ISP dR b folg TR IS

P &

2017 to 30th September 2017.
Various programmes such as
Essay writing, Extempore Quiz, Hindi Noting Writing
competition, Hindi Quizzes, Antakshari, Workshop
were organized. Two programmes such as Extempore
Quiz, & Story Writing from Picture competitions were
also organized for the Members of PDIL Ladies Club. A
workshop was organized during the Pakhwara in which
senior Director Technical of Rajbhasha Department of
Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India gave
full demonstration of using various tools/e-tools for
Hindi typing/translation for day to day official work.
Our Vadodara office got first prize for excellent work
in Hindi by Town Official Language Implementation




PRFIT AR gRT Yo RER Y& [Har T |
YIERMSTS & HHATRAT W TR IISTHIYT BRI afafa
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Y & BRI &) e yofa Rare &1 fageyor s+
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Committee, Vadodara. PDIL employees have also won
prizes in various competitions organized by Town Official
Language Implementation Committee.

After analyzing the progress report of implementation
of Official Language Policy in PDIL for the quarter ending
31.03.2018, the Deptt. of Fertilizers, Government of India
has appreciated the progress made by the company vide
their letter dated 16.04.2018 addressed to the CMD.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook for Fertilizer industry and
for PDIL looks encouraging owing to various policy
announcements and revival of closed fertilizer units.

Government of India has undertaken process for
revival of closed FCIL & HFCL units. Hindustan Urvarak
& Rasayan Ltd. (HURL), a Joint Venture of M/s Indian
Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL), Coal India Limited
(CIL), National Thermal Power Corporation (NTPC) and
Fertilizer Corporation of India Ltd. (FCIL) )/ Hindustan
Fertilizer Corporation Ltd. (HFCL) has been incorporated
for setting up of gas based 2200 MTPD Ammonia and
3850 MTPD Urea Fertilizer Plants at Sindri (Jharkhand),
Gorakhpur (Uttar Pradesh) & Barauni (Bihar). PDIL has
been entrusted by HURL for providing following services
for all the three projects:

e  Pre-Qualification of LSTK Contractors.

e Consultancy services for soil investigation and
topographical survey.

e Environmental clearance.

e Preparation of ITB Document & Evaluation of Bids
for selection of LSTK Contractor and Preparation of
DER.

e Post award PMC services for LSTK Ammonia-Urea
& Non LSTK Packages and EPCM services for Non
Packages.

In addition, Talcher Fertilizers Ltd. (TFL), a joint
venture of four major Public sector Units - M/s GAIL
(India) Limited, M/s Rashtriya Chemicals & Fertilisers
Ltd. (RCF), M/s Coal India Ltd. (CIL) and M/s Fertilizer
Corporation of India Ltd. (FCIL), has decided to build
a world class Coal based Fertilizer Complex at Talcher,
Odisha. The Complex will consist of Coal Gasification
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Plant, Ammonia & Urea Plants along with offsite & Utility
Plants. Coal Gasification Plant, Ammonia & Urea Plant
and Coal based Captive Power Plant are proposed to be
executed on LSTK basis and off sites & Utilities on EPCM
Basis. PDIL has been retained as Consultant by TFL for
providing consultancy services for selection of LSTK
Contractors and preparation of DFR. PDIL is likely to
be awarded the job of rendering Project Management
Consultancy (PMC) services for LSTK scope and
Engineering, Procurement &Construction Management
(EPCM) services for offsites & utilities.

PDIL is also exploring more opportunities in
rendering Engineering Consultancy services for Energy
Saving Projects being undertaken by various Fertilizer
Companies like NFL, KRIBHCO etc. PDIL is looking
forward to receive foreign assignments from various
clients like JIFCO, OMIFCO, Indorama, etc.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

No such material changes and commitments affecting
Financial position of the company incurred in between
31st March and the date of Board’s Report.

Department of Fertilizers (DOF) vide letter no.
19021/05/2016-FCA dated 27th December 2016 enclosing
therewith OM. EN. 3/21/2016-DIPAM-B dated 11th
November 2016 of DIPAM, Ministry of Finance informed
‘in principle’ approval for strategic disinvestment of PDIL
by Government of India. Transaction Advisor (TA),
Legal Advisor (LA), and Asset Valuer were appointed by
DIPAM/DOEF, Government of India. Process of issue of
Expression of Interest(EOI) has been completed. Request
for Proposal (RFP) and Share Purchase Agreement (SPA)
are in advance stage of finalization by DOF/DIPAM. It
was decided by DOF to hive oft Sindri Land along with
Catalyst Plant from the process of Strategic Disinvestment
of PDIL vide DOF letter no. 19021/05/2016-FCA (Pt.
Vol.3) dated 14th July 2017 enclosing therewith DO letter
no. 19021/05/2016-FCA (Part)(Vol.III) dated 13th July
2017.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

With the strengths in all Engineering disciplines,
PDIL is continuing to make efforts to secure jobs in Civil
Construction & Water and waste water treatment, etc.
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DIVIDEND:

In view of augmentation of funds for future projects
during the year under review, your Directors decided not
to recommend to declare dividend for the year 2017-18.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 6 times during this
financial year under review. The same is disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, the Board consisted of
the following Five Directors:

Whole time Directors

Sh.D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah Director  (Finance) &
Chairman & Managing
Director (Addl. charge
w.e.f08.11.2016)

Non-Executive Directors (Govt.Nominee Directors)

Sh. D.P. Srivastava (E&S),
Department of Fertilizers
(DOF), Government of
India (GOI)

Director (Fert), DOEGOI

Director

Sh. Prabhas Kumar
Non-Official Directors
Dr. Kunal Ghosh
Sh. Bhojaraj CN
COMPOSITION OFAUDIT COMMITTEE:

The detailed disclosures have been made in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance of section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the
applicable Accounting Standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
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to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities. A case of fraud / financial irregularities
has been detected and reported to the Board during
the year under review;

(d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a
going Concern basis; and

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required, pursuant to section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract
of Annual Return in MGT 9 is a part of this Annual Report
(Annexurel).

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s M D Gujrati & Company, Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi has been appointed by the C&AG of India as
Statutory Auditor of your Company for the financial year
2017-2018.

AUDITOR’S QUALIFICATION, OBSERVATION &
EXPLANTATORY STATEMENT:

The Auditor’s observations are self explanatory
and some other auditor’s qualified observation and
management replies is annexed as Annexure-2

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Secretarial Audit is not applicable to company.
However, your company has adhered to strict compliances
of all laws applicable to the company.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST RECORDS/ AUDIT
COMPANIES (COST RECORDS AND AUIT) RULES,
2014.:

During the year under review, your Company is not
covered under the ambit of Cost Audit.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

As the Company’s predominant operations do not
involve in any significant manufacturing or processing
activities, the particulars as per the Companies (Disclosure
of Particularsin the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules,
1988 regarding conservation of energy and technology
absorption, are not applicable. The particulars regarding
expenditure and earnings in foreign exchange are given in
item no. 49 of the notes to Financial Statements.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS:

No significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the company’s operations in future.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OFINTERNALFINANCIAL
CONTROLS:

External audit firms are appointed as Internal
Auditors. Internal controls are continuously evaluated by
the management and Internal Auditors. Findings from
internal audits are reviewed regularly by the management
and corrective actions and controls to maintain proper
accounting, monitoring economy and efficiency of
operations are put in place wherever necessary.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS:

The Company has duly complied with the provision of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and it has taken:

Secured Loans: Nil

Unsecured Loans: Nil

Current/Non-Current Nil

Investments:

Guarantees: Corporate Guarantee for
Rs.5.02 crore have been
given to HURL.

Securities Extended: Nil

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

PDIL is committed to effective management of risks
across the organization. During the year under review,
your Directors have approved” Risk Management Policy”.
Risk Management Committees are formed at Corporate
and Unit level.
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DIGITAL INDIA INITIATIVES :

Online payments, e-tendering process, online
invitation of applications for recruitment process are few
of the major activities taken under Digital India initiatives.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

The Company have Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) & Sustainability Policy. It has been doing CSR
activity since the year 2007. CSR is a Company's
commitment to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing
the interests of its stakeholders. This commitment is
beyond statutory requirements. PDIL has a Board Level
Committee, which decides the activities to be taken up
under CSR and ensures its execution as per the CSR policy

In view of operating losses since last few years, no
funds were allocated to be spent under CSR activity for
the year 2017-18 in terms of relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and Government Guidelines on CSR
activities.

Annual Report on CSR:

Annual Report on CSR in the prescribed format is
enclosed as Annexure-3

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Your Company, being a Govt. Company, compliances
for inter related party transactions is not applicable.

CORPORATEGOVERNANCEANDSHAREHOLDERS
INFORMATION:

Your company has been continuously making efforts
towards raising standards of Corporate Governance.
PDIL is expected to get “Excellent’ grading for the year
2017-18. A Report on Corporate Governance is annexed
at Annexure-4.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

As part of the Directors Report, a Management
Discussion Analysis Report is annexed at Annexure-5.

Certificate from the Company Secretary in Practice
confirming the compliance with the conditions of DPE
Guidelines is attached to this report as Annexure-6.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for
the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
The confirmation of compliance of the same is obtained
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from all concerned on annual basis. All Board members
and Senior Management Personnel have given their
confirmation of compliance for the year under review. A
declaration duly signed by CMD is annexed to this report
as Annexure-7.

COMMENTS OF C&AG

The review of Annual Accounts of your company
for the year 31st March, 2018 by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (C&AG) under Section 143(6)
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of this report
as Annexure-8.C&AG has given nil comments.

THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

In consonance with the spirit of Right to Information
Act, the Company has created necessary mechanism as
required under the Act. The Public Information officers
and an Appellate Authority are effectively responding
to the requests and appeals of the Applicants. The name
of all CPIO/Appellate Authority/APIOs is displayed on
the Company’s website. During the year 61 applications
and 17 appeals were received and the information was
provided to the applicants within the prescribed time
limit. Online quarterly returns are being regularly filed at
Central Information Commission’s website. Provision of
receipt of online application has been implemented in the
company as per Government guidelines.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2014:-

Pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act,2013, your company confirms that no
complaint/ case has been filed/received/pending during
the year 2017-18.

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY OF MICRO AND
SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSES) ORDER, 2012:

Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small
Enterprises notified by the Govt.of India, under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
which came into effect from 1st April, 2012 mandates that
at least 20% of the total annual procurement of goods and
services shall be made by the CPSEs from MSEs. Within
this mandated percentage, a sub target of 4% procurement
is to be made from MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs.

@) <4
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Your Company being a Design Engineering & Project
Management Consultancy Organization has received
exemption from the purview of the above said order vide
Ministry of MSME, Government of India letter F.No.
21(9)/2017-MA Pt.1 dated 06th June, 2018.

INDUSTRY BASED DISCLOSURES AS MANDATED
BY THE RESPECTIVE LAWS GOVERNING THE
COMPANY NBFC, HOUSING COMPANIES ETC.

Your company being an Engineering Consultancy
Company, all applicable industry based laws disclosures
has been reported.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company strictly adheres to the compliance of
Secretarial Standards.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors sincerely acknowledge the continued
cooperation, guidance and support received from
Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, other Ministries,
Indian Embassies, State Governments, Banks, Statutory
Auditor, Comptroller and Auditor General of India, DPE
and thank all of them for reposing faith in the company.

Your Directors also wish to put on record their
gratitude to esteemed clients from both the public and
private sector and also the foreign clients who have
provided support and encouragement by way of awarding
valued assignments.

The Board also recognizes the participation and
contribution of the employees of PDIL and their family
members whose consistent efforts have paved the way for
the good performance of the company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: Noida
Date: 17/09/2018
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ANNEXURE-1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on31.03.2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

D | Aemg 74140411978 STITNME028629
CIN U74140UP1978G0I1028629
i) | o R
Registration Date 07.03.1978
i) | B @7 M Holded U Saauie 3fear fafics
Name of the company Projects & Development India Ltd.
V) | ol @y ot /Su—srft IR AR & T Wit @ wgde foafice wu
Category/ sub category of the company Private Limited Company-Wholly Owned by Govt.of
India.
V) | SN Srterd @ T 3R e faaRer dIEIeMs U Wad, U—14, Hae—1, TSI 201301 el
Address of the Registered office and contact details LIGG g TR Q)
PDIL Bhawan, A- 14, Sector-1, Noida 201301 Distt.
Gautam Budh Nagar (U.P.)
vi) | g gdeg U ? N
Whether listed company No
Vi) | REGR T SRR Toie, M Big &), $ M, U1 | oF] Tl
e v N.A.
Name, address and contact details of Registrar and Transfer
agent, if any

IL U & o AEQdid® fharsdn :
B B I AT fhaThe] § BUl & dol cHalaR ol

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE
COMPANY:

10 TR a1 AR BT AT ﬁ’:ﬂﬂw\’ §._ All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total
turnover of the company shall be stated :-
3. T ITG /I BT A AR R0 IS/ HAT3T BT TSR Ble B B ol FIAI BT %
SI.NO. | Name and Description of main products/ NIC Code of the Product/ services % to total turnover of the
services company
U | gohfrifer vd o N.A. 84.01
Engineering & Consultancy
2 Sale of Catalysts defore B I N.A. 3.58
3 Other Income 37 3TY N.A. 12.41

OB
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I SR®, GER$ do G4 $ULRY & fdgwo— 1L PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

. | DU BT A AR gar | WRISTA /SNAS U | RS, GeS / Geaifl ERR aikar &1 % «rF) @83
S.NO | NAME AND ADDRESS OF CIN/GIN HOLDING/ SUBSIDI- % OF SHARES Applicable
THE COMPANY ARY/ ASSOCIATE HELD Section
1 SN T8l N.A.
2 | | | |
v R elRar ded (g 3f¥ad) & gfoerd @ 1v. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share
U A gfaadt R gsit o1 faawon) Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) =it IR TR enRar (i) Category-wise Share Holding
IRGRGBT B AofY ad @ ARA H gRa | af @ 3fqd # eRa | adf & = yforera uRad=
Category of shareholders IR @) HEr W @) wer % change during the year
No. of shares held at the | No. of shares held at
beginning of the year the end of the year
A. YHIeR Promoters - - - - S - -
(1) ¥R Indian
(a) dafea® /fRaraRar - o B N BT B - -
Individual / HUF
(b) % WRBR Central Govt. 172985 | - | - - - - - 172985 100%
(c) I WHR (WRHR) Nl - - | - - |- |- 3N -
State Govt (s)
(d) i@ R Bodies Corp. TANil | - | - - S0 - | Nl -
(e) 9% /fa<ia W9 Banks/FI YNl [ - - - |- |- - TN -
(f) @IS =T Any other ANIl | - - - R I I I I\ 1 -
Y AT Sub total 172985 | - | - | - | - | - | - | 172985 100%
(A) @) (1) (1)
(2) facef Foreign NIl | - | - - - - - | NIl -
(a) TRmRRE — dufaas YNl | - - - |- |- - N -
NRIs- Individuals
(b) a1 — cfeasra TNl | - |- - | -] -] TNl -
Other- Individuals
(¢) 1 99 Bodies Corp. JANIL | - | - 7| T | Nl -
(d) 9@ /fa<ira H¥em Banks/FI TNl | - |- - | -] -] TNl -
(e) @1 34 Any other YNl | - - - |- - | gNi -
SU AT ($) (2) — Nl | - - || |- =N -
Sub total (A) (2):-
gaexl Bl &l IRRETRAT 172985 | - - - - - - | 172985 100%
@)= (@) (1)+(®)(2)
Total shareholding of promoter
(A)=(a)(1)+(A)(2)

» @) I AN
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B widwfie erRenRarseerms Y@ Nil (- - - |- |- |- ¥ENil |-
Public shareholding Institutions
(a) =gl ®€ Mutual Funds INil |- |- |- - |- |- |¥¥Nil |-
(b) 9% /fa<ha G%91 Banks/ FI | YINil |- |- |- - |- |- |I3™Nil |-
(c) = WIPHR Central Govt. TNl - - |- - |- |- |I3™@Nil |-
(d) Y59 ERBR(EIBR) State Govt.(s) | II Nil |- |- |- - |- |- |I™NIl |-
(e) Sussv ysit ffern AN - |- |- - |- |- |3Nil |-
Venture Capital funds
(f) =1 SUfAT Insurance companies | I Nil |- |- |- ST |7 |l |-
(g) UWIATSIME Flls YNl (- - |- - |- |- |I™Nil |-
(h) fac=h Susms gsht fer YNl (- - |- - |- |- |INIil |-
Foreign venture capital funds
(i) s (fafafds &) YNl - - |- - |- |- YNl |-
Others (specify)
U AT (@)(1): Sub total (B)(1) YNl (- - |- - |- |- I Nil
1. Y AT Non Institutions YENil |- |- |- S| |7 YN |-
a) f@ra R Bodies corp. NIl - - |- ST |7 |l |-
i) YR Indian ANl - |- |- - - |- YNl |-
ii) faQeft Overseas NIl |- 7| ST |7 |l |-
b) 3AfdTP Individual YNl (- - |- - |- |- YNl |-
i) 1 T BUY qb @ WAR Yol \RaT | Nl |- |- |- ot |t I -

qrel dafdaed AaxeRe  Invidual

shareholders holding nominal
share capital up I 1 lakh.

i) dafedd IRIRS! gRT1 &G | TINil |- |- |- - |- |- |INIil |-
Y | 3Ifre G AR gSh
BT SR

Individual share holders nominal
share capital in excess of X 1 lakh

NER (ﬁﬁlﬁf@ ﬁ) Others (specify) | Nil |- |- |- ST |7 |l |-
9 I (@) (2 ): Subtotal (B) (2) | Y™ Nil |- |- |- - |- |- |I3™Nil |-
FHd Ardolfe AARATRGT (W) RNl - - |- - |- |- YNl |-

= (@)(1) + (|)(2) Total public
shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C SIERR dun ek & fag (@ Nil |- |- |- - |- |- |yNil |-
JEd gRT &R IR
Shares held by custodian for GDRs
& ADRs.
AHel AT (& + @ + T) 172985 |- |- |- - |- |- | 172985 | 100%
Grand total (A + B + C)
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

(ii) vl &1 JaRenRdr

P | IWAERSD B Y & IRH § ™RETRET ¥ & T A TIRATRET
SI No. qrE Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year
Shareholder’s year
Name
No. of | % of total shares | % of shares | Noof | % oftotal | % of shares | % change in share
shares | of the company | pledged shares shares pledged | holding during the
WRE | SN D Ha |/ encunb | IRRY of the / encunb year
B Y BT / erred B company | /erredto 94 & SR
. to total . Bl & | totalshares | oo Sy ¥
RiEC:1) ufererd shares e _ vt
N T W | B sfererer aRact/
T A @1 yRrer | P R
@& wf Ry
fredy MWRY BT
A BT uferera
wferera
1 aRa @ | 172985 100% - 172985 100% - ¥ Nil
regafer
President of
India
@l Total | 172985 100% - 172985 100% - 7= Nil

(iii) TRl @Y RRIRGr ¥ uRad+
@fe #1¥ uRada 7 @ @ gy faffds W)
a¥ @ ARH H JaRenRar

(iii) Change in promoters’ shareholding

(please specify if there is no change)

o & 3fd A Gfaa JraRenRar

ER|
SI No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative shareholding during the
year
MWRT B HE | PN D A WR | R B | U D fol AN
No. of shares BT ufererd % =T &1 ufaea
of the total shares of | No. of shares | % of the total shares
the company of the company
1 I @ g 172985 100 172985 100
At the beginning of the
year
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gATERT @) AARETRar 7
Ifg /o & IRl @
fafsr ar Seo@ wfga
af ® <kE gfg/
s (srerfa amEesT/
RMETARYT /999 /

e sfad sa@nrf)
Date wise increase/
decrease in promoters
shareholding during

the year specifying the
reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

¥ & 3 4
At the end of the year

172985

100

172985

100

(iv) Y < IRREIRBI BT IRRGRYT de+

(Fraerel, gHrexl aT SNERIR 9 TSIBIR gR&] |

(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders
(other than Directors, promoters and holders of

3R) GDRs and ADRs):
SI No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative shareholding during the
P ad @ IRH H JaRenRar year
s & ofd 7 Hiaa RaRar
g% MY 10 WRE S ERAT | B D G IR | MR DI U B Fol W
IMRERSI =BG No. of shares ®T1 uferera RiEel] &1 ufrera
For each of the top 10 % of the total shares | No. of shares | % of the total shares
shareholders of the company of the company
At the beginning of the 9 Nil I Nil
year
i & gy H
gHIeRT &1 AaReTar §
& & SR B :
e/ W] 78l N.A.

fafdr ar Sedw wfza
T ® <A gfg/
s (srerfa amEesT/
RATATARCT /9199 /
e sfadt s@f):
Date wise increase/
decrease in shareholding
during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase/ decrease
(e.g. allotment/ transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
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PDIL ) S
a¥ & fd A (erafa | I Nil - I Nil -
3o B9 @ fafer,

gfe aof & SIRE 3T

8U B) At the end of the
year (or on the date of
separation, if separated
during the year)

(v) ffeerel  uq 9q9 y§gq  dIfdd &1 (v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial
graReTRdar ded Personnel:

.4 ¥ @& <R IR GRT gy & <R Gid AAR =R
SI No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative shareholding during the
year

UAS s deIr WRT & & | U D FdA W IR BT B D o WA
9@ gdead $iffe & | No. of shares $1 uferera T &1 uferera
g9 o % of the total shares | No. of shares | % of the total shares

For each of the directors of the company of the company
and KMP

T @ YR I Nil - I Nil -
At the beginning of the
year

rReRar ¥ gfg/
U B BRI D o
fafdr arR Sl wfga e el NA-
I & I gfEg/
o1 (3rerfa amge/
AHETARYT /999 /
e sfrad) genfR):
Date wise increase/
decrease in shareholding
during the year spec-
ifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer / bo-
nus/ sweat equity etc):
Td @ Ia H 9 Nil - I Nil -
At the end of the year

(V) RITIXAdT (V)Indebtedness

qHIT /R A Wfed BUHl Bl SRV,
s forg qam < 718 & —

Indebtedness of the company including interest
outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

O
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ST & JAATaT suferya ot ST A FOREIAT
gforqa o= Unsecured loans Deposits Total indebtedness

Secured loans
excluding deposits

fo<ia ad & e

RUTEIdT I NIL [ NIL [ NIL [ NIL

(®) 1 wf¥

Indebtedness at the begin-

ning of the financial year

(a) Principal

(i) <a == fog
3MYacd Interest due
but not paid

(i) @faa s fag
Y qcd Interest
accrued but not due.

AT (14+2+3) Total
(i+ii+iii)

() fa<ha af & SR | 3= Nil 3 Nil 3 Nil 3 Nil

9T gxadr A gRad=

Change in indebtedness
during the financial year

(i) gf& Addition 3= Nil 3= Nil 3= Nil 3= Nil
(iii) 1 Reduction 3= Nil 3[4 Nil 3[4 Nil 3[4 Nil
fraa afRadT Net 3 Nil 3 Nil 3= Nil 3 Nil
change
fa<ig ad & afa 9 3= Nil 3 Nil 3= Nil 3 Nil
T FEAAT (1) el
BRI

Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year (i)
Principal amount

(i) 27 <o f6g evs. |3 Nil 3[4 Nil 3[4 Nil 3= Nil
<« Interest due but not
paid

(iii) Wi s feg 3= Nil 3= Nil 3= Nil 3= Nil
3MY<qcd Interest accrued
but not due

AT (142+3) 3 Nil 3 Nil 3 Nil 3 Nil

Total (i-+ii-+iii)

(VhRReal dem yqE Sififal &1 aiRsiffie (VI)Remuneration of Directors and Key

®. ydu fRee, yoielfas el dur/seEr Managerial Personnel
gde®l &1 uRsfie — A. Remuneration of Managing Director, whole time
directors and /or manager:

I () 4
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I INI hatna Lategory- 2 an . ompan

(vuq @@ #) (X in Lakh)
B9 qiR#fA® &1 faaxer g4y FRee /4 &1L /udas &1 9™ gl R

SI no. Particulars of remuneration | Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total amount

1 HAdhel dd- Gross salary - - -

(a) smaex arfifrm, Sh.D.S.. Sudhakar 24.87
. Ramaiah

1961 & Gs 17(1) &
Jafds g &
IUR da+ Salary
as per provision in
contained in section
17(1) of the Income Tax
act 1961

a) ImaHR AR, - - - - -
1961 & @s 17(2)
iqta srgafeal &1
faavo1 Value of perqui-

sites u/s 17(2) income
tax act 1961

b) 3ma®R 3w, - - - - -
1961 & Es 17(3) B
IR dad D

Jaifd T Profits
in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) income
tax act 1961

2 ¥i® fA®ed Stock option | - - - - -
3 wic fa®wey Sweat equity |- - - - -
4 PHIeE — yfded oM & | - - - - -
wy A

— 3, Soadld BY

Commission
-as % of profit

-others, specify
5 I, HUAT Iedl™ P ]
Others, please specify
I (&) Total (A) 24.87
e & R A
Ceiling as per the Act




. faeeral &1 uiRsfie —

Annual Report 2017-18

B. Remuneration to the directors:

@
9 <t o T

PDIL

(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)

=(1+2)

P qiR#fe &1 faaver f3e® ®T 1 Name of Directors gl R
Sl no. Particulars of remuneration Total amount
1. wWdd fRys qiIs/ | Sf. guna | - - - 1.30
afify @1 deal § oy
Rera &1 @1 e | Dr. Kunal
1. Independent Directors | Ghos
1.30
Fee for attending board/ CIE I RGH
committee meetings. RSN
Sh. C.N.
Bhojaraja
AT Commission - - - - [ NIL
I, HUAT e @ P - - - - I NIL
Others, please specify
IIT (1) Total (1) - - - - 2.60
2. 3 AR IRiUAS - - - - I NIL
e 9IS /afafa
@1 doal § SuRera
BN & Yob
2. Other non executive
directors Fee for at
tending board/ commit
tee meeting
ST Commission - - - - [ NIL
I, HUAT el @ P - - - - 3 NIL
Others, please specify
IA1T (2) Total (2) - - - - 3 NIL
Ir (@)= (1+2) Total (B) | - - - - 1-10

@l ydgdIa RS
Total managerial
remuneration

ferfray @ faifa
fereayd WHET Overall

ceiling as per the act.

@ 4
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other
than MD/Manager/ WTD.

9. uTRsife @1 g9 geer 1fife &1 ™ Key Managerial Personnel
Sl no. fdawor Particulars of
remuneration
1= RieR) | dul wfag qe faa AT Total
Jrfera CEO | Company I CFO
secretary
1 Abd da- IV IV RIVEEE] EIUE R
(®) SmaHR arferferas, N.A N.A N.A N.A
1961 & ©s 17(1)
@ Jidafdse yraeml
P IIJER dd
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provision contained
in section 17(1) of the
income tax act 1961
(@) smaax aftifm, | @ T EIUEEE] BRI RIUEEE]
1961 & G 17(2) N.A N.A N.A N.A
3 Iaid
et &1 faazor
b) value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) Income tax
act 1961
() s Aferfra, RINEE RINEE RINEEE RIVEE]
1961 @ G< 17(3) N.A N.A N.A N.A
P ITUR A4 D
Jqd A
¢) Profits in lieu of
salary u/s 17(3)
Income tax act 1961
2 wie fasea EIUEEE] EIUEEE] IV RILEEE]
Stock option N.A N.A N.A N.A
3 e fd&ed Sweat equity | AT T8 IV RIUEE] EIUER]
N.A N.A N.A N.A
4 FHIRE gt &M & | ARy 81 EILEEE] EILEEE] RILEEE]
T J N.A N.A N.A N.A
— 3, Sodl’™ PN
Commission
-as % of profit
-others, specify
5 3=, HUAT Sel@ B | AN A& @, T R SEL RSl
Others, please specify N.A N.A N.A N.A
ART (&) Total IV IV RIVEE] EIUEE
N.A N.A N.A N.A

p &
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VII Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of offences:

9T Type CAE Jfegra faavor SRITT T IR (3MRST/ SRR e, afs
sfrferasy & Brief gatr/3s [/ Tfieerdl / P13 8 (fAaror )
TRT description T b ATATeTY) Appe?l made'if any
Section of Details of penalty/ Authority [RD/ (give details)
the punishment NCLT/COURT]
Companies compounding fees
Act imposed
$Y-l COMPANY
AT Penalty I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL
€ Punishment [ NIL Y[ NIL Y[ NIL Y[ NIL [ NIL
SR I NIL I NIL 3= NIL I NIL I NIL
Compounding
@) f1Q¥® B. DIRECTORS
AT Penalty I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL
%S Punishment I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL
HaAY [ NIL Y[ NIL Y[ NIL [ NIL [ NIL
Compounding
M) & HIA dldl 3 AHRT C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
AT Penalty Y[ NIL [ NIL Y[ NIL [ NIL Y[ NIL
%S Punishment I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL
da I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL I NIL
Compounding

@ -4
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A2

wifafdre d@r el o1 feufPrar ik gyda9 & S} 2017—18

T 9.

wifafere d@r wiasl o fewforar

Yy§egq & Sy

feudll w@a 36 — gEr @ g /FHRIET @ w0
# AT W & SHT 310355 G $UY B AR A
W 2284 AT TUY @ AR, @ g wd g ® qer fy
U F T4 forg Y O va IR, minfe S aen s
TR & e # el yaR ot gt et e g8 R
SY® gt U 7 BN & FRU EH e Al
PIS T, TAT 31.3.2018 BT A Y & faxi1g fqavvl & ey
# B dTel UG @1 TS @ Hay H el gaR @ fewoh
e o qad |

icrfer ST TE oF SRTRAT & gl Bl JeeaHE &
ey ¥ orr @ fewolt e 36 ¥ yeped fobar AT B

IR WIGAT BT IHIAT / BicelTgoR HRUNIH i1 gfear
fafics @r 4501 dRg $UT B < Fael <aanl & ey §
e /|HET el U T 2 | 39 ey H e gRT Qg Mg

9 A B BicagoR HRUNIE 3if6 sfedr fafics &
AT IS 7T & AT TR AT e © | RITehRoT ey
T df (7.4) @ SfAd oEm B fewel wRem—1 # fhRiw @

IR & IR, HH! F99 Jd BB Faiey ThHeieyd
gV UISIETe B ve W fiv w9 e v
P el N THARIETS gRT B A & | PEenEe g
§ qaiedl B fory THReETe 3 fhRi fRe a1 rar e
o ram & | 9+ qHeE el g e g e fohwe
P T G WRIGRY Tol 77 2 | 37 fHRIC DY agell B
T S A 8 & BRYT ki faRfOR W 39 2 arel
7oE, A 1S &, 3T ey T far o Jad 2 |

TGN foaT T ¥ET 2 |

T | JRRIT a9 2011 § 980 gl B §IRT AT
IR W 2607 G ¥ & I $ Ui WG | 37T B
TR & TR, <7a1 &l FuRfd ¥, &1 I8 gidad &
# et B fob a1 SR I aRad H < T 3T TR |

o o femelt @ 36 @ wry ufed fewft www 1 @
qEd ofEl T Fa1 3 @ oaR, fUed a¥ 4 @@ & fd
Q3T / TTGETT BT oRITehRYT T ST &7 2 |

AR N7 B IRTUTH 1 AT 3 & ol YTd T fgery =7t
foar o1 9ear ®ife Yo T 9§ & AW g B
faaRor 3R 31 A, 2018 BT HUN W TS dlel NG Bl
SHI el AT & |

SR Y T TR & FTAR, T dfdd a9 | ge
U A 89 & BROT G 5Td T e e o
ST el |

o e RUIE & sjeia ‘@ @ sfavd fdg W .
THIIR. RIS & Fa § T FHanN] & [0 s
facirr arfrafiadrell den aReTd mgax ar U &/ &
T | [l [T §RT ORI S @1 T8 SR Al 22
T, 2018 BT NIAMETA. & Ydedrsd & awer Ruid
TR B TS| Faad A @ RO § BHEAR W o
IRt @1 gt @ 7| 79 9, fiee avf @ wafd aF-<
@ Al H, 39 9§ B A H BIS UG e fawar |

AR AARH FRATS B Ol e & |

30/ —
(3. T, guma )
e Ud ey fAevre
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ANNEXURE-2

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S COMMENTS AND MANAGEMENT REPLIES -2017-18

Para No.

Statutory Auditor’s Comments

Management Replies

1. Note No.36:- As to confirmation /reconciliation of
balances under Trade Receivables amounting to INR
3,103.55 lakh out of which confirmation received INR
22.84 lakh and no confirmation received in respect of
Trade Payable, Loan and Advances taken, Security Deposit
and other Liabilities.

Subject to above confirmation we are unable to comment
on quantum of differences, if any and the extent of its
effect on financial statement for the year ended 31.3.2018.

The confirmation /reconciliation of balances under Trade
Receivables, Trade Payable, Loan and Advances taken,
Security Deposit and other Liabilities has been disclosed
in Note no. 36 to Accounts.

As to non-confirmation /reconciliation of balances
due/ payable to Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited
(FCIL) net amounting of INR 45.01 lakh. As explained
by management some of the quarters belong to PDIL
was leased by FCIL since long back for which rent is also
collected by FCIL. PDIL has not claimed any rent from
FCIL on those quarters. Quantum of rent collected by
FCIL has not been explained by the management, so due
to non-ascertainment of quantum of recovery of rent,
the extent of its effect on financial statement, if any, is
unascertained.

The matter has been taken up with FCIL and the same is
pending for reconciliation. The rent is being accounted for
as per accounting policy no. B (7.4) under Note no. 1 to
Accounts.

Provisions towards expenses of INR 26.07 lakh appearing
in books of account much before from 2011 which were
made by the company on estimation basis. In the absence
of claims as on date we are unable to ascertain whether the
above amount is actually payable or not.

The liabilities/provisions made in previous years towards
expenses are being accounted for as per Accounting Policy
No. 3 under Note no. 1 read with Note no. 36 to Accounts.

Cumulative impact of our observations in paragraphs 1 &
3 is not ascertainable as the management has not made
estimates of their effect on profit/loss for the year as well
as on the assets and liabilities of the Company as on 31st
March 2018.

The Cumulative impact is not ascertainable due to non
confirmation pending reconciliation as explained above.

Point 'x' under Annexure "A" to the Audit Report:- A case
of fraud/financial irregularities was reported against one
of the employee in regard to CSR project and obtaining
of Donation Certificates for availing personal Income
Tax benefits. The Vigilance Department has carried
out detailed investigation and submitted their report to
management of PDIL on March 22, 2018. The Report of
vigilance department has confirmed the allegations made
against the employee. Since the transaction pertains to
earlier years, it has no impact on profit for the year.

Based on the Report of Vigilance Department, necessary
action is being taken as per applicable rules of the
Company.

(D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah)
Chairman & Managing Director

@ 4
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TIP3

qdIs @l a8 2017—18 @1 Ruid ¥ Infia fev oM
@ v dRuRe amifve g1ica g afafaferay
R 9iff§e Ruid

el o 4arell gyearfad gq9a  gfRArsHEmLn
g7 drRimal ® Gférg foaver 9fed sRuUR<
e iRl & 9w 4 e a1 Aifa
3R dRUR<T GEfoIe <l @ e § ifa
IR gRAISRN a1 srRfes® & favu d9—fas
BT ¥

ST, U fRaER®l & fRdl o1 e # I@d gu,
3, |rEISTe T qaieReiig gt ¥ U BRURE
ARG Sl & Add Yared & oy aa-dg 2 | I8
ERRECE dure T¥@l W BSd] © | 8, HIRURS
AT ST, ¥ fddrd 3 e WY I IS §U & |
PRURE ARG IR BT RIRGR RIgeRY T
A A gea fHar AT 7§ SR gD Ugd AW Td
ARG dedl & YdIdRoT ddb © | Qigdlel §, g9
Tfafafl @1 "aq afoeaedl o P ATl
Tl & w9 H <@ I DI SMAvIdGdl g1
|9 2007 W PHRURS AHISTH <1 TRl | JL

S T

HH P HRURS AMIfoie <ifiid &1 Aifa
fr=ferfaa Rigral w smenRa 2:

o WINEU 7 HRURS FMISIh STl bl 370
I b Gl b wY H ORI B IR 39
S, Afae gonferal den Aadq gewd el &
PIRITIT AR THIBIOT b AEgH o, (T BARDT
P de™) b oy o & o AR fAaRe 4 qerd
B U T

® HRURC AHING <@l iR Haq wfafafear &
BRATEIT HRA G, NSIETd, Jaarg warad
R wfafaftet # e 9 e iR T 9 Tw
& WR & 9 FHG B Afhd arfieRl & ufd

T B ¢ |

o UIEINEVH, FHAT UG & HIAII 3R HRIGHA
T AAIPROT & HRFH ¥ Sla—fafdydr, uafeReig
HIgelerdn, YA & SUANT Ud WA Bl SUAR
PR D oIy gfdeg o, difd o Faary yare
& R SgI-Hd H gIaRoiE GRe, e e
ATATTSTh—RTSTH I AR=aRT g 1Y AT A

fopar <1 9 |

o UIElEUA 7 30 YIS Wil WR Aad HAlfdid
ARl Bl GRET B IR S derdr o

P &

ANNEXURE-3

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE
YEAR 2017-18

1. Company’s CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programs.

Corporate Social Responsibility is a Company's
commitment to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing
theinterests ofits stakeholders. This commitmentis beyond
statutory requirements. Corporate Social Responsibility
is, therefore, closely linked with the practice of Sustainable
Development. Corporate Social Responsibility extends
beyond philanthropic activities and reaches out to the
integration of social and business goals. These activities
need to be seen as those which would, in the long term,
help secure a sustainable competitive advantage. The
company is doing CSR activity since the year 2007.

The CSR policy of company is based on following
principles:

® PDIL recognizes Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) as a way of conducting business, which
enables the creation and distribution of wealth
for the betterment of its stakeholders, through the
implementation and integration of ethical systems
and sustainable management practices.

® While implementing CSR & Sustainable activities,
PDIL is committed towards the active involvement
of all employees, Top to Bottom and Bottom to Top,
engaged in diverse business operations and activities.

e PDIL is committed towards the management of
biodiversity, sensitive environments, land use and
site remediation through the implementation of
appropriate management and mitigation programmes
to ensure environmental protection, economic and
socio-political sustainability throughout the life cycle
of our business operation.

® PDIL shall continue to strive to uphold and promote
fundamental human rights, as well as the traditional
rights of indigenous host cultures and their heritage in
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TS ST aTell 4T TR &1 srgare e Hed
R fobar Sirem B

fag o & <R IR B T gRATSIATRN DI
wféra faavor -

NG
2. ®RURT AMfae < afafa 1 dvae
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areas where it operates so that the society feels proud
to have an organization like PDIL as their neighbours.

e PDIL shall review, annually report and continuously
strive to enhance our CSR & sustainability activities
as a responsible corporate entity.

PDIL has a Board Level Committee, which decides
the activities to be taken up under CSR and ensures its
execution as per the CSR policy. All the activities under
CSR are approved by Board of Directors.

The brief description of projects undertaken during
Financial Year:

NIL

2. The composition of the CSR Committee.

i) CMD/D(F) Chairman
ii) Shri DP Srivastava, Director ~ ........... Member
iii) Prof. (Dr) Kunal Ghosh, Director  .......... Member
iv) Shri CN Bhojaraj, Director ... Member

3. Average Net Profit of the company for last three
financial years

NIL

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the
amount as in item 3 above)

NIL

5. Details of CSR spent (against the previous year
project) during the financial year.

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year;
NIL

(b) Amount unspent, if any NIL

@) -4
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DHRURCT AT & G- 7 Ruid
HRUNCT AT & - § BT B RO

PRURT AT & T § BT P IR0 §
RS, Feh<IeRor iR i, fafrgHi, feen—fdwt &
guic: gy RUIféT gHARed w1 3R TRRuRST &
A Bl 9o & ol I H R HISA H Al AR
BT AT PRAT 2 | B H PRURS LT B
SeH AFDI B AR R B b oY ufdag 2|

freve dea

fevTe Aed &1 AxaAT: WISIeNEUd & Aeye Hed
# oE feee & H 9 <1 i orwe vd udy
fews FRieRNT fAee g 3R fFeee (o), wemafe
AT 3 SIS fIIRT, IRE Ud SdRd AT,
MR WRGR gRT A0 fhT 70 7 WReR1 Afafa qor
T (IR—ar)) e 2

9P ITfaRt, AFRS-1 9o & HIT 89 & 1,
GREIRTSTA ¥ fe3d Asd @ URhAl & STIART B &
forg 918 3 =gAaq A9 e (IR—ER&N) 8 Sufer
g1 qaaq ¥ e fewe (R—SRer) o g R &
IR 39 "M B WG HAGT & A1 SSHIT AT
2 |

HRIGHR Qe rfd sy ud wdy feee @
Tdh U AR, 2016 | R7b & 3iR 1exel Ud uae fHawrd
B ARG HRYR e (T7) = Sivd. garax
T BT AT T4

faq af 2017—18 & SRM, NSRS & Fev®
Aed # fr=falRaa fewe o
gvf Fifas FRwe
£ SI.U9. GuTax IHAT ez (fa<) (06.10.2016 )
e Uy Faere

(erfaRad 9vR) (R 08.11.
2016 ¥)

R—asder fASse

IS GIESS S feee o TS THo) SRS
T, RA IRAR
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Annexure-4
Report on Corporate Governance
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The philosophy of the Company in relation to
Corporate Governance is
disclosures and reporting that conforms fully with laws,
regulations, guidelines and to promote ethical conduct
throughout the organization with the primary objective of
enhancing shareholders value. The company is committed
to conforming to the highest standards of Corporate
Governance in the country.

to ensure transparency,

Board of Directors

Composition of Board: The Board of PDIL comprises
six Directors i.e two functional Directors i.e. Chairman
& Managing Director and Director(Finance), two Govt.
Nominees of the Administrative Ministry i.e Department
of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers,
Government of India and two (Non-official) Directors.

Further, PDIL being a Mini Ratna-I Category
Company, to exercise the powers of Directors in Board,
minimum three Directors (Non-official) are required in
the Board. Presently, one post of Director (Non-official)
is vacant and the same has been taken up with the
Administrative Ministry.

The post of Functional Director i.e Chairman &
Managing Director was vacant from November 2016 and
additional charge of CMD has been assigned to Director
(Finance) Shri D.S.Sudhakar Ramaiah.

During the financial year 2017-18, the following
Directors were on the Board of PDIL:

Whole time Directors

Sh. D.S. Sudhakar
Ramaiah

Director (Finance) (w.e.f
06.10.2016)

Chairman & Managing
Director (w.e.f 08.11.2016)
(Additional Charge)

Non-Executive Directors

Sh. D.P. Srivastava Director (E&S), Department
of Fertilizers (DOF)

Government of India(GOI).
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Sh. Prabhas Kumar Director (Fert), Department of

Fertilizers (DOF)
Government of India (GOI)

Director (Non-official)
Director (Non-official)

Sh.C.N.Bhojaraj
Dr Kunal Ghosh

Number of Board meeting/Attendance of each Director
at Board Meeting and the last AGM held during the
year 2017-18.

Number of Board meeting:

doa @ aNE o6& B A SufRera Rl
X FE Date of Meeting | Place of Meeting | Directors present
27 S, 2017 RIS 5 27" June, 2017 Noida 5
28 IR, 2017 s h ;

28" A t,2017 Noid

21 Ra=R, 2017 st 5 gt O% 2
21 fORTRR, 2017 rver 5 21* September 2017 Noida 5
20 TR, 2018 ESIEN 4 21% December, 2017 Noida 5
19 A1, 2018 'S el 20" February,2018 Vadodara 4
s @I dod ¥ yAD fRyed o SuRerfa &1 | 19" March 2018 Noida 3

faa=or:

Attendance of each Director in Board Meeting:

e &1 ™

TS B

1 R

*pIEATTOR THAIRNIGRA 3% Sf$AT (TH.1.318)

** pfEATSoR BN 3t gfear  foro(Uw o ems.uat)
*HXORIET BRGCH  fel0 3052017 &

U .37, 3Rl fT=gq Us A Red gfear fe1o 30.5.2017
3 13.11.2017 db

@USIed sIge= o fero

foarg 9 auf & <= smaiforag sma 99T @ do@l
1 fqavor -

El g .
o Soal | 2017 ¥ amaford | 2018 ) Reif S.No. | Name of Directors | No.of | Attendance at No. of othe.r
@ dEr | am o @ | B AER 3 Board | last AGMheld | Directorship
o fora da 4 | wEeRaEl & Meetings on21* in other Co. as
1T feran AT ferm g frewsl attended | September 2017 | on 31.3.2018
&
I | dea 6 = flw 1 |Sh DS Sudhakar 6 Yes ¥
FETBR I Ramaiah
2 | o S eanag 5 g 1** 2 | Sh. D.P. Srivastava 5 Yes 1**
2 99T [AR 3 g 2 3 | Sh. Prabhas Kumar 3 Yes ki
2 AL 6 & 4 | Sh. CN.Bhojaraj 6 Yes
5 < % . 6 = 1o 5 | Dr. Kunal Ghosh 6 Yes 1@

wu | o I T v e R Pl
9. fagly ey
qiRa foar
T
1 | 2014—15 | =g 24.09.2015 T URTEA SH, 7|
12.15 9o
2 | 2015—16 | ATST 29.09.2016 BT FURTE SH, TR |
12.15 o
3 | 2016—17 | AweT 21.09.2017 B JURTEA SN, '
12.15 9ol

*Fertiliser Association of India(FAI)
**Fertilizer Corporation of India Ltd(FCIL).
*** Paradeep Phosphates Ltd w.e.f. 30.5.2017

FCI Aravali Gypsum and Minerals India Ltd. w.e.f.
30.5.2017 to 13.11.2017

@ Agtec Innovations Pvt.Ltd
Annual General Meeting held during last three years:

S.No.| Year Location Date & Time Whether
any Special
resolution

passed
2014-15 Noida |24.09.2015 at 12.15 PM No
2015-16 | Noida |29.09.2016 at 12.15 PM No
2016-17 Noida | 21.09.2017 at 12.15PM Yes

OB
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dET—uder afifa:

faie 20.10.2017 @I AR, dr€ B 21741 d5& H
AGT—RIeTT AT BT Ted fhar AT IR sHd IR,
9 AT &1 e TH—99a R faar Srar § den
B B H oRg—uNie AT BT g drs @l 241791
3@, ST faTie 28.02.2017 BT AT g8, # faam /1

S fb fregarR &

S A g, AR, Feed (IR—ReRY)————— Jrege

<o gumet =, feee  (R-ReR)——————— Rireral
S S sfharaa, e ERGR gRT A1Hd)———— e
3regeT Uq yew feerd, fensvd ————————— |y

d@—adigr afafa o ool o Gwar/ a9 2017—18
@& <INE ImAIfoig dE—udiar afifg @ 3ol o
yAP Fvre &1 SufRerfa &1 faavor:

dET—udiEr afifa #) doal B G

Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001 : 2015 Company

Audit Committee:

Audit committee has been constituted in the 217" Board
meeting held on 20.10.2011 and further, the Committee
has been reconstituted from time to time and the present
Audit Committee was reconstituted in the 241% Board
Meeting held on 28.02.2017 as under:-

Sh. C.N. Bhojaraj, Director (Non-official).......... Chairman
Dr. Kunal Ghosh, Director (Non-official) ............. Member
Sh. D.P. Srivastava, Director (Govt. Nominee)......Member
C & MD, PDIL .o Member

Number of Audit Committee meeting/Attendance of
each Director at Audit Committee Meeting held during
the year 2017-18.

Number of Audit Committee Meetings:

dE-miar gfafay #1 dod ¥ u”dd Y B
SufRerfa &1 faavor:

P N0 feere &1 am dEr-udiar ufify @ doal
3 g o am foran

1 3 S1.UH. GuTdRR IHAT 4

2 CIRSIRIEICISSE 3

3 St {1gd. AR 4

4 Sfo HUITe =Y 4

HRUNT Iaifve <f¥ca afifq -

IS B R IR BRURES AHEINTP a1 Afiife &1 e+ ggell
IR 9IS Bl 22471 4P, S &1 2052013 BT AN B,
H o T o 3R 9 AT &1 gAiied AHa—a9d W) fHar
ST & T7 €Tt 81 § BRURS AMINTG <riied AAfd &r
YIS a1S Bl 24191 93, S faie 21.12.2016 BT AT

g8, # frar mar & f AEgER @

1. 3eweT U9 yewT e /feed (Aw), deemsya ——— arege
2. 31 S sharaa, Feod (RR SERT 1) —— 9ed

3. f0 e 81, Feed (R-TRER)————F

4. 31 AT MoRM, Feed (R-IRaEN)——— &

P ®

Yoo 2 T Yo BT sulterg Lrowray @ Date of Meeting | Place of Meeting | Directors present
I T 27" June, 2017 Noida 4
27 S, 2017 RINSH 4 28" August,2017 Noida 4
28 SR, 2017 EILSI 4 21% December, 2017 Noida 4
f; méow E g 19® March 2018 Noida 3

Attendance of each Director in Audit Committee
Meetings:

S.No. Name of Directors No. of Audit Committee
Meeting attended
1 | Sh. D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah 4
2 | Sh. D.P.Srivastava 3
3 | Shri C.N.Bhojaraj 4
4 | Dr.Kunal Ghosh 4

CSR Committee:

CSR Committee at Board Level was first constituted in its
224™ Meeting held on 20.05.2013 and the Committee has
been reconstituted from time to time and the present CSR
Committee has been reconstituted by the Board in its 241*
Meeting held on 21.12.2016 as under:-

1. CMD / D(E), PDIL ...covveiviiiveieieieeieennes Chairman
2. Sh. D.P. Srivastava, Director (Govt.Nominee) Member

3. Dr. Kunal Ghosh, Director (Non-official) ....... Member
4. Sh. C.N. Bhojaraj, Director (Non-official) ....... Member
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Number of CSR Committee meeting/Attendance of
each Director at Meeting held during the year 2017-18.

Number of CSR Committee Meetings:1

Date of Meeting

Place of Meeting

Directors present

19t March 2018

Noida

3

dod @) g | dod BT E | SufRkerd el
D AT
19 9T, 2018 HIusT 3

TR IRT B 9 § e Fewd @ SuRerfa
BT faaror:

P4 |y /afafa & G &1 am| AT foran

30 SR

1|3y S1u9. gurax AT S, 87 |

2 |5 idisharaa SHl, T8 |

3 50 AL, IR S, BT |

5 [Sfo Home " Sl 8 |
giRsifie afifa -

dre @ WRsHe AR BT ST dre B 21741 oD, S
e 20.10.2011 BT ARSI B, ¥ AT TAT o 3R g4
AMfT BT gavied 4 @1 22241 4o, Sl [P 29.11.2012
DI AN g, W fbar 11 Tor gq uTRsiAe AT &1
Bl (@IS @ 98F AR gH@T wih) W, 2014 & |
6 @ AT TS HAI AMFIH,2013 BT GRT 178 B AR
“AHIGE gd TS ARl (TR’ & W # gAiag
fBar 1 ® SR Hd! gAfe dIe &I 24191 I8, S faAi®
21122016 BT ARSI g, H b M1 S fb AR &

1. Sfo FHOMA AN, s (R—RHN)————— JTeTey
2. 30 AYA. AR, e (R-TReGR)——— a5

3. & 1A siardd, Feed (TR gRT A1) —de
4. Iezer Ud yae feere, relengve ———— RERa

RN affa #1 dobl @ dwar/ad 201718 @
TR ImAfoig doal 4 yde fAewe &) suRerfa &1
faa=or:

TAIMR A AR & Sobi & T 1

dob o) dIg | dod &1 wIF | SuRerd fFRwel @) e
19 9, 2018 RLINS]) 3

TR AR & Jeb § uxdd Fewe & suRefa or
faqor:

@ o | e /afify ® G &1 W | 9T foram srerar TEY
1| o Homer =y S, B
2 | st g, AR Si, B

Attendance of each Director in the CSR Committee
Meeting:

S.No. | Name of Directors/Member of the | Attended or
Committee not
1 Sh. D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah Yes
2 Sh. D.P.Srivastava No
3 | Shri C.N.Bhojaraj Yes
5 Dr.Kunal Ghosh Yes

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration committee of the Board has been
constituted in the 217" Board meeting held on 20.10.2011
and further reconstituted in its 222™ meeting held on
29.11.2012 and the present Remuneration Committee
renamed as “Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC)” as per section 178 of the Companies Act,2013
read with rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board
and its Powers)Rules,2014 and it has been reconstituted
by the Board in its 241% Meeting held on 21.12.2016 as
follows:-

1. Dr. Kunal Ghosh, Director (Non-official) - Chairman
2. Sh. C.N. Bhojaraj, Director (Non-official) - Member

3. Sh. D.P. Srivastava, Director (Govt.Nominee)- Member
4. CMD, PDIL - Member

Number of NRC Committee meeting/Attendance of
each Director at Meeting held during the year 2017-18.

Number of NRC Committee Meetings:1

Date of Meeting
19* March 2018

Place of Meeting
Noida 3

Directors present

Attendance of each Director in the NRC Committee
Meeting:

S.No. | Name of Directors/Member of the | Attended or
Committee not
1 Dr.Kunal Ghosh Yes
2 | Shri C.N.Bhojaraj Yes

@ 4
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SR RSIIECINSES
4 | s Sruw. gureR R

a4 fAesal ) do@:

¥ 2017—18 H QI el (R—IRGNT )
Job foTie 19 AT, 2018 BT VST § AT BT TS |

IRRERSDI / fFasal & Rreraa afifa:

Holded Ue Sqavde gfear fafice (feemEvd) wa
BN AT © AR SHD! T WR Yoll BT W@IAe
YRT & IICYfT TAT S A1l & I & | 3 S99
foru fd) affy & o & srawIdar 78l 2

YH DT

99 & IRME, (e Aed @ Al & f2d W AUdH
w4 9 Ufdad g91E STel alel §Hd UedR & BRI
FIER B IR H AT UG DI T8 2 | UHSIHRT Bl
IR AT BT Y& 9T AFT T & | Ffes, NSrengud
U IR—gAldg B B, 3 WRA ARBR §RT IR
feen—frdell & dwrg § SR gRT STguTed 7 fy S
BT BIS W) AHAT TbreT H 2 M 2|

AR & 9TeH:

£
E
!

qiffe foxiig fAeIed dwT @1 J9arse www.pdilin.
com W URe fHar 17 B |

IWRERD! IR H GHEI SIHPNI:

FHEN DI FAY WR Yol B WA 9RT & g
T S AT B U B | alfep 3T [T Bl [qaroT
SR U [HAT T 2| FFEN P R B A T
vaedsl ¥ qAdg el g |

p &

Sh. D.P.Srivastava No
4 Sh. D.S.Sudhakar Ramaiah Yes

Meeting of Independent Directors:

A separate meeting of two Directors(Non-official) has
been held on 19% March 2018 at Noida for the year
2017-18.

Share holders/Investors Grievance Committee

Projects & Development India Limited (PDIL) is a
Government Company and the entire share capital is held
by President of India and his nominees. Hence, no such
committee is required to be constituted.

Disclosures

The related party transaction that may have potential
conflict with interest of the Company at large has been
duly informed to the Board during the year. Disclosure
is also taken as part of Code of Conduct. There have been
no instances of non-compliance by Company to any
matter related to capital market since, PDIL is an unlisted
Company and any matter related to any guidelines issued
by Government during the last three years.

Means of communication

Annual Financial performance is posted in the Company’s
website: www.pdilin.com

General shareholders information

The entire paid up share capital of the company is held in
the name of President of India and his nominees. AGM
details are furnished above. The Company shares are not
listed in any stock exchange.
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1.

sitenfire eiar vd faera

3 WU, SN o g1 GIEemEtd (oaed 7S
SaduHe Sfear fafies) & A & SIHd €, @7 eIl
1951 # @ g off 9T usdl Ug, < H 3fenfe
JTHAFRAT B ST & Tedl B wiftg & forw zenfad
BiEATSoR BIUNTA 3 sfear fafics (Trfiesmgue)
BT TP qb1ab] [T 3T BT o | a9 1961 H gAD!
IufRr # FH! gEIA g8 IR IE BiEAsoR
PRINIE {F sfear fafiics &1 Aro=r vd faswm
(QIUESN) U9IT 99 T3 |

'\‘FT 1978 H BfEATgOR HRURIH 3TH s'f%ul forfacs
fpar T @R AT w9 faer g
aﬁlﬁwmaﬁn—ésﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ7mﬁ 1978
Pl U ‘BicagoRr (AT vd faem) gfear fafics’
(CHIEIETe) & TRy § AT fbar |

SRl TG I ¥ M @ &F o forv fafay
fharpe W R feu oM @ fow fedie 08
fRdaR1981®1, THUISRIEUA & AHGHR Uoldes
s Saayde gfewr fafics (klensua) @ wu #
fopar ar| oA 11 Fa%R, 2011 BT WSIMEUA BT
A <7 1 TSI U gl |

TSIEUA ol fUse B8 9 A e vl I o=,
SO g Clﬁ?ﬂ\_ﬂ:ﬂ%ﬁ ¥ Gefdd daRi @l

Hheud H bR Iv Jawd QU S Pl gwd Tt
2| NI Ue SdR®, Il Ud I AIMerial, R,

JNTATARA, SfBASCH qAT SYAR & &3l H

3O AT U Bl 2|

o7 3R BT

o

o wHel, feomm vd fawqgd soifvaRa # uga
&HAT |

® Thd Wise SRE@ & A HHPIes /
gShIcs  BicdlsoR /- RIS &Y

RITIAT 2 APl I B ®U Y& by S dh
RTTRETE HaRll & IUATY BT AT AT |

o e fawdl § IR orgMd Ut e fafag
daidl &A@ faRive wem  SolifRRl @
I |

o fIural SICEw AT Hed Ami |

o U@ ufovudl &5 & Hedy # ORI |

® TlofeX CIWl, BERIR, AIUH, Hidd sdle oI
I AT IRAT & AARH & A ARl &
AT T |
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Annexure - 5

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

1.

Industry Structure and Development

The organisation, as it is known today as PDIL
(Projects and Development India Ltd), erstwhile
established in 1951 was “a Technology wing of
Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited (FCI)”, with
an objective to achieve Technological-Self reliance in
the country. In 1961, its activities were enlarged and it
became “Planning & Development” (P&D) Division
of FCI Ltd.

In 1978, FCI was restructured and P&D division
became an independent entity and was incorporated
as “The Fertilizer (Planning & Development) India
Limited” (FPDIL) on 7th March 1978.

On 8th December 1981, FPDIL was rechristened as
“Projects & Development India Limited” (PDIL)
to reflect diversified activities in the areas beyond
fertilizers. PDIL achieved Mini Ratna Status on 11th
November 2011.

PDIL has over six decades of experience in providing
Design, Engineering and related project execution
services from concept to commissioning of various
Projects. PDIL provides services in the areas of
Fertilizers, Oil & Gas and Refinery, Chemicals,
Infrastructure, Offsites and Utilities, etc.

Strengths & Weaknesses
Strengths
® Premier Consultancy, Design & Detailed

Engineering capability.

® Vast experience in providing consultancy services
for setting up Greenfield/Brownfield fertilizer /
chemical projects from concept to commissioning
on single point responsibility.

® Multidisciplinary, highly experienced and pool of
capable engineers in various specialized technical
disciplines.

® Vast database and reference materials.
® Market recognition in core competence area.

® Association with process licensors of Ammonia
and Urea like Haldor-Topsoe, KBR, Saipem,
Stamicarbon,Casale etc.

® -4
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® IJANYMF HRIEI AR Yol oI e |

® HRIAI UK Jad UPR RIE ol ud
TSI Hansit & forv favrysar ur |

BT

® IRP B A IY el & forw Wfdd
PreTel fafderr |

o AU b AU & H wth HHb b v oie
AT D AT HT |

® WeHH WRIY TIHAl SILIRh Bl gfg d & forg
AT STRIRh Bl AT ST |

o ToUudIe URATSHRT & foru Jruaf AT
Uq GXIATHSD ST |

o fIurTel Taudld uRAeHRN & fAwes & forw

oI O er\dT /AR |

3. 3@uR U9 gAfaar

AR

o JIRA & forg A3 faer <Nifa (g wenfea) &
NG & UL SIRD & H AUS e
8 & |

o fadwr, fIeya: ampidl Td YgX Ydi qui H IRD
e § foger

e fIpawRl /SheRl & A1 wHf~IT Re & forv
Uh e |

e  wyiaRur g yiRRerfasdl & gfer 8= & |

o Jo TAT I, MU, AT, 5ol Ud
JURTE STl SUAR & IR W &3l H AT |

gAtfai

® TIUHEID UBR &I Aol & fAwred & ufa
(FeTeh] &1 aRIFT / T |

® IR &7 H IZEI UM /T AdAD
& & SUDHHI BT JI |

o AT H AR URMHIIEN SH &I IATIAT &
gf 3T |

® IR HHMIAN §RT AFHAI STeIh & foly d8aR
Ja Usball ol UM |

o yitrugl H gfg |

4. fo<ra ffrsare=s
o T U™ auf & SRM, WSRMSTd & faxig

P &

e freTgar @

Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001 : 2015 Company

® Have adequate latest state-of-the-art softwares.

® Recognised Third Party Inspection Agency and
specialized in NDT Services.

Weaknesses

® Limited skilled diversification in other than
fertilizer/Oil & Gas sectors

e  Will take time to consolidate the strength in new
areas of business.

¢ Limited availability of experienced manpower to
augment middle level experienced manpower.

® Inadequate credential and organizational setup
for LSTK projects.

[ ]

Inadequate Financial strength/set-up to carry out
large LSTK Projects.

Opportunities & Threats

Opportunities

Major investment is happening in the fertilizer
sector.

Investment in fertilizer sector abroad, especially
in African & Far East countries.

Tie-ups with vendors / contractor for synergizing
mutual strength.

Greater concern for environment and ecology.

Opportunities in non core areas like oil & gas,
refineries, infrastructure, water and waste water
treatment.

Threats

Investors preference / inclination towards LSTK
mode of project execution.

Entry of MNCs / other PSUs in the fertilizer field.

Trends of setting in-house consultancy teams by
owners.

Better pay packages offered for experienced
manpower by other companies.

Increase in Competition.

Financial Performance

The financial performance of PDIL over the

previous five years is as below:
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(Grrelapi)! (Rs. in Lakh)
v 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 Particulars 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18
fel I 7261 5755 | 7206 5775 7786 Total Income 7261 5755 | 7206 5775 7786
PR—qd @ | 194 | (1048) | (640) | (994) | 6123 Profit Before Tax | 194 | (1048) | (640) | (994) | 6123
BRIRIC o | 132 | (585.70) | (892.06) | (1058) | 26878 Profit After Tax | 132 | (585.70) | (892.06) | (1058) | 268.78
e 76 | (338.58) | (515.69) | (611.75) | 155.38
) (o ) Earnings Per 76 (338.58) | (515.69) | (611.75) | 155.38

Share (in Rs)

5. au™d & gfa giealor

5. Business Outlook

SIRG SEUNT &I AAId FIramel ik fafi=
RUGRGECIE LI ERG B K ISR G | o T
IRIGR P SH & HROT GSemsid & fay wfas
PP SRS 2 |

TRT WRER 7 98 TSI THARME MR TIUHAITA
Ifel & gTRER @ ufhar I @ ¥ | fed gfead
I BN fafics, oia sfear fafacs, e
ofd TR HuReE fafics &ia sfear fafies
IR wilasor dUReE 3w sfsar /g
HicAagoR BRI fafics & dg® Sed & Uh
B! RgRI Ik Td IR (e s (TageiRyd)
& A e (3IREs), TRER (STR Us) 3R
R ([FER) # 9 menfRa 2200 THSWET M=
3R 3850 TACTUIET IRAT IR HIF WIUT B
& forg fasar a1 B UOgRIRTE gRT WSy
B f=ferRaa 9l uRarsme & foro f=ferRaa
JATY UGTH HRA BT B AT TAT g

® TAUUCIP ShaRI B oy W—aarseiifthara,

® [ Tid 3R AP wdervr & forg uRreedi
Ty,

o gyieRUr Hael srHf,

® TAUWICIP SPeRI & IIT P forg Smecld
THMES @ GAR g Qe & Jeia AR
SITHIR IR HRAT |

® TATAID. JMA—IRAT Td IR TATHCL
%, Yool @ folv URe 3raTs QLU |d|
T R Yot & forv §9-ANed. |ang |

ArSIS &F B GR I I — HAE T (3R
forfics, #9d T dffiwe Us wicarsor fafics,
I dla sfear fafies iR a9 wfidarsor
BN =i 3fear fafics @ dyd Iuhd dorer
wicargod fafics 7 dorer, sifsem # favawy
T SmeRd Sk IRER o+ @1 fof form 2
9 IF H didt IAfhaeE |9, M 9 R

The future outlook for Fertilizer industry and for
PDIL looks encouraging owing to various policy
announcements and revival of closed fertilizer units.

Government of India has undertaken process for
revival of closed FCIL & HFCL units. Hindustan
Urvarak & Rasayan Ltd. (HURL), a Joint Venture
of M/s Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL),
Coal India Limited (CIL), National Thermal Power
Corporation (NTPC) and Fertilizer Corporation of
India Ltd. (FCIL) / Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation
(HFC) has been incorporated for setting up of gas
based 2200 MTPD Ammonia and 3850 MTPD Urea
Fertilizer Plants at Sindri (Jharkhand), Gorakhpur
(Uttar Pradesh) & Barauni (Bihar). PDIL has been
entrusted by HURL for providing following services
for all the three projects:

e Pre-Qualification of LSTK Contractors.

e Consultancy services for soil investigation and
topographical survey.

e Environmental clearance.

e Preparation of ITB Document & Evaluation
of Bids for selection of LSTK Contractor and
Preparation of DFR.

e Post award PMC services for LSTK Ammonia-
Urea & Non LSTK Packages and EPCM services
for Non Packages.

In addition, Talcher Fertilizers Ltd. (TFL), a joint
venture of four major Public sector Units — M/s
GAIL (India) Limited, M/s Rashtriya Chemicals &
Fertilisers Ltd. (RCF), M/s Coal India Ltd. (CIL) and
M/s Fertilizer Corporation of India Ltd. (FCIL), has
decided to build a world class Coal based Fertilizer
Complex at Talcher, Odisha. The Complex will consist
of Coal Gasification Plant, Ammonia & Urea Plants
along with offsite & Utility Plants. Coal Gasification

® <4
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JIA B AT AhATSS TS SUARAr GIF oA
BT | Bid fifhaee w33, sHifvar g gRar a4
IR PIIAT JMETRT Dftcd TR Wiic BT Talucd
YR TR 3R 3hage 9 STAMEr dI sulvad)
JYR R wfed a7 @1 gag 21 EUHTA o
YrERMST Bl R & wU § RE Jdg ye
A B T 90 @1 B | NISIRISTA BT TAvaciad
TP 3R 3ifpaATse Us SUAIRAT & forw goifas,
rfegmer g fAEier g (SURiH) darh @ fog
IRATSHT Y&ed IR < &1 HrH |G S B
Sraici

UISIMSYe g1 UAUB.UA, HHdI slia il
A= IaRep HulrIl gRT aTe], ol g B dTel!
PR B U SR STTERT BT TATI BN T & 2|
SIS, SASUBUIS, JNTHATSUHUI, §SINAT,
o fafi= Tefizel & fagsh &t g &xa & ufa
) SIIET 2 |

S ga fa=amg

RTHEIETH BHT Bl Tl g AT, TalUdCId @Ry
& Ui UTEd! BT W, AARS IRl <9 a1fud
T S &7 I S {B SIRIH Td ARIGR HUT
o fou fFar &1 fawg €1 (=T eml & forg =y
U IRRYRDI /UTEDl & Bl BT ERET B H
a7 g8 2|

JrRe fFra—=or yomell iy Sua) gaiwdar

e TAT JATTRSD QORI Dl gRI RS 50
T &1 et afia w9 | faar ST 2|y g
RT 3fdR® c@rosien & gRomEl o Fafa awien
DI SR 2 TAT GIRIHD HRATS UG ATTTIBATIAR
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Plant, Ammonia & Urea Plant and Coal based
Captive Power Plant are proposed to be executed
on LSTK basis and off sites & Utilities on EPCM
Basis. PDIL has been retained as Consultant by TFL
for providing consultancy services for selection of
LSTK Contractors and preparation of DFR. PDIL
is likely to be awarded the job of rendering Project
Management Consultancy (PMC) services for LSTK
scope and Engineering, Procurement &Construction
Management (EPCM) services for offsites & utilities.

PDIL is also exploring more opportunities in
rendering Engineering Consultancy services for
Energy Saving Projects being undertaken by various
Fertilizer Companies like NFL, KRIBHCO etc.

PDIL is looking forward to receive foreign
assignments from various clients like JIFCO,
OMIFCO, Indorama, etc.

Risk and Concerns

Mushrooming of consultancy firms, preference of
clients to LSTK mode, trends of setting up in-house
consultancy team are some of the risks and concerns
of the company. Continuous efforts in creating new
opportunities, improving knowledge in various areas
have enabled the company to protect the interests of
Shareholders/Customers.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

Internal controls are continuously evaluated by
the management and Internal Auditors. Findings
from internal audits are reviewed regularly by the
management and corrective actions & controls to
maintain proper accounting, monitoring economy
and efficiency of operations are put in place wherever
necessary.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect
to Operational Performance

The total income of the Company during financial
year 2017-18 is Rs.7786lakhs compared to Rs.5775
lakhs in previous financial year 2016-17. During the
year under report, your company achieved Rs 5336
lakhs from Engineering Division, Rs.1205 lakhs from
Inspection and NDT, Rs 279 lakhs from Catalyst
division and Rs.966 lakhs as other income.




9.

10.

A9ITR ygE fhu 10 N @« g1 gfzd,
qEg AareH, reEnfiie g & #@id W
Hifas faera

DI AHET P YT FHIGT A G DI AR B
A1 AT Gl DA GG THET B oy
H AR UG @l TS | MR H o & U
|, B ERT 99 & W01 & oIy Ul SHdT
TS dAfheh] T S9! ST=RIfh Td JaT Aqal
# B & o ORd Bl B

PU H BRI FAHIRAT qT FHATRAT S PHIered
faT BT HUT A UFRIET BT Yeh AEYUT AT
% ®Y H WHR B 2| RBRA E="_ & U6
AT & ®U d 94 I R 9 WRI & HHATRAT
®1 MTaRe® Ul yeM far M 2| wE uded
JTHIEHAT TAT FTATT Bl A (AT AT D]
B AT B A IRRIT P Faxem B TS T
IRe ufdteror & AfaR<h, HHATRAT BT uferor /
HTILTTAT 3R AR & forg =1faa far mar | wu=n
PR BT AIRD AMARI & v i dora) 2
fais 31.03.2018 @1 Refd & IFAR, HUN &
fafa HHaRal o o dwe@ 352 2 |

dade faavor

HUHT B I, Veruoll JoIT JATRMAT & auiF I Jeh
gdee faaR faust vd f4geryor &1 fqaror r] S
qer fafemi & ref @ g # SR gftearr
& wWxu A ferar S =gy | Al aren Aifaai

T a7 ReyfoRil &1 fFeiRar R gad <<h sferar
faaferd areafde qRemd BIw! AT T ferar aegiTd
w9 =T 81 dad ¢ |

9.

10.

@
1 2 o ™
PDIL

Annual Report 2017-18

Material Developments in Human Resources,
Industrial Relations Front, Including Number of
People Employed

Your Company being in the services industry believes
that Human Resources are the main critical assets
since the “knowledge” is the major asset. With a view
to preserve the knowledge acquired by individuals and
the company over the last many years of its existence,
company encourages sharing of knowledge between
experienced manpower and younger groups.

The Company has identified training as an integral
tool for skill development of the officers and employees
of the company. As part of the ERP implementation,
training was imparted to
employees at all locations across all levels. Training
was also arranged by inviting renowned professionals
from leading Management Academy and Business
centers. In addition to in-house training, employees
were nominated for attending Training / workshop
and seminar. Company also sponsored candidates for
internal seminar. Total number of regular employees
in the Company as on 31.03.2018 is 352.

extensive in-house

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and
Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives,
projections and expectations may be ‘forward looking
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Depending on the various Government
policies and economic conditions, actual results might
differ substantially or materially from those expressed
or implied.
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D MAHARATHI & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
A-9/1, 2nd Floor, Naraina
Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110028
MBL: 011-42240166, 9911739899
E-mail: dmaharathi@gmail.com

Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate

To

The Members

PROJECTS AND DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED
CIN: U74140UP1978G01028629

PDIL BHAWAN, A-14, SECTOR-1, NOIDA-201301, UP.

We have examined the compliance of guidelines on
corporate Governance by PROJECTS AND DEVELOPMENT
INDIA LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2018 as
stipulated in Notification No. 18(8)/2005-GM, dated 14th
May 2010, issued by ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises, Department of Public Enterprises, Government of
India for Corporate Governance.

The compliance of guidelines on Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, and the representations
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that
the Company has complied with the Condition of Corporate
Governance as stipulated and mentioned in guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010.

We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to future viability of the company nor the efficiency
and effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

For D MAHARATHI & ACCOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

DILLIP CHANDRA MAHARATHI

(Proprietor)

M.NO. A24955

CP NO. 13496
Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.04.2018
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Annexure - 7

Projects & Development India Limited
(A Govt. of India Undertaking): A Mini Ratna-1 Company
PDIL Bhawan, A-14, Sector-1, Noida-201 301
Distt Gautam Budh Nagar, (UP), India
CIN : U74140UP1978G01028629

DECLARATION

As per DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
CPSE's, this is to confirm that all Board Members and
Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial

year 2017-18
Sd/-

(D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah)
D(F) & CMD
Place: Noida
Dated: 25.04.2018
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT INDIA
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018.

The preparation of financial statements of Projects &
Development India Limited for the year ended 31 March
2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act, based on Independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their Audit Report dated 16th July 2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of
the financial statements of Projects & Development India
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(Nandana Munshi)

Director General of Commercial Audit
& Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-II,
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.08.2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Projects & Development India Limited
A-14,Sector-1,Noida-201301

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT INDIA
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31%March 2018, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statementfor the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Financial

Statements

Responsibility for the

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

@ -4
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Basis for Qualified opinion

1. Note No.36:- As to confirmation /reconciliation of
balances under Trade Receivables amounting to INR
3,103.55 lakh out of which confirmation received INR
22.84 lakh and no confirmation received in respect
of Trade Payable, Loan and Advances taken, Security
Deposit and other Liabilities.

Subject to above confirmation we are unable to
comment on quantum of differences, if any and the
extent of its effect on financial statement for the year
ended 31.3.2018.

2. As to non-confirmation /reconciliation of balances
due/ payable to Fertilizer Corporation of India
Limited (FCIL) net amounting of INR 45.01 lakh. As
explained by management some of the quarters belong
to PDIL was leased by FCIL since long back for which
rent is also collected by FCIL. PDIL has not claimed
any rent from FCIL on those quarters. Quantum of
rent collected by FCIL has not been explained by
the management, so due to non-ascertainment of
quantum of recovery of rent, the extent of its effect on
financial statement, if any, is unascertained.
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3. Provisions towards expenses of INR 26.07 lakh
appearing in books of account much before from
2011 which were made by the company on estimation
basis. In the absence of claims as on date we are unable
to ascertain whether the above amount is actually
payable or not.

4. Cumulative impact of our observations in paragraphs
1 & 3 is not ascertainable as the management has
not made estimates of their effect on profit/loss for
the year as well as on the assets and liabilities of the
Company as on 31* March 2018.

5. Point 'x' under Annexure "A" to the Audit Report:-
A case of fraud/financial irregularities was reported
against one of the employee in regard to CSR
project and obtaining of Donation Certificates for
availing personal Income Tax benefits. The Vigilance
Department has carried out detailed investigation and
submitted their report to management of PDIL on
March 22, 2018. The Report of vigilance department
has confirmed the allegations made against the
employee. Since the transaction pertains to earlier
years, it has no impact on profit for the year.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required except the effects /possible
effect of the matter described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraphs 1 to 5 stated above and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (the order) issued by the central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
order.

2. Based on the verification of books of account of
the Company and according to information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure-B,
a report on the directions and sub-directions, issued

@ 4
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by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in
terms of section 143(5) of the Act.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by thelaw have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and
loss, the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of
account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules prescribed thereunder.

(e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31st March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2018 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over the financial reporting of
the Company and operative effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
C” and.

(g) With respect to the other matters included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies Act (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

() The Company has disclosed that the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position
is not ascertainable in its financial statements
— Refer Note 32 to the financial statements.
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Annexure - A to the Independent
Auditors Report

The Annexure A referred to in Independent Auditors’
Report of even date to the members of PROJECTS &
DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED on the accounts
of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2018, we
report that.

(i) Inrespect of Fixed Assets

a) The company has maintained proper records to show
full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical
verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with the program, certain fixed
assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company

and the nature of its assets.

c) On the basis of books of accounts according to
the information and explanations given to us, the
company has clear Title/Lease deeds for freehold and
leasehold land except land situated at Sindri where
lease deed has not been executed. The total area of
land at Sindri is 10.22 Lakh Sq. Mt. The value of
Land at Sindri has been taken as Nil.

d) The Company has not disposed off substantial part of
the fixed assets during the year. However, an amount
of INR 1061.46 Lakh (WDV INR 89.61) [(previous
year INR 1061.46 lakh (WDV INR 89.61 lakh)]
representing gross value of non-active fixed assets
(including assets of R&D division of Sindri) and
other than land & building as on Balance Sheet Date
have been continued to be held for the disposal and
estimated realizable / nominal value shown against
held for disposal. In our opinion, this does not affect

the going concern status of the company.
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(ii) The Company is a service company and major
activities are from consultancy on project related
to fertilizers industries. However, company is doing
manufacturing activity at Sindri and according to
the information and explanation given to us, the
stock of finished goods, stores and spare parts and
raw material have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and there are no
material discrepancies were noticed.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has not granted any loan, secured
or unsecured tocompanies, firm and other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013, consequently paragraph
(iii)(a), (b) & (c) of order is not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not granted any loan,
securities and guarantees in favor of its directors
or to any other person in whom the directors are
interested and had not made any investment for
which provision under section185 and 186 of
Company’s act 2013 are applicable.

(v) As informed to us the Company has not accepted
any deposits within the meaning of directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) Wehavebroadlyreviewed the costrecords maintained
by the Company in respect of its products pursuant
to the order of Central Government for cost records
prescribed under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of
the Companies Act and are of the opinion that prime
facie the prescribed cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident Fund, sales tax, income
tax, value added tax, goods and service tax and other
material statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of
service tax, income tax, goods and service tax and
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b)

cess were in arrear, as on March, 31, 2018 for a period
of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

According to the information and explanations given
to us,and as per the books and records examined
by us, there are no material dues of custom Duty,
service tax and Wealth tax which have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute. However, according to the information
and explanations given to us, the following dues
of income tax, Excise duty and cess, have not been
deposited by the company on account of dispute.

Nature of
Dues

Period
which the
amount
relates

Amount
(INR in
Lakh)

Forum where dispute is
pending

Health /
Education

43.12 N.A Supreme court

Cess

Sales Tax

416.11 | 1991-92 to

1998-99

Assistant Commissioner
of Commercial Taxes,
Dhanbad

(viii)In our opinion and according to the information

(ix)

(x)

and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing to a
financial institution, bank, and government or due
to debenture holders.

The Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and terms loan during the year.
Accordingly, para 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.

A case of fraud/financial irregularities was reported
against one of the employee of PDIL in regard to
CSR project and obtaining of Donation Certificates
for availing personal Income Tax benefits. The case
was first reported on 2nd March 2016 to PDIL
management. The Vigilance Department has carried
out detailed investigation and submitted their report
to management of PDIL on March 22, 2018. The
Report of Vigilance department has confirmed the
allegations made against the said employee and
requested Management of PDIL to take suitable
punitive action against him.
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Except as reported above, based upon the audit
procedures performed and information and
explanations given by the management, we report
that, no other material fraud on the company by its
officers/ employees has been noticed or reported
during the course of audit for the year ended 31st
March 2018.

(xi) According to the information and explanation given
to us, during the year managerial remuneration
has been provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provision of section 197
read with schedule V of the Companies Act.

(xii) As the Company is not a nidhi company, paragraph
(xii) of the order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given
to us all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 188 and 177 of Companies
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements etc. as required by the
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given
to us the company has not made any preferential
allotment / private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under
review.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given
to us the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected
with him.

(xvi)According to the information and explanations given
to us, company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

FOR M D GUJRATI & CO,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005301N

Sd/-

G L AGRAWAL
Partner

Membership No. 087454

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16" July, 2018
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Annexure - B To The Independent
Auditor’s Report

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act
2013 for the year 2017-18

1. On the basis of the Books of accounts of the Company
and according to information and explanation given
to us the company have clear Title/lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold land except land situated at
Sindri where lease deed has not been executed. The
total area of the land at Sindri is 10.22 Lakh Sq. Mt.
The value of Land at Sindri has been taken as NIL in
the book of accounts.

2. According to information and explanations given
to us the company having the system of monitoring
outstanding dues by management on monthly basis.
The following are the old outstanding dues which are
more than three years, against which in some of the
cases company makes the provision for doubtful debts
and in some of the cases the company has not made
provision based on the merit: -

(INR in Lakh)

Particulars | Debts o/s over | Debts o/s Debts o/s less Total

six months | over 3 years | than six months
Debts 773.19 429.96 1,798.92 3,002.07
Considered
goods
Debts 2.31 99.17 101.48
Considered
doubtful /
Provision
Total 775.50 529.13 1,798.92 3,103.55

3. Based on the verification of books of account of
the Company and according to information and
explanation given to us, there is no inventory lying
with Third Parties and no assets has been received as
Gift/Grant from Govt. or other authorities.

FOR M D GUJRATI & CO,

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005301N

Sd/-

G L AGRAWAL
Partner

Membership No. 087454

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16" July, 2018
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT
INDIA LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT
INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
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Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of thefinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR M D GUJRATI & CO,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 005301N

Sd/-

G L AGRAWAL
Partner

Membership No. 087454

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16" July, 2018
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Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001

do{ U3 — 31,/03 /2018 &l

: 2015 Company

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2018

(dug o ®) (¥ In Lakh)

faazor Particulars feagufy gda RuiféT arafer Rwofl RulfEr arafer
e 31,/03 /2018 & 3d 31,/03/2017 & 3id A
A AHs AMHS
Note Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
No. Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
31/03/2018 31/03/2017
L | shed vd S I. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 | gereRe fAf 1 | Shareholders’ funds
(@) | TR goit (a) | Share Capital 2 1,729.85 1,729.85
@) |Rod g sifey (b) | Reserves and Surplus 3 9,308.95 9,040.17
2 | IR e R dfad ardeH 2 | Share Application Money - -
Pending Allotment
3 | IR—gdHH eHeIRaT 3 | Non-current Liabilities
(@) | <rafafy SuR (a) | Long Term Borrowings 4 - -
(@) | emeafird ox SAeIRAt (Fad) (b) | Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 - -
(M | erg Qafafy AeRar (c) | Other Long Term Liabilities 6 115.03 117.15
(=) EICICIERICEIG] (d) | Long Term Provisions 7 1,218.66 992.47
4 | qdHH <HeRal 4 | Current Liabilities
(®) | drafafr sur (a) | Short Term Borrowings 8 - -
@) |uR < (b) | Trade Payables 9 699.21 512.11
(M s JaHE SRt (c) | Other Current Liabilities 10 1,877.63 1,486.97
(&) | srcurafey wraems (d) | Short Term Provisions 11 585.43 192.70
Bl TOTAL 15,534.76 14,071.42
I | gReufm II. | ASSETS
1 TR—ada gRufeaar 1 | Non-current Assets
(®) | Hufeqar, o=, SudmRor qn Sﬂiﬁ (a) |Property, Plant & Equipment and
YRy Intangible Assets
(i) o gt (i) | Tangible Assets 12 1,408.63 1,499.59
(ii) e,q'q:;f gfgufedar (ii) | Intangible Assets 12 90.66 129.63
(iii) Yo @ uIfy W (iii) | Capital Work-in-progress 12A - -
(iv) | fRerari= 3,111—& gRgufeaat (iv) | Intangible Assets under 12B -
Development
(@) | IR—adae faer (b) | Non-current Investments 13 - -
() | smeefia wr uRwufear (Rae) (c) | Deferred Tax Assets (net) 5 536.59 329.04
(@) | <rafafy For v A (d) |Long Term Loans and Advances 14 95.35 94.31
@) | IR—gcHm uReufcaat (e) | Other non-current Assets 15 2,659.41 2,322.83
2 | gau uRufeaar 2 | Current Assets
(@) | acmr fader (a) | Current Investments 16 - -
@) | AregE (b) | Inventories 17 592.54 366.44
(1) | @R it (c) | Trade Receivables 18 3,002.07 2,444.51
(@) |F®d UG Thar A (d) | Cash and Cash equivalents 19 5,849.11 5,732.70
(@) | ereuTafer For ud a1 (e) | Short Term Loans and Advances 20 225.85 126.30
(®) | o= gdaE gt (f) | Other Current Assets 21 1,074.55 1,026.07
Exsl TOTAL 15,534.76 14,071.42

oiRgiep Hiferam va fa<h faavon uwr fewforgi  Accounting Polices & Notes to Accounts 1 to 51
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Sd/-
B. K. Sahoo
Company
Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: 16.07.2018

In term of our report of even date attached

Sd/-

D. P. Srivastava
Director (Govt. Nominee)

Sd/-

For M D Gujrati & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.: 005301N

Sd/-
G. L. Agrawal
Partner
M.No.: 087454

D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah

D(F)/CMD
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31st March, 2018

(v. @t #) (X InLakh)

faavor Particulars fewgef) | adame RafET safer | fRech RuIféT srafeyr
et 01,/04 /2017 & 01/04 /2016 &
31,/03 /2018 @I 31,/03 /2017 &)
wIfd R ANidbs Ifd W s
Note Figures for the Figures for the
No. end of Current end of Previous
Reporting Period Reporting Period
from 01/04/2017 to from 01/04/2016 to
31/03/2018 31/03/2017
L |yored & Wora () I. | Revenue from operations (Gross) 22 6,820.09 4,598.80
e ST Yob Less:- Excise Duty - 3.33
TelTer ¥ XTord (frae) Revenue from operations (Net) 6,820.09 4,595.47
II. |s= amg II. | Other Income 23 965.89 1,178.99
II1. g o (I +11) III. | Total Revenue (I + II) 7,785.98 5,774.46
IV. |arg IV. |Expenses:
gad T @Y T Cost of Materials Consumed 24 288.60 6.05
WY AR R ST Hiring of Services 272.16 200.64
Wfp—ga—ge & Wle Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25 - -
FIR A1el, B i H qr Wio—gi—gs @ Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 26 (161.95) -
a1t g aRad Work-In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade
HHART fRda™ e Employee Benefits Expenses 27 5,439.86 4,732.69
i ara Finance Cost 28 - -
I8N Ud gReme Depreciation and Amortization 29 198.81 217.56
SURNHe B Impairment Loss 39 - 1.00
A Y Other Expenses 30 1,687.27 1,610.95
V. A g V. |Total Expenses 7,724.75 6,768.89
VL |amuarfes Ud SR Hel der &y Tf ik VI. |Profit before Exceptional and 61.23 (994.43)
(III1-V) Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-V)
VIL |aryqrfes ¥ VII. | Exceptional Items - -
VIIL | SrmeReT #iet doir &) gd @ (VI - VII) VIIIL | Profit before Extraordinary Items and 61.23 (994.43)
Tax (VI - VII)
IX. | 3qreRoT |/ IX. |Extraordinary Items - -
X. ¥ t{ﬁ o (VIII- IX) X. |Profit before Tax (VIII- IX) 61.23 (994.43)
XL &R &g XI. |Tax Expenses:
(1) g X (1) Current tax - -
(2) Proer auf &1 R (2) Earlier Years tax - 31.43
(3) AT B (3) Deferred tax (207.55) 32.38
XII \qf & forg o/ (g1f+) XII |Profit (Loss) for the Year 268.78 (1,058.24)
XIII | gy feadt R ama « (1000 /—%9¢ @& |#9e | X1 | Earning per Equity Share:(At Par Value of 31
) % 1000)
(1) et (o ¥) (1) Basic (in ) 155.38 (611.75)
() fafra (Bug #) (2) Diluted (in 3) 155.38 (611.75)
TR RIS A @) Herd RE & o/gar In term of our report of even date attached
FHd TH S ORI gs S For M D Gujrati & Co.
IS THISee Chartered Accountants
HH TSIHROT AT : 0053017 Firm Regn No.: 005301N
80,/ — 80/~ g0,/ — Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
. B wg 3. 0. sharaa Sf. v, srrare B. K. Sahoo D. P. Srivastava G. L. Agrawal
HUET g freeres (FREHRI AHifdd) yrflar Company Director (Govt. Nominee) Partner
UHA.: 087454 Secretary M.No.: 087454
B0,/ — Sd/-
A : AT I . guTH} Ear Place: Noida D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah
faTia : 16.07.2018 freere (fa=r) vd wee s Date: 16.07.2018 D(F)/CMD
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
31st March 2018
(dug o ®) (¥ In Lakh)

31 9T, 2018 |31 A€, 2017
P g« a9 | B W ad
Year ended | Year ended
31-Mar-18 | 31-Mar-17
®) ydarad IRty @ 95 yare A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PR Ud IR A& | t{\a( e @ Net Profit before Taxes and Extraordinary items 61.23 (994.43)
e & forg wHmiror — Adjustments for :
TeIET Ud gReie (81 wfea) Depreciation & Amortisation (incl impairment) 198.81 218.56
EISESIES Interest Income (601.56) (609.41)
<Y uR¥ufeat @1 [ o) o /71 (Frae) Profit/loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 031 (0.46)
SRICC) W aIffrEl & forg yraur (9 @i # UigEt W | Prov for bad & doubtful advances (net off excess prov. written 3.08 (46.41)
e fraer o) back)
Bl gt waratsH @ qd yarer amy Operating profit before working capital adjustments (338.13) | (1432.15)
3=y <rafafy aFaRat vd dafafd graem # ?{'lf&' (+) /(=) Increase(+)/Decrease(-) in Other long term Liabilities and Long 224.07 71.46
term Provision
3 STeUTafy SIRAT UG SredTafdy yrae # qﬁﬁ' () /@M (=) Increase(ﬁ-.)/.Decrease(-) in Other Short term Liabilities and Short 783.39 (413.25)
term Provision
AR el § g (+) /P () Increase(+)/Decrease(-) in Trade Payables 187.10 (168.38)
AR YT EI'?&' ) /a4 () Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Trade Receivable/other receivables (555.59) 275.81
ArerRgar # qfg (+) /HH(-) Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Inventory (231.46) 6.29
Jreuraf®y For vd i ?{ﬁ&'(*')/ BHI(-) Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Short term Loans & Advances (99.55) 0.31
Srafafy o v aifim # &) /() Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Long term Loans & Advances (1.04) 9.43
3 fR—aca uRwufarar 4 E.l"‘l&'(‘*‘)/a’_’ﬁ(—) Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Other Non Current Asset (336.58) 1250.11
3=y gaE uReufeal # gf&H+) /() Increase(-)/Decrease(+) in Other Current Asset (116.53) 131.26
SIECE Income Tax - (31.43)
AT fafatal @ Fad Ted yaw (@) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities(A) (484.32) (300.54)
(@) g Tfafafml @ T5d yars B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Tl Td It uRwufcaat @ el Purchase of Tangible and Intangible Assets (69.70) (121.72)
Wreegemsy § & Decrease in CWIP - -
Sufeqal, HE qT UGN B AT Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.51 2.75
BN Interest Income 669.92 569.99
fraer Tfafafet | frae o yare (@) Net Cash flow from Investing Activities(B) 600.73 451.02
(1) facqdTyor Tfafafert § e vaw C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
o Rod & o Decrease in Cash Reserve - -
AT YT Payment of dividends - -
AT WR Y Tax on dividend - -
fareraiyor arfafaferll & wygaa fae Fad (1) Net cash used in Financing Activities(C) 0.00 0.00
el Ud Adhal wAged W fad gfg / @) NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 116,41 150.48
(F+@T+7) EQUIVALENTS (A + B + C)
I§ F ART H THAT U4 THal T Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5732.70 5582.22
<Y v Fodt wAged A fract fy /(@) Eg;légf;\l?%ma / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH el 15048
¢ & i # TP vd TH FEged (Hed fewol He 19) Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Ref Note No.: 19) 5849.11 5732.70

> @




Annual Report 2017-18

THE T b G H Al B H AT db H dAle], WA oIl Year ended | Year ended
ST T W A R e &1 e wd adl hged B Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances | 31-Mar-18 | 31-Mar-17

5 & ¥ wnfver e T & AR I — with banks in Current Accounts and Balances with banks in

ﬂ;ﬂﬁ' ' g Deposits Account. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash | 34 wf, 2018 |31 @, 2017
T el 21 flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts. @ g ad @) wHrea a

S T H T 1] Wil # b & o 99 eI Cash in hand and balances with banks in Current Accounts 69.23 115.94
ST el A A @ e A e Balances with banks in Deposits account 5779.88 5616.76
qf & 3T F THd v Thd wAged (Had fewel W 19) Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Ref Note No.: 19) | 5849.11 5732.70
¥ & 3 § U TPl UG FAhal A H dbl b U S
q %‘@ i a8 ¥ Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year include deposit with banks ¥2199.75/- lakhs

2830.77 ?’I'I;Z;W Y ’ N N which are not freely remissible to the company because of pledged against BG/OD.
Rifd a8 RS /3R gie & faog fRd

FARY s [AfYy @1 Hora Ruld & s

In term of our report of even date attached

FHd TH S ORI g S For M D Gujrati & Co.
IS THISCe Chartered Accountants
HH TSHROT AT : 0053017 Firm Regn No.: 005301N
80,/ — 80/~ g0,/ — Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
€. &. w9, 1. q. sfiareaa SfY. Tel. 3rraret B. K. Sahoo D. P. Srivastava G. L. Agrawal
FUE AfRg fFeers (WReRT AmHifdd) 9rfeR Company Director (Govt. Nominee) Partner
UH.A: 087454 Secretary M.No.: 087454
B0,/ — Sd/-
RO : AITST 3. T, guTaH] AT Place: Noida D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah
fadi® : 16.07.2018 R (fad) vd gse fAewrs Date: 16.07.2018 D(F)/CMD
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1.

A.

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended
31st March, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General

Thefinancial statementshavebeen prepared onagoing
concern basis under the historical cost convention in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, applicable Accounting Standards and as
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Income from Contracts is recognized as under:
1.1 Contracts completed and handed over:

Full value of contract and additional services,
if any, rendered, after providing for all known
/ guaranteed liabilities, wherever required
and reduced by income taken upto previous
accounting year.

1.2 Contracts in progress:
1.2.1Executed by Company:

a. Design Engineering and Project Management
Consultancy Services

Income accrued calculated on the basis
of percentage completion as per technical
assessment of physical progress of the project
having contract scheduled completion period
of more than one year, after taking into account
maximum liabilities including contingencies,
warranties etc as per contract except in cases
where progress is less than 15%, which is taken
at cost as contract work-in-progress. Income
from construction supervision is calculated on
accrual basis

b. Turnkey Projects

i)  Consultancy fee is recognized as per 1.2.1(a), in
cases where such fee is stipulated as a separate
item in the contract.

ii) In other cases, income is recognized on the
basis of percentage completion as determined
in the ratio of cost incurred on work performed
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to estimated total cost of contract, after taking
into account maximum liabilities including
contingency , warranties etc as per contract
except in cases where progress is less than 25%,
which is taken at cost as contract work-in-
progress.

1.2.2Executed by Sub-contractors:

Income accrued is calculated on the progress
of the job achieved by the sub-contractors
and accepted by the owner / contractor after
considering estimated amount of liabilities
arising out of the contract, including
contingencies, warranties, etc.

Sale of products and services

2.1 Income from other services is recognized as per
invoices raised based on the milestones achieved
in accordance with the contractual stipulations.

2.2 Sale of Products is net of excise duty.

2.3 Claims inclusive of Liquidated Damages against
contracts are accounted for on acceptance basis.

Provisions/ Liabilities

Liabilities / provisions made in previous years but
remaining unclaimed over five years are written back
on merit basis.

Depreciation/Amortization

4.1 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
is charged on Straight Line Method either on
the basis of useful life of the assets evaluated
by a committee or as per useful life specified
in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,
whichever is lower.

4.2 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
capitalized / disposed off / discarded during the
year is charged proportionate to the date of such
addition / disposal / discarding. No depreciation
is provided on assets held for disposal/retired
from active use.

4.3 Intangible assets (Software Applications) are
amortized over their useful life on straight
line method. Useful life of three years without
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AMC and five years with AMC of software
applications.

4.4 Premium on Lease hold land is amortized over
the period of lease.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenditure incurred upto I5000/- in each
case is charged to the current year’s revenue account.

Prior Period Income / Expenditure

Income and Expenditure pertaining to earlier period
upto ¥20,000/- in each case is included in the current
year’s account.

Income / Expenditure accounted for on cash basis
7.1 Insurance & Other Claims.
7.2 Sale of Scrap.

7.3 Interest on overdue debtors/creditors, delay in
payment of taxes and tax refunds.

7.4 Rent of quarters at Sindri
Foreign currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction.
All monetary assets & liabilities are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the year end and the
differences, if any, are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Investments

Long Term investments are stated at cost and
provision is made for any diminution in such value,
which is not temporary in nature.

Valuation of Inventories

Raw Materials — at lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Stores & Spares

2.1 Stores & Spares valued at cost calculated on
weighted average basis. Item of stores and spares
which are slow / non-moving are valued at lower
of cost or net realizable value based on technical
assessment / estimated realizable value except
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unserviceable, damaged and obsolete stores and
spares for which 100% provisions are made.

2.2 Stores and spares are recognized as Inventory if
expected useful life of the item is up to twelve
months. In case expected useful life of the item
is more than twelve months and it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will not flow to the company, the same
are also recognized as Inventory.

Contract work-in-progress — at cost.

Semi finished goods — at lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis
and includes cost of material and proportionate
conversion costs.

Finished Goods :

5.1 Catalyst — at lower of the cost or net realizable
value.

5.2 By Product - at net realizable value.
Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment purchased / constructed
by the company is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Property, Plant & Equipment transferred by FCI Ltd.,
on bifurcation have been stated at net transfer price
less accumulated depreciation.

Additional depreciation on non active Property, Plant
& Equipment is provided due to erosion in the value
of the assets based on technical / financial evaluation
by the company leaving a residual value of ¥1/- for
each asset in the books.

Property, Plant & Equipment acquired out of Govt.
funds/grants and company’s contribution,if any, are
stated net of grants at a nominal value of ¥1/- per
asset.

Stores and spares are recognized as Property, Plant
and Equipment if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
company and expected useful life of the item is more
than twelve months.
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6. Capital work-in-progress — at cost.

7.

Impairment of Assets

An Asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost
of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment
loss is charged to statement of profit and loss in the
year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognised in prior accounting
period is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount.

Excise Duty

Excise Duty on manufacturing goods is accounted
for in the books on accrual basis but paid on actual
clearance of goods.

Government Grants

Grant received on account of voluntary retirement
separation Scheme for employees are deducted from
the related expenditure.

Grant received on revenue account are included in
other income to the extent of utilization.

Grants received on capital account are reduced from
the Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible
Assets acquired to the extent of Grant received.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition
or construction of a qualifying asset is capitalized as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are charged to revenue.

Employees Benefit

(a) Company’s contribution under Provident
Fund / Employees Families Pension Scheme is

accounted for on accrual basis.

(b) Gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable to
employees is administered by a separate trust,
which has taken a Group Gratuity Policy with
LIC. The risk premium on the LIC policy and the
expenses as arrived by the Actuarial valuation
are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.
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(c) Earned Leave and Medical Leave benefits are
provided in the accounts on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

Taxation

Provision for current Income Tax is made in
accordance with the Income tax Act 1961.

Deferred Tax resulting from “timing difference”
between book profit and taxable profit for the year
is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted as on
the Balance Sheet date. The deferred tax assets are
recognized and carried forward to the extent that
there is a virtual certainty that the assets will be
adjusted in future.

Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. A contingent liability is recognized for:

(a) A present obligation that arises from past events
but is not recognized as a provision because
either the possibility that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation is remote or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot
be made.

(b) A possible obligation that arises from past events
and the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company.

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.
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31 9, 2018 &1 gaT< 99 @ forv facha faavon uw fewfrar

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

2 I ‘{\Gﬁ 2. SHARE CAPITAL
(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)
faazor PARTICULARS 31 979, 2018 ®I |31 A€, 2017 Sl
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
3#%1—43?[ AUTHORISED
1000 /—%9Q Uy ¥R Hed & 470000 | 470000 Equity Shares of 1,000/ each 4,700.00 4,700.00
sfaael IR
7 gfgerg IN—T=R 9= 3| 130000 7% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
1000 /—%97 UfY IR e @ 130000 | Shares of ¥1000/- each 1,300.00 1,300.00
AT IR
6,000.00 6,000.00
forffya sifiecd ik gea g\trﬁ ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
Ud 1000 /—BUT B 172085 sfdad| 172985 Equity Shares [Previous year 172985 Equity 1,729.85 1,729.85
IR (foe af 172085 W) (RRA Shares(out of which 42485 shares were alloted as
42485 SRR S B & aramar fapet| fully paid up for consideration other than cash)] of
3= l;rl%tm % forg ot e ura ot Y1000/~ each.
P w9 H adfed fhu ),
sl TOTAL 1,729.85 1,729.85

2.1 IR Yofl gyded
%) RUid srafr & g=w ud ofd § w9 & fog @fed

2.1 Disclosure of Share Capital
a.  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the reporting period

RR
(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)
2017-18 2016-17
IR B wE&T | ([ U ) | AR B "er | (R vue #)
No of Shares | (Tin Lakh) | No of Shares | (% in Lakh)
sfead) IR Equity Shares
9Y B AR H At the beginning of the year 172,985 1,729.85 172,985 1,729.85
9§ & IRE AR Issued during the year - - _ _
¥ & eRM 99 @9e U | Bought back during the year - _ } :
¥ & 3fd H g Outstanding at the end of the year 172,985 1,729.85 172,985 1,729.85

@) sfdad) IRY & e o I /3fEeR

HIAI BT 1000/ —FUY & AT dTel gfaacT AARA
BT Bad Udh o 9 2| 3fdad] IR BT TAH IR,
iy IR TP dIc BT BN B | U= IR By H
SrTer BT SR HITA ARl B |

Syl ¥ 5 gfaerg @ sifre AR aRa &9 arad
IRRYRDI BT faaxor

K

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Company has only one class of equity shares having a par
value of ¥1000/-. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian rupees.

¢ Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares
in the company
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2017-18 2016-17

faavor aTRd IR &) g1 | a1lRd &1 yfeerd | aRa IRRT @) "= | aiRa &1 gfoea

Particulars No of Shares Held % Holding No of Shares Held % Holding

sfadad IR Equity Shares

WRA @ rgyfey | President of India 172,976 99.99% 172,976 99.99%
172,976 99.99% 172,976 99.99%
) ordy @) & TRl #, U 7 AT Thr I d  The Company has not allotted any fully paid up shares

pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received
in cash nor has allotted any fully paid up shares by way
of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of shares
during the period of five years immediately preceding the
Balance Sheet date.

g g, 31 W i ueed R &R T & FE W
quid: & AR A9 b ARIgH ¥ Ifdfed by § 3R
T8 god uF @ [y § gRa o= av ugd @ safy
@ SR WRI & fHA W a7 BT aqIq WIS 7 |

3. fRod 9 sifeeiy 3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)
faavor PARTICULARS 31 91, 2018 &I | 31 9T, 2017 HI
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
@) | 9ot Rad (i) | Capital Reserve
goit Rerd (reel goet v & Capital Reserve (As per Last Balance 340.38 340.38
ITAR) Sheet)
(i) | = Rerd (i) | General Reserve
31T Y Opening balance 913.30 913.30
SIS o g B faaRor & sidRd Add. Transfered from Statement of Profit - -
& Loss
gemd : a9 & SR SR Less. Utilized during the Year - -
3T oY Closing Balance 913.30 913.30
(iil) | <y 9 ' < Er (iii) | Profit & Loss Account
319 I Opening balance 7,786.49 8,844.73
SIS : o g B9 faavor 9 faRd Add. Transfered from Statement of Profit (268.78) (1,058.24)
& Loss
Ter : e Less: Appropriation
A= Rerd § siald Transfered to General Reserve - -
TRATfad oI Proposed Dividend - -
SURY Afed e faavor wR Dividend Distribution Tax including - -
Cess
3T I Closing Balance 8,055.27 7,786.49
o (i)+(ii) +(iii) TOTAL (i)+(ii)+(iii) 9,308.95 9,040.17
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3.1

As per the Revival package of the company approved by
the Govt. of india vide letter No. 19027/2/99-FCA-II dated
7th May, 2003, the GOI has extended non-plan funds of
%136.51 crore towards implementation of the sanctioned
Revival Scheme. The unutilized funds of ¥3.94 crore
(previous year ¥3.94 crore) have been kept in General
Reserve for utilization in future. Further unutilized funds
of ¥3.40 crore (Previous Year ¥3.40 crore) received for

AN & I~ Bg U 3.40 dxis vud (Uwel a¥ 3.40
IR TU) DI SR SR IR DI, goit Rerd # <@ = 7|

water supply and other infrastructure and technology
up gradation of Catalyst plant has been kept in Capital

Reserve.
4. <rddrel| E&u1 4. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)
31 914, 2018 @I 31 ¥4, 2017 &I
faavor PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
rafafd IuR Long-term Borrowings - -
e | TOTAL ; i
5. AR &R aREuREAT / =iRar 5. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (NET)
(vuq @@ #) (X in Lakh)
faazor PARTICULARS 31 91d, 2018 &Y 31 A1d, 2017 &1
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Mg &R gREgRgt Deferred Tax Assets 713.94 533.90
JMRARTT B SHSTRAT Deferred Tax Liabilities 177.35 204.86
el o) aReuir / (SeRa) / (Fraer) | Defferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)(Net) 536.59 329.04
el TOTAL 536.59 329.04

5.1. 3MeIfa & uREIRET /<9<l & yq9 uca

5.1. Major Components of Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities

(¥uv @ ®) (% in Lakh)

faavor Particulars 31 914, 2018 @1 | 31 91, 2017 &I
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
& | 3AfId ) S9N gcd A. | Deferred Tax Liability Component
HY-T IAfAf=E, 2013 der Diff. of W.D.V as per Companies Act, 2013 536.43 591.95
3MIHY a‘@ﬁ'q’q 1961 zf\,“ QHTTRI & Income Tax ACt, 1961
EEOSIVEIVICIRC RN
Tl ARANT R TR TTh Total Deferred Liability Component 536.43 591.95
fAeEE <) W) &d g Total Deferred Tax Liability Component at
> o1e 177.35 204.86
PR AN "D (&) Prevailing Rate (A)
9 | arefira o) yRyufed gca B. | Deferred Tax Assets Component
IR fer Disallowance:

P &
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— 3MIPBN INfATH, 1961 BT GRT -As Per Sec 43 B of I.T Act,1961 1808.58 1189.66
43 1 & AR
— 39 -Others 350.76 353.03
FoT IRAMT B uRAUTTIT Total Deferred Tax Assets Component 2159.34 1542.70
gch
oM e ) Ex| e Total Deferred Tax Assets Component at 713.94 533.90
) IRYuRa uea (@) Prevailing Rate (B)
fad e &) (@Ryuf) / Net Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability (536.59) (329.04)
TN HeP (—) Component (A-B)
eIV : 01,/04 /2017 BT 3 IY Less : Opening Balance as on 01/04/2017 (329.04) (361.42)
grau 9ifsa (g fae 1) Provision Required/(written Back) (207.55) 32.38

6. 3 <rgfafer e-erRar 6. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
(vuq @@ #) (X in Lakh)
faaxor PARTICULARS 31 91, 2018 &1 | 31 HId, 2017 B
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
UR g Trade Payable - -
I Others
ar{ﬁ—ch—m‘ /SPER /I — gf%pi‘\f%[ STET Suppliers/Contractors/Others-Security Deposit 115.03 117.15
IRT TRER e (e fewely wwar - 47) | GOI Grant (Ref Note No. 47) . _
@l TOTAL 115.03 117.15
7. <rgfafer yragm= 7. LONG TERM PROVISIO](Y\F%_Q %) (Z in Lakh)
foaxor PARTICULARS 31 971, 2018 &I 31 91, 2017 B
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
HHAN fedard Employee Benefits
3T sraaTer Earned Leave 841.27 803.44
Rifrear sraarer Medical Leave 377.39 189.03
I Others - -
@l TOTAL 1,218.66 992.47
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8. 3IrcUTafer SR 8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
(¥ut @ #) (R in Lakh)
faaxor PARTICULARS 31 9d, 2018 @I 31 9, 2017 @)
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
TS IR Short-term Borrowings - -
L TOTAL ] )
9. YR Y 9. TRADE PAYABLES
(¥uq @@ #) (X in Lakh)
faa=or PARTICULARS 31 ATd, 2018 B | 31 AT, 2017 &I
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
e, oY AT FEH S MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
eH, oY AT FEH SOH ® Other than MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises 699.21 512.11
SKICH
@l TOTAL 699.21 512.11

9.1 The company has not received any memorandum (as
required to be filed by the suppliers with the notified
authority under MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006) claiming their status as MICRO,
Small and Medium Enterprises, consequently there are no
such entities to whom the company owes dues, which are

outstanding for more than 45 days as on 31st March, 2018.

9.1 PUAl Bl GeH, oY 3MR HeFH ITH & WU H fu Reafy
BT A1 PR ATl BIs W SO AT e g3r (Snfes
[eH, oY AR 7T 7 ITH A AfAfTIw, 2006 & Ted
Srfergfera frevor & Uy Syfidate gRT wRgd faam
ST 3MMeaed ), TagaR VAl B 1 3318 721 @, ord
FUA §RT g IR™AT FHRIT 8, Sl 31 ATd, 2018 Bl 45
o & e smafdy & garm & |

JeH, oY AR wew IeM fJbr rffem, 2006 (@1fe
) & d8d Ude {6y 9 @& foy smawas e
9T UGl o IR RafS & smR W fFiRa or
TS B | IET-eTdl gRT 9 ol W R fBar wan
2| AT @ arT 22 @ I SMATEE WRIHROT
FgaR 21 e gmam R <9 e & ded |
G H, dad ol e @ IWid by TU IaEi &
ey #§ & fuiRa fear = 2

9.2 The information as required to be disclosed under The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (“the Act”) has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified by the company, on the
basis of information and records available with them.
This information has been relied upon by the auditors.
Disclosure as required under section 22 of the Act, is as
under. Disclosure in respect of interest due on delayed
payment has been determined only in respect of payments
made after the receipt of information, with regards to

filing of memorandum, from the respective suppliers.

9.2

(vuy @ #) (R in Lakh)

LA faazor §.No. Particulars 31 51, 2018 ®I | 31 ", 2017 BT
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
(1) | af & ofd # e @ oA (i) | Principal amount remaining unpaid as at - -
Ut end of the year
(i) | SWRFd W T 9 (ii) | Interest due on above - -
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L& (i) 3R (i)

2 | e & fAdd ¥ yIaE
PR W UG ATl BT I,
Y & SRM 59 TRE b Al D
wre foar T

3 | g & faclg | YA
PRA W ST AN, a4 B ARM
S e B &S D (91 b
T

4 ¥ & 3id H AT & fIed
A AT B S G H U
N IR < e

5 |yd g8t & ¥ &R gram arg

RISKIES I

1 Total of (i) & (ii)

2 |Interest paid on delayed payment of -

during the year

principal, paid along with such interest

3 |Interest due on delayed payment of -

during the year

principal, paid without such interest

4 | Interest accrued but not due, in respect of -

end of the year

delayed payments of principal due as at

5 | Total interest due and payable together -

with that from prior year(s)

10. 3F 9dHT ISR

10. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 31 91, 2018 &1 | 31 4/, 2017 &)
As at As at

31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017

tj\?;ﬁ'rm g & forv Roremar Creditors for Capital Expenditure 0.51 0.51

ERERCI NN Salaries & Wages 321.79 323.73

IRA WRBR e (Fed fewoft W : 47) | GOI Grant (Ref Note No. 47) 35.00 35.00

Dl I A Advances from Customers 1,016.38 767.31

aTqﬁ-cﬁ'f /3PN /3 — STHS! /ST Suppliers/Contractors/Others-EMD/Deposit 11.86 9.29

= <Y Other Payables 492.09 351.13
RId Y FR 9 I T Afed) (including withholding tax & other payables)

ol TOTAL 1,877.63 1,486.97

11. 3reyrafer graenm=

11. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

(duv @ ®) (% in Lakh)

faaor PARTICULARS 31 9T, 2018 BI 31 W, 2017 B1
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
SN fFdam™ Employee Benefits
Sy Gratuity 321.38 34.97
Rifrcar raaTsT Medical Leave 54.82 6.41
31T sraamTer Earned Leave 134.77 67.12
Jarfrgfea Suxia fafdear Post Retirement Medical 74.46 84.20
I Others
sfead) IR uv e Dividend on Equity Shares
HNPR Pl AT Dividend to Govt. - -
RIG ISR CRRURG Dividend Distribution Tax - -
3MIBNY YT Income Tax Provision - -
Bl TOTAL 585.43 192.70
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12A Capital Work-in-Progress

(vuv @ ®) (% in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 31 9, 2018 @I 31 9, 2017 &I
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
SREREINIEN] Plant & Machinery - :
fafae Sga=or Misc Equipments - .
Tl TOTAL ] )

129 faerarE= sppd aRdufeaan

12B Intangible Assets Under Development

(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)

faazor PARTICULARS 31 91d, 2018 @I 31 9Td, 2017 &1
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
AheR Software - -
oo TOTAL - ]
13. AR—gdar= faer 13. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(¥ut @™ ®) (X in Lakh)
foaxor PARTICULARS 31 914, 2018 &1 | 31 9, 2017 B
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
T ISR AEge fafics, YaRar ¥ | Investment ( Non-Trade unquoted & valued 5.00 5.00
TG 10 /6T s @ 5000 SRR F ey | at cost) 5000 shares of T 10/- each in
) M/s Rourkela Nitrate Ltd., Bhubaneshwar
(R—7< Sgd adT I8 W it )
Te : e ¥ firrge & forw yragm Less: Provision for Dimunition in value 5.00 5.00
wd TOTAL ] ]

13.1 9 &1 e

13.1 Disclosure For Investments

(vuq <@ #) (X in Lakh)

of investments

faazor PARTICULARS 31 @1d, 2018 &I 31 @1d, 2017 &
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Iga fFraer a1 o R Aggregate amount of quoted investments - _
Igd a9 &1 99R e Market value of quoted investments - ,
IR—Igd 9w &1 B o1 Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 5.00 5.00
e & qou # o 29 ol UrauE | Aggregate provision for diminution in value 5.00 5.00

_C
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14. LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(vuy <@ #) (X in Lakh)

fqavor PARTICULARS 31 919, 2018 I | 31 ¥, 2017 HI
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
amferyd, fem ara w=T TR Unsecured, Considered Good
goir 31 Capital Advances - -
I B U IH /T Advances/Deposits with Others
fem I 99 U Considered Good 95.35 94.31
ey 9 U Considered Doubtful 27.53 27.53
122.88 121.84
ey« wdfeve g9 v aifim /o & forw | Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances/ 27.53 27.53
YT Deposit
95.35 94.31
&l TOTAL 95.35 94.31

15. 3= IR—aTe] AUkl

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)

faa=or PARTICULARS 31 91|, 2018 &1 | 31 A, 2017 &Y
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
3 d 9y Other Bank Balances
AT ST @ § — R In Fixed Deposit Account-Pledged 943.94 213.42
[ ST @ § (12 A8 W 3Re B In Fixed Deposit Account (Maturity with 440.00 200.00
aRugadr Srafyy & ) — e more than 12 Months)-Unpledged
3 Others
I /U 89 dTel SISV AT U TDS Certificate received/to be Received 1,185.86 1,819.80
fuem & foro <& 8 aReufeaar Assets held for Disposal
Thol G Gross Block 1,061.46 1,061.46
gely : A HeusT Less: Accumulated Depreciation 971.85 971.85
fraa @< Net Block 89.61 89.61
e TOTAL 2,659.41 2,322.83
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16. ddu= ffraer 16. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)
faavor PARTICULARS 31 WTd, 2018 &I 31 41, 2017 ®I
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
CREIGRGEED Current Investments - -
Eas) TOTAL - -
17. m%ﬁ 17. INVENTORIES
(vuq <@ #) (X in Lakh)
faazor PARTICULARS 31 91, 2018 &1 | 31 #d, 2017 HI
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
YER, gﬁ AT 9 UfepT T Stores, Spares, Chemicals & Packing
Materials
YT amh Packing Material 17.61 1.24
YeR, XFIT Td ao—qr_g\—;‘f Stores Chemicals & Spare Parts 275.05 292.41
Her e Stores under Inspection - -
292.66 293.65
Hd] AT Raw material 119.28 48.79
TIR =TT Finished goods 303.39 241.37
e TR I Semi-finished goods 157.53 57.59
I URITSTRT ¥ 3Ty Surplus from other projects 13.90 13.90
594.10 361.65
Eas) TOTAL 886.76 655.30
HETY : IUANT WeR, He—Yuli, Feal aril | Less: Provision for loss on 294.22 288.86
TAT IR 7T &) B & o0 yraens Unserviceable stores, spare parts, raw
material and finished stock.
@l TOTAL 592.54 366.44

171 WIoREdl 7 377.96 o vUd (ool af 40848 @@ 17.1  Inventories include non-moving / slow moving stocks
YY) & fol IR B HSR B wb gy A A of stores and spares, finished goods and raw materials
To ATl el SR Yof, URwpd "o SR Fear Al aggregating to 377.96 lakhs (previous year 3408.48
TS R | GhIP Gedieh / SAIE el AT Yo lakhs). Provision for estimated loss aggregating to
B YR TN @A} H 29422 ART SYIY (ﬁl‘&ﬁ a9 288.86 %294.22 lakhs (previous year ¥288.86 lakhs) has been
AT TT) &Y HA ST ST BT T AT T made in the accounts based on technical assessment /
8 estimated realizable value.

> ©
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(¥uv @ #) (% in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 31 914, 2018 1 | 31 94, 2017 &
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
gﬁral—c[ (ﬁa:‘r AT qET AT o9 d@ | Secured (Considered Good unless
AT AT STY) otherwise stated)
BE HE I IH Exceeding Six Months . -
3T T Other Debts - -
yferga Unsecured
BE A8 ¥ II® Exceeding Six Months 1,203.15 1,043.26
Gfewyg Doubtful 101.48 103.76
I T Other Debts 1,798.92 1,401.25
3,103.55 2,548.27
TCTU : ey ko & fory urgen= Less:- Provision for doubtful debts 101.48 103.76
Bl TOTAL 3,002.07 2,444.51

19. SI$dl Ud Fdhdl A 19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(duv @ ®) (% in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 31 5, 2018 B | 31 AT, 2017 B
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
THT Td Aha] SRR Cash and Cash equivalents
Tpar BT H Cash in Hand 1.07 1.03
Gl g | In Current Account 68.16 114.91
[Tafey ST W H (3 71E W A 3rafy @7 | In Fixed Deposit Account (Less than 3 480.64 675.00
aRueedn) — e month maturity)-Unpledged
[Tafer ST W H (3 718 W A 3rafey @t | In Fixed Deposit Account (Less than 3 342.75 348.04
aRugaan) — AR month maturity)-Pledged
I g Iy Other Bank Balances
A ST @ # (3 "E 9 eI wg | In Fixed Deposit Account (More than 3,099.49 2,110.99
e af d& @ uRugaar o@fy arel) | 3 month but upto one year maturity)-
— SR Unpledged
A ST @ # (3 "E 9 e Ry In Fixed Deposit Account (More than 3 1,857.00 2,482.73
e qf a% @ uRugaar oafd aren) — | month butupto one year maturity)-Pledged
RG]
wol TOTAL 5,849.11 5,732.70

19.1 A ST @ H 150.18 o $U (Uoel a9 14214 g 19.1
TU) TNl ST 3T PIUNTH & A1 A= =are] rgae
DI Al B ATAR STARIRIRIISE] oiEl & fofy are] @i H
Y Y 0.17 I 0 (Bl a9 0.19 IRg $W) d6 AT |
WA 81 © | SUAAIRIRINTSSY, @RI & AR ST W) YT
=1 B oidn afedl | e e T |

Bank Balance excludes ¥150.18 Lakhs (previous year
%142.14 Lakhs) in Fixed Deposit Account and %0.17
Lakhs (previous year %0.19 Lakhs) in Current Account
held in trust in ESCROW account as per terms of
various ongoing contracts with Indian Oil Corporation.
The Interest earned on Fixed Deposit in Escrow Account
has not been accounted for in books of Accounts.

I @)
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20. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 31 4rd, 2018 @1 | 31 |, 2017 ®)
As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
31 Advances:-
qHaT AT AR AT P wqH IR Recoverable in cash or kind or for value
I il (smfen) to be received (Unsecured):
fem I 9+ T8 Considered Good 222.48 121.06
Jfewer |9 U Considered Doubtful - -
222.48 121.06
HeTt : ey it & fore urgum= Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances - -
222.48 121.06
ST - Deposits:
e g |99 1Y Considered Good 3.37 5.24
ey 99 7y Considered Doubtful - -
3.37 5.24
HSTU : ey oA 1 & forw urgen Less: Provision for Doubtful Deposits - -
3.37 5.24
3= Others - _
X TOTAL 225.85 126.30
21. =g qdaE yREufeaar 21. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)
faaeor PARTICULARS 31 9rd, 2018 & | 31 W, 2017 B
As at As at
31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
I Others
R R Iuia o Income accured on Jobs 694.69 616.08
OId <Tel kg fafr o g e Interest accrued but not due on date 147.70 216.06
94 yed &Y Prepaid Expenses 166.68 150.28
aa—sﬁﬁ?r P} Yy R (@rTa #) Contract WIP (at Cost) 21.51 -
IRd WReR 9 e I IR (q'—c;'uf feaofy | GOI Grant Receivable (Ref Note No. 43.53 43.52
& : 47) 47)
3= yrieaar Other Receivables
sy Unsecured
PRI IR A T Considered Good 0.44 0.13
Hfewer 9 U Considered Doubtful - -
0.44 0.13
TCSTU : ey ko & fore urgwm Less:- Provision for doubtful debts - -
0.44 0.13
Hel TOTAL 1,074.55 1,026.07

> ©
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22. ATl | ol 22. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(¥ut @ #) (X in Lakh)

faavor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
defore T Catalyst Sale 267.72 29.93
3 Others 11.21 -
Thel @ Gross Sales 278.93 29.93
eI IS Yob Less: Excise Duty - 3.33
raer fasr Net Sale 278.93 26.60
goliferaf¥er Jard Engineering Services 5336.41 3793.65
foRYeror Jqre Inspection Services 1204.75 775.22
Ll TOTAL 6820.09 4595.47
23. 3G IA™Y 23. OTHER INCOME
(¥ut @ #) (R in Lakh)
faazor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
o] Interest 601.56 609.41
fepvrar Rent 233.09 221.23
fafaer ema Miscellaneous Income 97.27 54.11
faesh qaT g & 3R W oY Gain on Foreign Exchange Variation - 8.89
gReafeaal @) 98T uR o Profit on Sale of Assets 0.31 1.21
1R grgeTe / Bfee 99 /eerRar anfe, | Excess provision/credit balances/ 33.66 284.14
R Y liabilities etc. written back
Gl TOTAL 965.89 1,178.99

24. 9gdd AHAT B ITd

24. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)

faaor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
Pl AT Raw Material

yRfF wie Opening Stock 48.79 54.06
FENI Purchases 346.90 -
395.69 54.06
3d wfh Closing Stock 119.28 48.79
] IR gug Raw Material Consumed 276.41 5.27

AfbT I Packing Material
yRMY® idh Opening Stock 1.24 2.02
ECRIC Purchases 28.57 -
29.81 2.02
3T wfh Closing Stock 17.62 1.24
IfFT amh @ug Packing Material Consumed 12.19 0.78
el TOTAL 288.60 6.05
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25. PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

(¥ut @ ®) (% in Lakh)

faawor

PARTICULARS

2017-18

2016-17

Tlh—gT—gS BT Hd

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Bl

TOTAL

26. QIR HTel, B YIfad & dAT WCib—s1-cS

@1 AT A 9 aRada

26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED

GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESSAND STOCK-

IN-TRADE
(¥uv @ ®) (% in Lakh)
faavor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17

sifaw wie Closing Stock

TIR A1 Finished Goods 303.39 214.56
31el IR AT Semi Finished Goods 157.53 57.59
3ifM Wi R IR Yob Excise Duty on closing stock - 26.82

460.92 298.97

IRe wie Opening Stock

TR 91 Finished Goods 214.56 222.80
3 TR A" Semi Finished Goods 57.59 48.32
3ifer Wi IR e Yod Excise Duty on closing stock 26.82 27.85

298.97 298.97
el TOTAL (161.95) -
27. HHAN) feddm =g 27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(vuq <@ #) (X in Lakh)
faaxor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
I, ASTGR) Ud =T R Salaries, Wages & Other Benefits 4,105.17 3,862.74
3BT ABS BT Leave Encashment 276.63 285.58
Riferear argamrer Medical Leave 231.08 8.86
SUSH Gratuity 324.10 43.98
Jfasy =i § srere ™ Cotribution to Provident Fund 338.02 331.20
FAGSECIFC R Contribution to ESI 2.49 -
TISHRY &Y Township Expenses 25.88 22.89
HfAH TG B HAT T Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 128.15 168.53
@mﬁg%r IRTT Rifrear Post Retirement Medical 8.34 9.00
5,439.86 4,732.78
=g @i | (H)  SfaRor Transfer from (to) other Accounts - (0.09)
wd TOTAL 5,439.86 4,732.69
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28 fa <nra 28. FINANCE COST
(vuq @@ #) (X in Lakh)
faquor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
foca < Ta Finance Cost - -
Ec TOTAL - _
29. e Ud gRengs 29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
(vuq <@ #) (X in Lakh)
faquor PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
o aREufTa R geuer Depreciation on Tangible Assets 139.82 144.95
et uR¥ufeqal W Jeuer Depreciation on Intangible Assets 58.99 72.61
@l TOTAL 198.81 217.56
30. 3T Y 30. OTHER EXPENSES
(¥uv @ ®) (% in Lakh)
faa=or PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
AR, SR TG gﬁ Chemicals, Stores & Spares
uRRiE Opening 292.41 292.65
ECRIC Purchase 10.12 5.20
T : ifd idh Less: Closing Stock 275.05 292.41
AR, SR TG gryﬁ P Gud Chemicals, Stores & Spares Consumed 27.48 5.44
HCSTT : 3 W 3axor LESS:- Transfer to other Accounts
IEEGRCIEE Power & Fuel - -
q;r,ﬁ JIaT, YR Ug gﬁ Capital A/c, Stores & Spares - -
27.48 5.44
ST U4 galls Freight & Handling 9.63 0.77
fopRrar Rent 52.40 49.08
T Ud I Rates & Taxes 14.03 14.84
IS b Excise Duty - (1.03)
TN T_RYT Repair to Machinery 13.36 11.71
TIq H_Hd Repairs to Building 9.86 29.13
T IR Repairs to Other 63.10 81.12
e Insurance 5.87 2.75
[EEIEE Advertisment 6.76 15.70
b, dR Uq fedpe Postage Telegram and Stamps 5.75 6.13
I Pl a0l T ST B T Printing Stationary& Drawing Office Expenses 38.69 36.89
Ib TR Bank Charges 11.64 24.36
qre- a7 3T SUGRUN BT {har Hire Charges Of Vehicles & Other Equipment 61.06 65.05
a7 U gReage Travelling & Conveyance 197.24 192.87
JreTl Fg Security Expenses 177.74 102.10
Sofl, S8, el Ud ﬁ'»g’d Power,Fuel,Water & Electricity 296.16 210.13
TABIE Ud 3—Hol I Telephone & e-Mail Expenses 60.39 56.78
frafe =g Living Expenses 16.58 8.56

@ 4




B )
9 <t o T

Mini Ratna Category-1 CPSE and ISO 9001 : 2015 Company

PDIL
SR T4 3mafde uf3amen & forw N Subscription For Journal & Periodicals 1.26 2.09
Fodb dI8 3T BT T BT T Running Expenses Of Light Vehicles Other 493 10.25
Siferer ot vd AT & oI uraem= Provision For Doubtful Debts & Advances 2.30 0.55
YeR ¥ B /BN & o1 urgum= Provision/Loss On Shortage Of Stores,
Bl AN UG AN b Raw Materials & Finished Stock 5.35 27.93
IR IR Training Cost 10.98 3.12
AMheRR @1 Software Expenses 337.57 364.55
fafdres vd geaiRie <y Legal & Professional Expenses 5.85 2.16
ST B (fewof wHvan. 30.1) Audit Fees (Note no. 30.1) 3.72 3.72
SEToe @y (fewol <Hvar. 30.1) Audit Expenses (Note no. 30.1) 1.50 1.50
AT T Aeerd Travelling Expenses Director 3.28 5.14
feerd ded & dob | YNT o« & foru Wiy | Sitting Fee of Board of Directors 2.60 1.10
fafeg e Miscellaneous Expenses 139.51 133.29
e /gere ¥ uRGufeqal R e Loss On Assets Sold/Discarded 0.63 0.96
WTHANR =y (fewoly Heer. 46) CSR Expenses (Note no. 46) - 1.83
TJhls I Sanitation Expenses 92.98 68.05
PRITR Qe a9 Business Development Expenses 2.27 2.12
IIRP AR BIF Ud Y Internal Audit Fees & Expenses 1.10 1.17
e Wd # el U Afewe ko Bad Debts Written off - 66.44
qaiafy M @ @M & Hae) Prior Period Expenses(Net of Income) - 2.60
faesh Ll g # iR & o B8 Loss on Foreign Exchange Variation 3.70 -
el TOTAL 1,687.27 1,610.95

30.1 dgrfe fARvre &1 TR=fA®

30.1STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

(¥ut @ ®) (X in Lakh)

faawor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
TRITIET WA Audit Fees 3.00 3.30
PR oRGTeT b fory For Tax Audit 0.72 0.72
Tl |fed IS U oig @9 @ forg | For Travelling and out of pocket Exp. 1.50 1.50
Including provisions
Hel TOTAL 5.22 5.22
31. ufoeR ama 31. EARNING PER SHARE

"GRERR M ¥ HEd JEied AMe—20 & AR,
A TR e oM g @ TS ', R 5 99 ey
AT AT I T B 3fhford [haT TAT Bi—

_KC

Basic Earning Per Share has been reported as per Ac-
counting Standard-20 relating to “Earning per Share” ,
which has been computed by dividing net profit after tax
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for
the period as under:-
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(dut < ¥) [ in Lakh]
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
3Tl IRRYRDI BT ¢ a¥ Py 268.78 | (1058.24) Net profit for the year attributable 268.78 | (1058.24)
ffraer o (g sy #H) to equity shareholder—(3in Lakhs)
IR P A= 172,985 172,985 No. of Shares 172,985 172,985
gy ¥R sifed Jeu (T ) 1,000 1,000 Nominal Value per share (%) 1,000 1,000
EINEPECID] Earning per share
— ¥ (3Uy #) 155.38 | (611.75) - Basic (3)- 155.38 | (611.75)
— faf¥ra (vug #) 155.38 | (611.75) - Diluted (%)- 15538 | (611.75)

32. IrpRFP <FAqIRAT, o9d faw yraema =)
fy ¢
[P o9 #]
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
@ Refa a1 Rafa
P ITIR @ IR

%) FEN b fieg ww, 11455 137.09
e &0 & wy H
Uga™ el Bl TS

o) HYH P 3N W g6 gnr 1611.20 1788.35
1 T8 TIRfeAT |

M) e/ afe dfRRa,/ oy sffeiRa e
faarfed amer I Bl B

33. 39 yfdegdg

331 Yol oy R HTfad @1 S arell iR Uraens &) af
TS Y AISTRIT BT Bl AFATT e 149.24 AR T
(fFraer afi) (ool v 36.58 oG v (Faer 3rfiM) |

332 AAR & fadfed radl w® @ s A
D W W FEK B TS| AHm B, FA B IR
=1 faurlt <, uRwforg 981 foy o1 9aa € afe
JEaWHA T A1 99, RraH deg e gRr
fafRer /9t & S, graemE fear S |

33.3 ¥ 2014—15 T 9] B BT IR goi & foram ran
2| a2, fasy B ufreTRAl 9 S et wR faaR fay
fer iR o aul § S| A1 /9 BiF Ugd F B B
forg RiexY warT # arfaRe At ik vt & forg
416.11 g vU (Uoel a9 41611 ARG $UY) B 9
1991—92 W 1998—99 TP & foTy ART oMY B | HUAT o
I 3T U b © | qenfy, fasp wx urfdreiRal
¥ oIl & @fdd FUe & HRUT 99 2004—05 H b

32. Contingent liabilities not provided for

[% in Lakh]
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a)  Claims against 114.55 137.09
the company not
acknowledged as debt.
b)  Guarantees given by 1611.20 1788.35
the banks on behalf of

the company.

Amount not
ascertainable.

c)  Legal/Labour cases
pending / disputed

33. Other Commitments

33.1 Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for aggregates
to ¥149.24 lakhs (Net of advances) [previous year
336.58 lakhs (Net of advances)]

33.2 Penal interest payable on delayed payments of
Income Tax deducted at source, Sales Tax, Service
Tax and other statutory dues, cannot be quantified,
provision if required, will be made in the year when
assessed/demanded by relevant authority.

33.3 Assessment of Sales Tax has been completed up to
2014-15. However the Sales Tax Authorities had
raised demands for the year 1991-92 to 1998-99 of
%416.11 lakhs (previous year 3416.11 lakhs) towards
additional CST and BST at Sindri Division, without
considering the taxes deposited and for alleged non-
submission of C/IX forms in some of the years. The
Company has filed appeals against the said orders
and also obtained a stay against the demands.

© <
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T B BT & U 27.70 IR SYY BT UTae= fbar
AT B

IRS fovrr =1 Al 27 fEeR, 2016 @& 95 |&=AT
19021 /05 /2016—THIT. & <, fad #9ed &
fedld 11 FdeR, 2016 & ST A& Th A&l
3/21/2016—SIAEULCUAE], Hel\ &xd gY WRd
WHR §RT WINME Y. & FHrAIfas Aafae gg g
< U H IAGART B Al ol | oo URHRIP,
fafr weie iR wwfT Jeaidd o FgRe Sias.
YA /SRG T IRT RAR gRT & T8 | f2a
B Afefs | GdfT qel ot ufsarget & gar 2
IR T /SNAMEALTH. §RT TG BF SR
IR IR Ha T B MW wu Ry S @1 forar
Jfom =RoT H 2| Qe 14 a8, 2017 B U AT
SI3IU%. 19021 /05 /2016—THALY.  (dC  dIegdi—3)
e a1% 13 Jalg, 2017 B JGARDRI UF A&
19021 /05 /2016—VHMIY. (UC) (Gs—Ill) Herm= &
A A IRG [T 7 Fg fofg fomr & defore
Wic & A (e e NINeE.Ud. dbefove Wie
& AT RIeR) s Bl WSLams.ya. AT fafeer 3
e T S |

IRF T & (AP 14 Folls, 2017 & 93 G&AT
19021 /05 /2016—UH LY. (U diega—3) s
|1 3 ® 13 TS, 2017 BT JGLEDI T G&T
19021 /05 /2016— VB ALY, (41C) (ARA—3) Held o,
D IGERYT H IdRS frT gRT g ol ferm wam
o f6 MIMEra. & wrdfas fAafvdaer @1 wfesar
Y | dEgaR 41138 .Te. iR IR Sdva e =+
6 RIdaR, 2017 P TH FHIAT U9 W SRIER fdha
R wg SfealRaa o & N Erens e, awsiar s
TR EHER & IR & 180 fas & Wiax uRawafaar &
rferger fAue™ oxe & folv wWds ® 8k R SdR®
o fafice s g wmafaa & forw a1 fer wxgd
B BT EHAR A BRI | 39 FHITIR BT fRaR O+ A8
It 06.6.18 dF oAl 8 ATH, 2018 & SRS fAWTT
@ UF AT 18055 /10 /2017—-UH LY. (WFT-1I) gRT
far a1 B | 39 997q NIIMETA. & faid 30 S,
2018 & U AT UL SI3ME.Ud. /AT SN /55 B AEIH
T T A H AR AR T iR SdRe fawrT @
fa=i 19 S, 2018 & U AT 18055 / 102017—TH. .
TH IR & SIRY g9a! rgdfa < & 2| R #
Rerd wa wReig IR e foafics @& w4 # doiigd
TEe W 7| A &1 o8 9 NIMEY. & aafdd
Feol | ©, I forar T B

p @
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35.

However, pending disposal of the appeals by Sales
Tax authorities, an amount of 327.70 lakhs towards
missing Sales Tax forms has been provided in year
2004-05.

Department of Fertilizers (DOF) vide letter no.
19021/05/2016-FCA dated 27th December 2016
enclosing therewith O.M. ENo. 3/21/2016-DIPAM-B
dated 11th November 2016 of DIPAM, Ministry of
Finance informed ‘in principle’ approval for Strategic
Disinvestment of PDIL by Government of India.
Transaction Advisor (TA), Legal Advisor (LA) and
Assets Valuer were appointed by DIPAM/DOE
Government of India. Process of issue of Expression
of Interest (Eol) has been completed. Request for
Proposal (RFP) and Share Purchase Agreement
(SPA) are in advanced stage of finalization by DOF/
DIPAM. It was decided by DOF to hive off Sindri
Land along with Catalyst Plant from the process
of Strategic Disinvestment of PDIL vide DOF
letter No. 19021/05/2016-FCA(pt.Vol-3) dated
14th July 2017 enclosing therewith D.O. letter No.
19021/05/2016-FCA(Part)(Vol.III) dated 13th July
2017.

In pursuant to the Department of Fertilizers (DOF)
letter No. 19021/05/2016-FCA(pt. Vol-3) dated
14th July 2017 enclosing therewith D.O. letter No.
19021/05/2016-FCA(Part)(Vol.III) dated 13th July
2017 whereby it was decided by DOF to hive oft Sindri
Land along with Catalyst Plant from the process of
strategic disinvestment of PDIL. Accordingly, PDIL
and Fertilizer Corporation India Limited (FCIL)
has signed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
dated 6th September 2017 wherein PDIL is free to
carry/dispose of assets within 180 days from the date
of signing MOU and FCIL shall not liable to provide
any consideration for the left out assets. This period
has been extended by three months i.e. till 06.06.2018
vide DOF letter No. 18055/10/2017-FCA-(Part-II)
dated 8th March 2018. Further extension has been
sought till 31.08.2018 vide PDIL letter no. PDIL/
CMD/55 dated 30th May 2018 and the same was
allowed by DOF vide letter No. 18055/10/2017-FCA-
Part-II dated 19th June 2018. Buildings located at
Sindri are on land registered in the name of FCIL.
The land value, which is under actual possession of
the PDIL, has been taken as ‘NIL.
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In line with AS 24: discontinuing Operations, the
disclosures for Catalyst plant, which is a separate
segment as per AS 17, is as below:

(g BuY H) [ in Lakh]
2017-18 Total 2016-17 Total
2017.18 @A A 201647 | HA AT
o ] 0 =]
g i) E 2 s 2
E | g = | ¢
x| < x| o @ E a3 5
% % Particulars '-9 9 -8 o
g g g 2
g 3 £ 3
o AR 7469.83 [316.15 778598 |5733.40 |41.06  |5774.46 g g g g
o T 7128.69 [596.06 |7724.75 |6484.20 |284.69 |6768.89 g g
T/ (@rf) 34114 |(279.91) |61.23  |(750.80) |(243.63)(994.43)
o d _ Turnover 7469.83 |316.15 | 7785.98 | 5733.40 |41.06 | 5774.46
]ﬁ { ‘ @t 1299.81 |108.82 1408.63 1390.75 108.84 11499.59 Total Expenses 7128.69 | 596.06 7724.75 | 6484.20 | 284.69 6768.89
ikl Profit/(Loss) 1341 14 | (279.91) | 6123 0.80) | (243.63) | (994.43
goiTa Rerd 34038 |34038 34038 |340.38 Before Tax 141 (279.91) | 61. (750.80) | (243.63) | (994.43)
. . . WDV of
36. AR W, AR SAa1Ral #or iR B, ufonyfar Tangible Assets | 12981 | 108:82 | 1408.63 | 1390.75 | 108.84 | 1499.59
ST 3R 3= QIAI3I B S T dTel HB ¥ Ge /| Capital Reserve 34038 34038 |- 34038 | 340.38
@ o E 36. Some of the balances appearing under Trade
37. ORATHRYT AMGI (TTH)—20 TG, IHRAG SN Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans & Advances,
SR o Res TREURE ¥ affi srER Artade Rig Security Deposit and other liabilities are subject to
s : confirmation / reconciliation.
Tl & AR WUl ®I eIl diell Bl acdHM /
<A el & | 37. There are no present obligations requiring provisions
: : in accordance with the guiding principles as
38. UH—7 & IRV H IHGR: 3Adhed AfIIDT 3R . . .
S 3 & <idr & P enunciated in Accounting Standards (AS)-29
ECHICEL! dfaTat 8 erarenRor— “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
(e e ) Assets”
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 38. Information pursuant to AS-7: accounting for
F. | aafy § ToRg & wY F JET T 2030.14 1166.63 Construction contracts in respect of contracts for
FfreT YoRa Design Engineering and Construction Supervision:
. | yfa o dfaeret o dau o [Z in Lakh]
N & 15664 906179 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
1 N .
3,1'3'2018 P <9 T A. | Contract revenue recognized as revenue 2030.14 1166.63
Gfder ofTd 3R A o in the period.
(' RSIREZIR ) B. In respect of contracts in progress:
i) grg fim - - i) Contract costs incurred and 11156.64 9061.79
recognized profits (less recognized
i) gfeeor - - losses) upto 31.3.2018.
iv) O kT et 694.69 616.09 ii)  Advances Received - -
iii)  Retentions - -
v . fr 166.35 149.30
) UTERT BT T AP iv)  Gross amount due from customers 694.69 616.09
. | fa<frg faaron (fewofi—1) & fewfrif & SWs— & I_1—1 v)  Gross amount due to customers 166.35 149.30
D AR T ﬂﬁa‘[&ﬁ D Q;Uf ?If[ P 7l 3N gy C. The method to determine the contract revenue recognition in the
P o= e roRg YR B ggfy period & stage of completion of contracts in progress as per Para (1) of
i i %I'Q ! clause B of Notes to Financial Statements (Notes-1).

o <4
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U (oEn) o, 2014 & W 7 @ @ ufeqd
FUA AR, 2013 @ Hdg GRT B Ifd
ORI “URAURRT & JTAFIAT’ TR eRATHRY
AME (QUH)—26 & AR, FURl, FIF AT UGB
3R 3 uREURTl @1 SRTHIT AT BT ST BT
B UM b forg af & ofd # AHlem B TS | Y
ARG FR Pl AR B (U8l 98 1.0 g T0)
DI defele TN & aREGURET @ aqe arg iy
BT TN H o7 R IR axa e faar a1 2|
T TN H eI B FONHD Adbal gare ¥ uaRuifd g5
2, 3afIe Joa B & BRYT 11256 g v (Ued
Y 11256 AR FU) & UH aqell A7 JeI BT Ifed
AT ST AT € | 329.30 ARG BUY ({Ueel a¥ 320,
30 TG TR BT TG ANTd & fawg & daeg # I
(oot v 1.00 TRT TUA) BT JTATHRI B DI oIEmRi
H Uga @I TS 7

HHaAY faderd

TUA—15 & IJAR, HHARI 3™ SRITHRT AP
H gRHINT SR HHAR! A ®T Udhed -1 a1 1
g

gRYTYT e o
99 & forv @il & w9 § 9=y, gR9I sfere™ Ao
P 3fee e ypR g

faaxor 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(g v ¥) | (a9 H)

qfgsy A § fogeT @1 arTeE

286.01 275.71

Yo i @ for faRpr &1 areE

52.01 55.49

Fftafiar & forv faer o1 arreE - _

Q)

gRYIIT R Arst=r

HHANT U A T, v aRuia fedem arerr
2| TUAT BT IO I YeIfud e Bfse ugfa @
TINT X dHifdhd Hedidhd & YR UR HeiRa fdar
ST ® R Sifcm < dm &1 T B B fory HHany
M g B ARG YT B gy B D g
H AT P YYD @A DI GEA DI ST B | DI
THAER B foI7 AT B SUSH & FHF D H Bl
gA B Sl B |

gRYTIYT fRdam™ <aar @ (SI18N) & Ry iR 3ifaH
Y BT AT

P
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In accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-28 on
"Impairment of Assets" notified under the relevant
section of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
carrying amount of Property, Plant & Equipment
and Intangible Assets have been reviewed at year end
for indication of impairment loss. The Impairment
loss of NIl lakhs (previous year ¥1.00 lakhs) has
been recognized in the accounts relating to Catalyst
Division. The recoverable amount of the Assets of
the Catalyst Division has been arrived at considering
the value in use. Since the Value in use has resulted
in negative Cash Flow a reasonable estimate of
the recoverable value of ¥112.56 lakhs (previous
year I112.56 lakhs) being residual value, has been
made. As against the carrying cost of ¥329.30 lakhs
(previous year ¥329.30 lakhs) an impairment loss of
INil lakhs (previous year ¥1.00 lakhs) is recognized
in the Accounts.

40. Employee Benefits
As per AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits’ the disclosure of
Employee Benefit as defined in Accounting Standard
are given below.
a) Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan,
recognized as expense for the year are as under:
Description 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
(Rin Lakhs) | (Fin Lakhs)
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 286.01 275.71
Employer's contribution to Pension Scheme 52.01 55.49
Employer's contribution to Superannuation

b)

Defined Benefit Plan

The employees' gratuity fund scheme is a Defined
Benefit Plan. The present value of obligation is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit
of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation for leave encashment is recognized in the
same manner as gratuity.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
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g adad Gratuity Earned Leave | Half Pay Leave
IfSTa 3rasrer Particulars (Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
Suar (| ) 3[AHTA
farazor (Wa IECH ff) (‘51‘ﬁ|ﬁ|—"7)ﬁ()$q—a (\“ﬂﬁﬁ‘l"ﬁ) (Rin Lakhs) (Zin Lakhs) (Zin Lakhs)
i (P o™ #) 2017-18|2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17
2017-18| 2016-17| 2017-18| 2016-17|2017-18/2016-17 Defined Benefit
o Obligation at the
af & R H 1354.69| 1355.06| 870.56| 873.96| 195.44| 200.25 beginning of the 1354.69| 1355.06| 870.56| 873.96| 195.44| 200.25
afTfia fadems 11.66 -l 643 | =
A(;quulSIUOl'l 11.66 . 6.43 .
g 102.14| 10841  65.64]  69.92| 14.74| 16.02 adjustment
@ Interest Cost 102.14| 108.41| 65.64| 69.92| 14.74| 16.02
f 302.13 - - -| 195.44 -
Past Service Cost 302.13 - - -1 195.44 -
TS oRTd 93.01| 92.11| 8563 7558/ 31.32) 1224 Current Service
L CASEIRSINE] (78.84)| (130.90)| (182.81)| (288.98)| (0.74) - Cost 93.01| 92.11| 85.63| 7558| 31.32| 1224
A9 WaT oIRTa | (80.44)| (69.99)|  125.36|  140.08| (10.42)| (33.07) Benefits Paid (78.84)|(130.90) | (182.81) | (288.98) |  (0.74) -
o o - - - - ﬁzg“aml (gain)/ 1 (g0 44)| (69.99)| 125.36| 140.08| (10.42)| (33.07)
ad fﬁm il 1692.69| 1354.69| 976.04| 870.56| 432.21| 195.44 Settlement Cost - - - -
N _ . EII:OeZtrthe endof | 1502.69| 1354.69| 976.04) 870.56| 43221| 195.44
2. Ao gREuRml & e qea & 3 @ik sift ot r
T FHTET 2. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of
Fair Value of Plan Assets
SuqH (fAfers) (Fua
faawor )
g ﬁ) Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2017-18 2016-17 (Fin Lakhs)
N 1072 esss 2017-18 2016-17
o f}:,r \:llrue of plan assets as at the beginning of 1319.72 1263.88
e ufdwar 105.57 101.11 ¥
Expected Return 105.57 101.11
difes wita /&1 (2.97) (3.42)
- Actuarial gain/(loss) (2.97) (3.42)
[ERINERANECK ] 35.00 95.00
Contribution by Employer 35.00 95.00
ued 78.84 130.90
i (7884) | (13050) Benefits Paid (78.84) | (130.90)
A yee uMR (THua) 1 .
adeT ( ) (7.17) (5.95) Fund Management Charges (FMC) (7.17) (5.95)
J AISUNE ) B Settlement cost - -
ad & 3 # A aREuRRET BT e e 1371.31 1319.72 Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1371.31 1319.72
Ao IRFIRET R aRafas afawe 102.60 97.69 Actual return on plan assets 102.60 97.69
3. god ud ¥ AR 13T 1 FHE 3. Reconciliation of amount recognized in Balance
Sheet
() AT BT | AFIAT JTBTA
faazor . (Sl'ﬁﬁl—tﬁ) ((ﬂ'ﬁﬁl—tﬁ) Gratuil Earned Leave Half Pay Leave
R g #) vy Y
(FRT™E ¥) | (PR o ®) Particulars (Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
2017-18|2016-17| 2017-18|2016-17 | 2017-18 2016-17 Rin Lakhs) Rin Lakhs) ®in Lakhs)
; e 2017-18|2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17
1371.31 |1319.72 |- - - - Fair Value of Plan 137131 1131972 |- } } .
&1 e g Assets : i
AT BT a9 Present value of
1692.69 |1354.69 |976.04 |870.56 |432.21 |195.44 Obhgati;n " 1692.69 |1354.69 |976.04 |870.56 |432.21 |195.44
qa 5 Net asset /
d (liability) (321.38) | (34.97) | (976.04) | (870.56) | (432.21) | (195.44)
=7 et (321.38) | (34.97) |(976.04) | (870.56) | (432.21) | (195.44) recognized in the
) Balance Sheet
GREURT / (Qae)

4. Expense Recognized during the period in Statement

4. oM TG B faaxor &) orafsy & <R srfafauiRd =g of Profit & Loss.

I U @ -4
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deifdhed qeaie d faR fdy U Ia9 d gfg & i

@ A, ISR dWR # g &R A dfed eI,
IR, U 3R 3 Hdg ucehl W IR @xd 2|

rifdres SURRD AT DI FHAIONT Bl © |

P @

3IfSTd 3r@d1e | AIgdd- STdbTer Gratuity Earned Leave | Half Pay Leave
P suar (fifere) (@) (@) Particulars (Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
(vud @ ) o . ! (%in Lakhs) (%in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
g H picick
( ) | ( ) 2017-18(2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17
2017-18(2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2016-17
Interest Cost 102.14| 108.41| 65.64| 69.92| 14.74| 16.02
Einicinn 102.14| 108.41| 6564 69.92| 14.74| 16.02 ,
o & | os01| 9211] 8s63| 7558|3132 1224 gﬁgent Service 93.01| 92.11| 8563 7558 3132 1224
q(\—cf a7 T 302.13 195.44 Past Service Cost 302.13 195.44
AT aREuRR i‘i%e::gfmm %1 (105.57) | (101.11)
TR AU (105.57) | (101.11) Net Actuarial
gfipe igiggrill;s; during (77.47)| (66.57)| 125.36| 140.08| (10.42)| (33.07)
A & IR :
the period
AT e (77.47)| (66.57)| 125.36| 140.08| (10.42)| (33.07) Expenses din th
dratfes recognizedinthe 31541 3284| 27663 28558 231.08| (4.81)
(qﬁ /gﬁ) statement of Profit
& Loss
o Tl B @
fraRor F 71y 314.24| 32.84| 276.63| 28558| 231.08| (4.81) 5. Actual Return on Plan Assets
p|
. . Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
5. grofT YRR W aRdfde ufamd (Rin Lakhs)
(ewdt wrer ) Expected Return on Plan Assets (105.57) | (101.11)
2017-18 | 2016-17 Actuarial (gain)/ loss 2.97 342
Ao gR¥TRET W ST gfiwe (105.57) | (101.11) Actual return on plan assets (102.60) | (97.69)
. 2.97 3.42 .. . .
drifde snnfsr / #1f) 6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions
T IRGURRIT W aRafis ufisd (102.60) |  (97.69)
Gratuity | E dL Half Pay
ratur arne eave
. : L
6. "9 dHifdd 3 341 Particulars (Funded) | (Unfunded) cave
(Unfunded)
SUEE | JfTa ar@erer | AGddd JadreT Mortality Table (IALM) (IALM) (TALM)
e Ffre) | (i) (affer) (LIC) 2006-08 |  2006-08 2006-08
ﬁ?ﬁ (Qa ) (\‘HlirQQC'N"l) (\‘HlirQQC'N"l) (WW) Discounting Rate 7.71 % 7.71 % 7.71 %
¥ Téi 3] gq
2006—08 2006-08 2006-08 Future Salary 6.00% 6.00 % 6.00 %
gT 7.71 % 7.71 % 7.71% Increase
A e R 6.00% 6.00 % 6.00% | Expectedrateof
—— return on plan 8.00% - -
Ao gREuRE T® 8.00% i i assets
ufe $1 sTiferd <R Retirement Age 60 years 60 years 60 years
JaTfgiy &1 ey 60 a9 60 a9 60 a9 Withdrawal Rates
i <% Upto 30 years 3.00 % 3.00 % 3.00 %
30 T8 T 3.00% 3.00% 3:00% 5;:?: 31 to4d 2.00 % 2.00 % 2.00 %
31 9 44 99 TP 2.00 % 2.00 % 2.00 %
° ° | Above 44 years 1.00 % 1.00 % 1.00 %
44 9§ H SR 1.00 % 1.00 % 1.00 %

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in
actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and
demand in the employment market. The actuary certifies
the above information.




M) JAIgRT SWRid e av w@hE, Fowe e sk
IRG T, TIRE IR SRG AT, IRA IRBR
ERT Wed & 18 off | 9 2016—17 # BN & HROT,
THIH B AMTAR 834 AR TUY & AT R TR T
Bl aadE 99 H g fhar T 7|

H) 29032018 | IS T HHT BT 10.00 G ST
A FR 2000 G TUY R AT TAT R 1 TR,
2005 ¥ HA & U UAIMS AL B 0 TGS Wi
2| IRAfIS JRATHT & IMMIR W 302.13 ARG TUI &
qd HaT AT BT A g1 fdeRor # geiRa fobar |

©,) Fewe Heel gRI AT Gl & ThaldRUl Bl A
P QAT AT & | AEIER, 27.06.2017 A HATGIT / 37fE
AT & 9T TAUIUA. BT AHIBIU 59 I WR 3
TRT 81T {3 S1fSTa Sraahrer &R e I.ud. BT FhaihRor
G fAetar A 300 AT a@ 8 TE | AT raarT
B HH H BBl & fU Tadud. F IS FRECIF T8l
DI S | aRKAAD JeATHT & AER W 19544 ARG
SR P Yd AT AR b o™ B [JaRer # ogiRa
fopar T 2|

41. G4fod vgdR (Urdf) ywea—

HUHT, AT T4 AP HATGTI URd WRBR & YIRID
=T @ 1 3R IETHRYT AFSGI (TTH)—18 & IRT 9 &
Iy ffaa S| & aref & aer B

F. T vl SR Haul B A

®) | SeM, ol RUfér Sem & A1 U | BIg T8l
7T A FEIRT B HEIH H Y]
AT YT WY I R B B
JMEl AT fRET gRT SR &
e R B € (gud feEe
ARG Buft oA €) |

Q) | FEAH AR AYH e Pl 8

M) | gEAE SEW @l AdRGR wRh # | B8 A8
YT AT Ve ®U A U f3d waA
qret s iR U fodt afts & food
Reder, S 9= SeM & HWR =
3rrar AE@yul gHg US dRdl B |

) | Ug Udg BIffe 3R Id deell

d)

41.
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The Post Retirement Medical Benefits Scheme was
approved by the Board of Directors and Department
of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Govt. of India. Due to loss in the year 2016-17,
interest on corpus amounting to 8.34 lakhs have
only been provided in the Current Year as per the
scheme.

Gratuity payment limit has been enhanced from
%10.00 lakhs to ¥20.00 Lakhs w.e.f.29.3.2018. The
company is having Group Gratuity Scheme from LIC
w.e.f 1st July 2005. The past service cost of I302.13
Lakhs based on the actuarial valuation has been
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Half Pay Leave (HPL) encashment was approved by
the Board of Directors. Accordingly, encashment
of HPL at the time of retirement/superannuation
subject to the condition that Earned Leave (EL) and
HPL together does not exceed the maximum ceiling
of 300 days has been implemented w.e.f. 27.6.2017.
No commutation of HPL shall be allowed to make
up for the shortfall in EL. The past service cost of
%195.44 Lakhs based on the actuarial valuation has
been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Related Party Disclosures:-

Company is under administrative control of Ministry
of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government of India and
within the meaning of state controlled enterprises of
para 9 of Accounting Standards (AS)-18.

List of Related Parties & Relationships

a) | Enterprises that directly or indirectly | None
through oneormoreintermediaries, control
or are controlled by or are under common
control with the reporting enterprise (this
includes holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries).

b) | Associates and joint ventures None

¢) | Individuals owning directly or indirectly, | None
an interest in the voting power of the
reporting enterprise that gives them control
or significant influence over the enterprise,
and relatives of any such individual.

d) | Key Management Personnel and their
relatives
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(i) s v guaR FH=A, Fwe
(fa<T) 06.10.2016 & TAT HRIATED
el UG Yey fA¥d 08.11.2016
Rl

) | oM, s SR (1) @1 (°) H aftia | d1g =18
DIs Afh ATAYU] TG ST H \eTH

T
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(i) ShriD.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah, Director
(Finance) from 06.10.2016 and acting
Chairman & Managing Director from
08.11.2016.

e) | Enterprises which any person

described in (c) or (d) is able to exercise

significant influence.

over None

B  The following transactions were carried out /
W BREAR & GER B9 Y G gt & arer e Ty outstanding with related parties in the ordinary
S /qBTl course of business
(e BT ) [Zin Lakhs]
. . 1 ith i fe i , il
t s @), @) dr @) § Rfte o ngepartles referred to in (a), (b) and (c) Ni
D AT | :
_ _ 2 | With parties referred to in (d) above.
2 QN @ (i) Salaries, Perquisites and other 24.87
(i) =0 Srow. GurHR FRAT B 9§ B AR | 24.87 allowances paid during the year to
ge e, 3 o SR 3R 9w Shri D.S. Sudhakar Ramaiah *
“ . a .
() SUeH P/ TEdeRe AT dwe B Y T *) Exclu.d.mg fconmbu}‘il(;)rllslto th.e Giﬁtmty Fund /
\ i - . : : provision for encashable leave since the same are on
® Bis R fr _ I W E ~ actuarial valuation. In addition, full time Directors
3ﬁ—\r3€ X qoIpTIerd qu;b' @I A ﬁ—‘r_q'ﬂ:%ql';;' are also allowed to use the Company's Car for Private
SIRIREAR TN fere uferme 520 /— purpose upto 12000 Kms per annum on payment of
780 /—¥W & A W Ufaay 12000 & d& ol ¥520/- and ¥780/- per month for non air-conditioned
IS 8 B Bl BR B TART P AR 2| and air conditioned Car respectively.
42. ds qR fAwareq 42. Segment wise Performance
SRATHRVT AP (TTH—17) " FEEN” B AR In line with Accounting Standards (AS-17) “Segment
e T T e B Reporting” the company has identified its business
R . s ‘[_: o - - activity into two business segment i.e. Consultancy &
4R aﬂ N A _ _ Engineering Projects and Manufacturing of Catalyst,
E aa. @ TN BT T | BUA T VA FISAI @ 81%[ taking into account the organizational structure and
3R SRS el gomell 3R\ € 37 @i & internal reporting system as well as different risk
yfwel R R axa f6a1 © | Wi & uRemm A9 fag and rewards of these Segments. Segments results are
Y g given below:-
(T g #H) [Zin Lakhs]
G Xolvd 2017-18 2016-17 Segment Revenue 2017-18 2016-17
goliferafR ud oyt 6541.16 4568.87 Engineering & Consultancy 6541.16 4568.87
Sefore Bt 278.93 26.60 Manufacturing of Catalyst 278.93 26.60
; q @ am @R ) Segment Profit (Return)
- - from Operation
g o (587.53) (1912.73) Engineering & Consultancy (587.53) (1912.73)
beferee (317.13) (258.09) Manufacturing Catalyst (317.13) (258.09)
AT — B (904.66) |  (2170.82) Total -A (904.66) |  (2170.82)
Jafdy qd FHREIe - 2.60 Prior Period Adjustment - 2.60
el - - Interest - -

P @
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AT - = - 2.60
I A — T 965.89 1178.99
B qd A (F—E+T) 61.23 (994.43)

Other unallocable Expenditure

Total - B - 2.60
Other Income - C 965.89 1178.99
Profit before Tax (A-B+C) 61.23 (994.43)

43.

44,

45.

FUA S HRIR AT FEfRd gaRil § ug Fuf,
HIF TAT IUSRT 3 UREURTAT BT Fufl, T3 q
UGN T URFURET @ Fufl, §I5 qAT UG
rc aREufral & w0 #, fdll ff STRERY @ @ fory
U gl Bl TS 2 AR Wed Ha] i & 99 H
faferia g @1 ¢ 8| JeguR g WS aR«ufl
3R IRl & Hdg § B yded el 6y MY T

gAY Td fadmrd garT, e @ 77.53 ARG 0
(freet a¥ 77.53 g W) &1 GeI[NId oI BT HUMT,
AT AT SYBHRN BT e B forv anRa aReufra
@ Sl @1 MAT| g Td ¥ yEE, Red #1 105.96
TG TY (292 TRI BYY DI BIEH) & Hed I
I @1 Hufl, W T SuaRell @I fAgem & forg
giRa aREufral (oo ¥ 82.28 kg TU (2.92 @G
TUY B BIEIN) eI I HURl, FIF AT IUBI]
e & forg & 18 uR&ufrn) & ofdvia <=ar a7 |
g U9 A y9rT @1 uRYUREl @1 UERT fhar o RET
2 3R deguR afedl # Heus &1 uau™ WN |
dT 3 Ue W wNIT & HuRrl, 699 d1 SUaRvil 7
HeU' BT yIae \8l fhar war 2 fAgem & fog
Y Fgdg AT T 2|

qIElemsud, et § #aHl @ B G@I 1522 © |
Py TQ FdeTOT B SR, 1522 HBEI H W, 24 FHM
qIEleMEd HHATRAT §RT WANT by ST & &, 484
AP Uee ¥ PR W 3 T €, 150 FBM IFRIHT
JRHIRTT gIRT IO # €, 21 JHRIER 8 3R 817
AH Glell U8 8 AR Af¥HaR A 6! glad 3
TE T SRG fAFT gRT SRR & SURIT 2013
# uer AR g A T o7 | HueT SRy
ERT Ao aReR Mfafrm, 1971 (ddivae) & dsd
IHIATERI 3R AP AT BT AP @rell PR
& AIfeq WOl MY § )

SIREA

fRerfRor af 2014—15 T Mg F= e goi @1 9@ &
AR B AT T DI TS T | eHIHT 9 2016—17 TDH
3 Rebs yrd 81 7 &

43.

44.

45.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible
Assets used in the company’s business or liabilities
contracted have not been identified to any of the
responsible segments, as the Property, Plant &
Equipment and Intangible Assets and support
services are used interchangeable between segments.
Accordingly no disclosure relating to total segment
Assets and Liabilities has been made.

The Property, Plant & Equipment of R&D Division
of Sindri having depreciated value of ¥77.53 lakhs
(previous year ¥77.53 lakhs) has been kept under
Assets held for Disposal. The Property, Plant &
Equipment of E&C Division of Sindri having
depreciated value of and 105.96 lakhs excludes
%2.92 lakhs kept under Assets held for Disposal
(Previous year ¥82.28 lakhs excludes ¥2.92 lakhs kept
under Assets held for Disposal) has been kept under
Property, Plant & Equipment. The assets of E&C
division are being used and accordingly depreciation
continues to be provided in the books. Depreciation
on the Property, Plant & Equipment of Closed R&
D Division has not been provided. Assets held for
disposal has been grouped with “Other Non Current
Assets”.

Total number of quarters at PDIL, Sindri are 1522.
As per survey done, out of 1522 quarters, 24 quarters
are being used by PDIL employees, 484 quarters have
been leased out on rent, 150 quarters are occupied
by unauthorized occupants, 21 are defaulters and 843
quarters are lying vacant and most of the quarters
are not in a good condition. Estate Officer had been
designated in 2013 after notification by Department
of Fertilizers. Evacuation notices have been sent to
the defaulters and unauthorized occupants under
Public Premises Act, 1971 (PP Act) by the Estate
Officer.

Income Tax

Income Tax Assessments have been completed upto
Assessment Year 2014-15 and no demand has been
raised. Refund has been received upto Assessment
Year 2016-17.

@ <



B )
9 <t o T

PDIL

46. HiwwaR (Frafa arfsre <licd) =g

ERRIBRCL] ERRIBRCE]
201718 2016—17
(¥uT g #) | (¥UT o #)
() | DU ERT @ BT S Mgl Nl
el bl Ifara <l
(@) | a9 99 & SRE @
@Y TS i
(1) | fpelt aR<ufy @t I I
fmtor / 3rferrgor
(2) | ST (1) & 3rerT Nl %1.83
TSN TR
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46. CSR Expenditure

Current Year | Previous Year
2017-18 2016-17
(% in Lakh) (R in Lakh)
(a) | Grossamountrequired to Nil Nil
be spent by the Company
during the year
(b) | Amount spent during
the year on:
(i) | Construction/ Nil Nil
acquisition of any asset
(if) | On purposes other than Nil 31.83
(i) above




47. WP Il &1 faaver fr=1 yaR 2 | Read

af & s droY () F Ry Tw |

Annual Report 2017-18

@
9 <t o T
PDIL

47. The detail of Government Grants are as under
[previous Year’s Figure in () ]

.. RIS BT AT ey 9§ & <R 9§ & R gfoeiy fewfor
SI No Name of Project Oplening PR gRT T /AT Cl(l)sing Notes
Balance ST CREtl Balance
Grant released | Grant utilized/
by Govt. refund during
during the year the year

1 are vadl defere o TR &1 &g ®er | 28.08 T T 2808 | (3= =me] <UN)
Tl & vu ¥ el wad) defaee o yany | (28.08) Nil Nil (28.08) | 10 (Other Current
Use of Spent HT Catalyst as Raw Material =) =) Liabilities)
for preparation of fresh spent catalyst (Nil) (Nil)

2 Tl Be Baduld defoRe & Re & | 6.92 Nl A 6.92 (3T aTq <Ia)
oI Feii= TS defore &1 YN (6.92) Nil Nil (6.92) | 10 (Other Current
Chlorine Guard Catalyst for Protection of @) (e7) Liabilities)
LT Shift Conversion Catalyst. (Nil) (Nil)

3 | ewRRS 3 B Sedred vq AREA A ¥ | -43.52° T T -43.52° (@ =me]
I A AedResalirg s affafipeor | (-43.52) Nil Nil (-43.52) afRufRr)
defore &1 fam (31) (Nil) 21(Other
Development of Cesium Doped Low (Nil) Current Assets)
Temperature Sulphur Dioxide Oxidation
Catalyst for Sulphuric acid production
@l TOTAL -8.52 gl I -8.52 -

(-8.52) Nil Nil (-8.52)
(Nil) (Nil)

#  WRA WRGR T AU TF FAT 15061 /1,/2014—THUl &1 26.08.2014 ERT 69.96 AT U BT A WIdhd HaAT 8,
A 9RT TRBR gRT M ¥ STRY AT SIET a1 & |
#  Govt. of India has sanctioned grant of 369.96 lakhs vide letter No.15061/1/2014-FP dt 26.08.2014, however grant is
yet to be released by Govt. of India.

@ -4
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48. arfafRad L GRL 48. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Defore CATALYST
(@) SUTET B ATHS: (a) Production data :
A B gHb1g (Wfgd ) Units of Measurement in MT
AT &rEdT R eTHaT udeH ERSICEASIEGH
Licensed Capacity ART GHTOTT Actual Production
Installed Capacity
Certified by the
Management
Eal Eal Eal Eal Eal Eal
T a¥ | AT 9 | 9AT ¥ | |ATd 9 | AT 9 | A 9y
e Bl S Class of Goods Year ended | Year ended | Year ended | Year ended | Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
T3l defore H.T. CATALYST 850 850 360 360 - -
TS BT HIGR H. T. Co. Conv. - - - - 69 ]
hefRe Catalyst
e Vanadium - - - - - 4
EREIESIES] Pentoxide Cat.
defore
NICKEL 600 600 300 300 - -
e deferee CATALYST
N Reformation - -
ReFR defore
Catalyst
- Methanation - -
Catalyst
R HATTH Super Methanation - -
Pefore Catalyst
Tt Al defore L.T. CATALYST 900 900 600 600
TSl Bl HAdex L. T. Co. Conv. 28 ]
Phefore Catalyst
ISRISIESIES] Zincoxide Catalyst - - - - - -
defore
SUSREIRIET Sodium Nitrate - - - - - -
MR SIS S TRON OXIDE 1000 1000 330 330 - -
Eas) Total 97 4
3 Others
TR dfed Alumina Balls 3 -
Bl Total 100 4

fewofl: fAder smenRa defore @ forg, fosd af faey # e
W AfF I (@ISR & AR & IR W) BF U=, dolaR
S HE W &I, Kol AU &HA B 50 AT B ATHT
BI |

K

Note : For Nickel based Catalyst, if there are more than one
products in a year (depending on market demand) the
capacity in the particular month of changeover shall be around
50% of the installed capacity.




(@) &= A1a & WS

(b) Raw Materials Purchases :
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Unit of Year Ended 31.03.2018 | Year Ended 31.03.2017
I 1 Class of Goods Measurement Quantity | (¥/Lakhs) | Quantity | (I/Lakhs)
NI CATALYST :
tRifts TR Acetic Acid MT 7.000 4.45 - -
HIffe TRTS Chromic Acid MT 9.000 17.56 - -
FARIRS RIS Sulphuric Acid MT - - - -
Fregeifegm Argee Aluminium Nitrate MT - - - -
FAAES TSR Bauxide Powder MT - - - -
B Copper MT 26.000 122.86 - -
PR Gobe Copper Sulphate MT 3.000 4.04 - -
EareIRI RS Calcined Alumina MT - - - -
AT
B e Ferrous Sulphate MT 260.990 20.03 - -
frpar Nickel MT - - - -
S TR Zinc Oxide MT 25.000 54.62 - -
sfed wRrs Nitric Acid MT 158.330 20.41 - -
|rer vy Soda Ash MT 240.000 57.07 - -
HReH AIel Caustic Soda MT 90.294 42.67 - -
IR Ueleidss Vanadium Pentoxide MT - - - -
TeRH gobe Potasium Sulphate MT - - - -
YpET TR Graphite Powder MT 3.000 3.19 - -
e g Kissel Ghur MT - - - -
= Others - - - -
&d Total 346.90 -

)
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(1) @ud fHy ¢ B A BT AGAR e T-3reT  (¢) Item-wise break-up of Raw Materials
faqeor consumed :

AT BY ol Class of goods AU BT gBIS | 31.03.2018 BT FAG aY | 31.03.2017 B A I

Unit of Year Ended 31.03.2018 | Year Ended 31.03.2017
Measurement AT Glickay AT Glickay
Quantity #) Quantity #)
(%/Lakhs) (%/Lakhs)
1 dehre CATALYST :
 oRiPs oRe Acetic Acid MT 4.650 2.62 - -
R R Chromic Acid MT 9.100 20.10 - -
| @ Copper MT 19.000 90.69 ] ]
o BfeITES TegHII Calcined Alumina MT - - - -
| oew gee Ferrous Sulphate MT 260990 |  20.03 - -
e et Nickel MT _ _ i} ]
R aifTEe Zinc Oxide MT 24000 | 50.13 - -
L eeta e Nitric Acid MT 158330 | 20.41 - -
i aeeEte Ammonium-Bi- MT - - - -
Carbonate
 Eroy Soda Ash MT 84.000 20.51 - -
[ - ——— Caustic Soda MT 90.294 42,67 - -
e Graphite Powder MT 1.800 1.70 - -
AR Kissel Ghur MT - - 6.000 0.57
L et gregiiee Potassium Hydroxide MT : : 0.485 0.15
e aoe Bauxide Powder MT 21.000 221 - -
- CAL Shell MT - - 0.100 0.01
= g dw INNERT ALUMINA MT - - - -
BALL
R GRS Vanadium Pentoxide MT ] ] 0.400 3.70
| =g (et B) Others (Includes - - - -
o DI 3T ) workshop other
| material)

e Aehe Potassium Sulphate MT - - 0.800 0.58
| gt T Copper Sulphate MT 4300 5.34 - -
e Starch MT - - 0.900 0.26
T FARIRS RIS Sulphuric Acid MT - - - -
o HITBAl BT o Ground Nut Oil MT - - - -
| & Total 276.41 5.27

_KC
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(=) faspa (d) Sales:
o] a9 @ forg g a9 @ forg
For the Current year For the Previous year
A1 B ol Class of goods AT EHd - e
Afed < | (g vuv | Afed < | (o wIe
) )
Qty Value Qty Value
M.T. (R /Lakhs) M.T. (R /Lakhs)
1| Tadl defore H.T. CATALYST
F | TS Bl HAdSY Deloe H. T. Co. Conv. Catalyst 96 267.72 - -
g | garfeg deriirgs Vanadium Pentoxide Cat. - - 10 29.93
2 | ffber defere NICKEL CATALYST
@ | Refyd defowe Reformation Catalyst - - : :
g | YT defore Methanation Catalyst - . . i
T | R AT dbefoRe Super Methanation Catalyst - - . -
3 | Taldl defere L.T. CATALYST
F | TAE) Bl BAaR L. T. Co. Conv. Catalyst - - - -
@ | Riwfiaags defore Zincoxide Catalyst - - - -
T | oHtde Thermobond - . - .
4 | IMRA AlFATSS Iron Oxide - : - _
5 |3 (Rfe dre) Other (Sind Kote) 3 11.21 - B,
99 278.93 10 29.93
6 | 3T afedd Alumina Balls - - - -
7 | BRIYTAT SUBRIT /I Workshop Equipment/Others Nil Nil Nil Nil
8 | AIfST A1sge (WE—SwR) Sodium Nitrate (By Product) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Eas) Total 99 278.93 10 29.93
e : ITE Yob Less : Excise Duty 3.33
raer T Net Total 99 278.93 10 26.60
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PDIL
(®) wid (e) Stocks:
HYS P ghlS Hfed 7 d Units of Measurement in MT
Il a1 AofY Class of goods T &l H T Rl F
31032018 @I Rerfd @ 31032017 & Reifd @1
Closing Stock Closing Stock
ason 31.03.2018 ason 31.03.2017
LiEll HHd LiEll B
s ed | (@9 oo H) | Afgw e | (@ eug )
Qty Value Qty Value
M.T. (%/Lakhs) M.T. (Z/Lakhs)
1 | Tad. defore 1 | H.T. CATALYST
® | TaE Bl HIdY hefore a. | H. T. Co. Conv. Catalyst 24.000 68.18 51.000 100.61
T | aifegH Ueliirge b. | Vanadium Pentoxide Cat. 5.932 10.27 5.932 10.27
2 | faferer defore 2 | NICKEL CATALYST
P | Reiug defore a. | Reformation Catalyst 25.990 58.50 25.990 58.50
9 | ANT defore b. | Methanation Catalyst 4.658 19.57 4.658 19.57
T | g dfest / wfaea c. | Alumina Balls/Active 3.293 2.89 3.293 2.89
T Aluamina*
3 | Al defore 3 | L.T. CATALYST
F | TAE) Bl BAaR a. | L. T. Co. Conv. Catalyst 32.995 136.30 4.995 15.03
T | fIerseior defie b. | Dehydrogenation Catalyst 3.000 5.00 3.000 5.00
T | Nidailaags defore ¢. | Zincoxide Catalyst 2.000 2.51 2.000 2.51
g | ofets d. | Thermobond - -
T | Afsyw Tsge e. | Sodium Nitrate - - - -
4 | TTRNUad defere 4 | NOX Catalyst 0.100 0.17 0.100 0.17
5 | 3R JifTSS 5 | Iron Oxide - - - -
6 | PHIATAT SUBIOT 6 | Workshop Equipments
Eagl Total 101.968 303.39 100.968 214.55
SIS Yoh Add: Excise Duty 26.82
101.968 303.39 100.968 241.37
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49. OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Current year | Previous year
2017-18 2016-17
¥/Lakhs ¥/Lakhs
are], o are], ad
2017—18 ) 2016—17 )
(®uq @@ #) | (¥UT o #)
(?5) MTal &7 @;ﬂ]gqq; q (E_CCIE:T) (a) | C.LLE Value of Imports (mfg) NIL NIL
(@) | faceh a1 9 @ (b) | Expenditure in foreign currency :
i) fagsh <R i) Foreign Tours 16.20 6.28
i) fodes =g ii) Living Expenses - -
iii) TP A B iii) Technical Know fee 43.12 37.22
iv) 3y iv) Others 8.81 5.81
(1) | e, qhed! o, URaR 3R (c) | Earnings in Foreign Exchange for Royalty, 105.96 261.16
qereff dareli st & forg fageh know-how, professional and consultancy
e 3 gar Aol services etc.
(@) | @Ud §Y FHo A, WA UISH, Fel. (d) | Value of Raw Materials, Spare parts
EJ,ﬁ 3N R 3N B BT gl components and stores consumed and
” percentage of the total :
gada a9 201718 fosar as 2016—17
Current Year 2017-18 Previous Year 2016-17
RUE gfererear RUEY gfererear
Amount | Percentage | Amount | Percentage
(¥uq <@ #) T /Lakhs | (¥9¢ @ #) T /Lakhs
i) | ®=r g9ra i) | Raw Materials
smrfea Imported - - - -
wesh Indigenous 276.41 100 5.27 100
i) | R |WHR uey ii) | Stores, Spare parts
smfea Imported - - - -
woshy Indigenous 39.67 100 6.22 100
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50. q\ufm-ﬁ,l—cﬁ ffreerdl &1 "9HY: 50. REMUNERATION OF WHOLE TIME
DIRECTORS :
qd¥uE a9 2017—18 fgar as 2016—17
(FuT T W) (¥uq @ #)
Current year 2017-18 Previous year 2016-17
I/ Lakh I/ Lakh
1 IIT 1 | Salaries 21.25 24.54
2 gfaey A fve™ 2 | Provident Fund Contribution 2.11 2.45
3 3 3 | Others 1.51 3.04
Bl Total 24.87 30.03

SueH Y & sfgreeTaddl d deild @I off 9o+ Excluding contributions to the Gratuity Fund / provision
qrell g@aﬁ P Faeeelfha %@ BT foprarey ifes for encashable leave/ Medical Leave since the same are
Y P Hood R B ¥ | 39d 3rerdr, Qidiiors  on actuarial valuation. In addition, full time Directors
et P1 oo ol &t & fore Hu @ B 12,000  are also allowed to use the Company’s Car for Private
foreiifiey uferas ad SATl dx+ & IgART @il §, purpose upto 12000 Kms per annum on payment of
e fory 9= IR—ara@id SR adHEa BR ¥520/- and ¥780/- per month for non air-conditioned and
@ forg Bl 520 /—%W @R 780 /—%W wfyEE b1 Al conditioned Car respectively.

A AT BIT & | 51. The figures of previous year have been regrouped ,
51, wEl aaead @, 98 Rwe 9§ & aipel B A a9 wherever necesssary to make them comparable with
@ JAfwel A ol A & oIy S G Agdg current year figures.
T R | 52. Notes to Financial Statement 1-51 of Balance Sheet
52. Qe U 3 & E Rretnr faeh 1-51 ) R ok and Statements of Profit and Loss form an integral
' T TS B RaRe S P arfreT R &1 @) 5 part of Accounts. Figures in brackets () indicate
. . negative amount otherwise specified.
fU 7T TP THRIHD AR B AW § 3R gati t otherwise specified
5 T g
FARY s AfYy @) Hora Ruld & s In term of our report of even date attached
FHd TH S ORI g S For M D Gujrati & Co.
IS THSST Chartered Accountants
HH TSHROT AT : 0053017 Firm Regn No.: 005301N
B0/ — B0/~ 80/~ Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
. & wg 1. 4. sfarq Y. T, 3rrare B. K. Sahoo D. P. Srivastava G. L. Agrawal
S AfrE RENEGREINIRIEIIE)) wrfieR Company Director (Govt. Nominee) Partner
UHA.: 087454 Secretary M.No.: 087454
80/ — Sd/-
T AT d). TH. guTa] AT Place: Noida D. S. Sudhakar Ramaiah
fa=Tip : 16.07.2018 e (<) ©d wdy fewme Date: 16.07.2018 D(F)/CMD
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A scene of Holi Milan celebrated at PDIL, Noida PSU Day celebration at PDIL, Noida



Contact us

Catalyst & Environment
Engineerinp Centre

SINDRI

Projects & Development India Ltd. = m y PrOJectsC|8|;:_|I? EYJ g irt]'égdla -
AleEPSETTY, N8, Q01801 : ‘ =~ Distt.Dhanbad, Jharkhand
Tel: +91-120-2529 84/43/47/51/53/54 o Tel: +91-326-2251287 / 2245069

email : noida@pdilin.com \ 0o ;
Projects & Development India Ltd. Sikr Pl @sanchargily

4 J Samta, Subhanpura, Vadodara -390 023 il
' ! Tel: +91-265-2388 413/18/18/20/21

Fax; +91-265-2388 398/399

email :baroda@pdilin.com

MUMBAI
Projects & Development India Ldt.
Ashish Champers, 5th Floor,
R.C. Marg, Mahul Road, Chembur
MUMBAI-400 074
Tel.: +91-22-25534052/ 25534041
Fax : +91-22-2554 0031
e-mail : mumbai@pdilin.com
pdilmumbai@mtnl.net.in

HYDERABAD Inspection Offices

Projects & Development India Ltd.
Qr. 544-C/IV, BHEL Township,
Ramachandrapuram,
HYDERABAD-502 032
Tel.: +91-40-2318 2873/2302 1365
e-mail : pdilhyd@yahoo.com
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KOLKATA Mini-Ratna-1Company
Projects & Development India Ltd. UMBAI

4/2, Karaya Road, HYDERABAD

CHENNAI
Projects & Development India Ltd.
Rabiya Building, First Floor,
238, Royapetta High Road,
: Mylapore, CHENNAI-600 004
E lﬂ mm 5 Tel.: +91-44-2499 2374 | 2499 0433
e-mail : chennai@pdilin.com

67, Shankespear Sarani,
Kolkata-700017
Tel.: +91-33-2280 1321/2282 0893
Fax : +91-33-22873274
e-mail : kolkata@pdilin.com

Visit us at : www.pdilin.com
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